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CHARACTERISTICS OF GEM OF THE STOCK
EXCHANGE

GEM has been positioned as a market designed to
accommodate small and mid-sized companies to
which a higher investment risk may be attached
than other companies listed on the Stock Exchange.
Prospective investors should be aware of the potential
risks of investing in such companies and should
make the decision to invest only after due and careful
consideration.

Given that the companies listed on GEM are generally
small and mid-sized companies, there is a risk that
securities traded on GEM may be more susceptible
to high market volatility than securities traded on the
Main Board of the Stock Exchange and no assurance is
given that there will be a liquid market in the securities
traded on GEM.

Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited and the
Stock Exchange take no responsibility for the contents of
this report, make no representation as to its accuracy or
completeness and expressly disclaim any liability whatsoever
for any loss howsoever arising from or in reliance upon the
whole or any part of the contents of this report.

This report, for which the Directors collectively and
individually accept full responsibility, includes particulars
given in compliance with the GEM Listing Rules for the
purpose of giving information with regard to the Company.
The Directors, having made all reasonable enquiries,
confirm that, to the best of their knowledge and belief, the
information contained in this report is accurate and complete
in all material respects and not misleading or deceptive,
and there are no other matters the omission of which would
make any statement herein or this report misleading.
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DEAR SHAREHOLDERS

For and on behalf of the Board, | am pleased to present the
annual results of the Group for the financial year ended 31
May 2023 to the Shareholders.

The pandemic broadly eased in Hong Kong starting in the
first half of 2023, with the Hong Kong Government, to a
large extent, having relaxed its anti-pandemic measures.
The bars and restaurants industry in Hong Kong gets back
on track gradually. The Group’s revenue had recovered
significantly during the Reporting Period, compared with the
Corresponding Period.

During the Reporting Period, the Group recorded
an increase in revenue of approximately 55.2% from
approximately HK$50,257,000 for the Corresponding Period
to approximately HK$77,981,000 for the Reporting Period
and recorded a net profit of approximately HK$5,880,000
for the Reporting Period as compared to a net loss of
approximately HK$7,942,000 for the Corresponding Period.
Such turnaround results was mainly attributable to (i) strong
sales recorded in the 4th quarter of the Reporting Period as
a result of the relaxation of pandemic restrictions including
but not limited to the lifting of cross-border travel restrictions
and the mask-wearing requirements that led to increased
customers consumption; and (ii) increasing the product mix
offered to customers since the opening of the cigar lounge
at Lan Kwai Fong during the Reporting Period.

Being one of the renowned players in the bar and club
market in Hong Kong, the Group aims to provide premium
entertainment experience to our customers via our lavish
premises, offering a variety of entertainment such as live
band show, international disc jockey performance and large-
screen broadcast of a variety of sports events. During the
Reporting Period, with a view to expand and develop along
its principal business, the Group has launched a new cigar
lounge in Lan Kwai Fong, which provides a quiet and relax
environment to enjoy high-ended cigars.

Chairman’s Statement
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Chairman’s Statement

EFHEE

At present, the Group is operating (i) a night club Faye; (ii) a
sports-themed bar Paper Street; and (iii) 2 lounges namely
LKF Lounge and Amante House.

As mentioned above, following the lifting of anti-pandemic
and quarantine measures by the Hong Kong Government
and re-opening of border with the PRC and other
international counties, cross border economic activities
have gradually resumed. As a result, not only does it benefit
the food and beverage industry, but it will also benefit the
luxury lifestyle consumption. The Group is committed to
strengthen its core capabilities to keep on improving its
business performance and to present satisfactory results
and bring favourable returns to our Shareholders. To achieve
this, the Group will continuously providing more value-added
products and services to our valuable customers. In the light
of this, the management of the Group is confident of the
Group'’s financial performance will continue to improve.

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

On behalf of the Board and the management of the Group,
| would like to express my sincere gratitude to all our staff
for their unremitting efforts during the Reporting Period and
to all shareholders for their full support. | would also like to
express my heartfelt thanks to all Shareholders, investors,
customers, suppliers and business partners for their valuable
support.

Wong Chi Yung
Chairman and CEO
Hong Kong, 31 August 2023
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Our Outlets
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Financial Highlight
MFRE

KEY FINANCIAL INFORMATION

Revenue &
Changes in inventories FEEE
Non-cash items: JERELEH

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment #) ¥ E R B HEiTE
FTREEEINE
M E KRR ERERE

Depreciation of right-of-use assets

Impairment loss on property, plant and
equipment

Write-off of trade and other receivables

i EH B 5 K H W R 1A

Provision for expected credit loss on trade and & 5 & H 1th f& U Z I8

other receivables

Profit/(loss) before income tax

Profit/(loss) and total comprehensive income
for the year

RREEBEERER
PRPTISIATER (B518)
FrEs (BR) &

EHEWEBER

FEMBHEN

Year ended 31 May

B E5A31HLLEE
2023 2022
20235 20224
HK$’000 HK$'000
FAET FAET
77,981 50,257
(20,340) (12,641)
(4,049) (3,480)
(8,301) (7,089)
(28) -
(914) (593)
(579) (367)
6,239 (9,734)
5,880 (7,942)

For the Reporting Period, the Group’s revenue was
approximately HK$77,981,000, representing an increase
of approximately 55.2% when compared with that of the
Corresponding Period.

The Group recorded a profit and total comprehensive
income for the Reporting Period approximately
HK$5,880,000, while there was a loss and total
comprehensive income of approximately HK$7,942,000 for
the Corresponding Period. Such turnaround was primarily
due to (i) strong sales recorded in the 4th quarter of the
Reporting Period as a result of the relaxation of pandemic
restrictions including but not limited to the lifting of cross-
border travel restrictions and the mask-wearing requirements
that led to increased customers consumption; and (ii)
increasing the product mix offered to customers since the
opening of the cigar lounge at Lan Kwai Fong during the
Reporting Period.

The Board did not recommend payment of any dividend for
the Reporting Period (2022: nil).
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Currently, the Group is operating (i) a night club Faye; (i) a
sports-themed bar Paper Street; and (iii) 2 lounges namely
LKF Lounge and Amante House.

BUSINESS REVIEW

For the Reporting Period and up to the date of this report,
the Group had been principally engaged in the operation of
club and entertainment business in Hong Kong.

Operation of club and entertainment business

As at 31 May 2023, the Group operated 1 night-club
(namely Faye), a sports-themed bar (namely Paper Street)
and 1 lounge (namely LKF Lounge), covering different
segments of the club and entertainment market. Faye
provides unparalleled clubbing and vibing experience with a
stunning view at the rooftop of California Tower in Lan Kwai
Fong. Paper Street the sport-themed bar provides a casual
and comfortable environment for chilling out. The operation
of a night club (namely Mudita) and an entertainment studio
(namely Maximus Studio) were terminated in 2022 due to
the social distancing restrictions imposed by the Hong Kong
government which posed challenges to the entertainment
business of the Group. The revenue generated from the
operation of club and entertainment business increased by
approximately HK$27,724,000, or approximately 55.2%,
from approximately HK$50,257,000 for the Corresponding
Period to approximately HK$77,981,000 for the Reporting
Period.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEREE®RD R

FINANCIAL REVIEW
Revenue

For the Reporting Period, the Group’s revenue was
generated from the operation of club and entertainment and
catering business in Hong Kong.

The Group recognised its revenue from (a) the club and
entertainment operations (i) the customer takes possession
of and accepts the products; (i) when the customer
simultaneously receives and consumes the benefits
provided by the Group or other products were delivered to
its customers (including tips, cloakroom fees and service
income from an entertainment studio); and (b) entertainment
income when services have been transferred to the
customer.

The table below sets forth the breakdown of the revenue by
club and entertainment operation and restaurant operation
for the Corresponding Period and Reporting Period:

FA %50l BR

Wh a

RBRESHE *EENRDREREELEES
PRAIRBEL U TR B ER K75 o

FEBBER(QNRNFLIEE RIZEMERE ; (i)
ERRARESRERREEMEHZ BN IR
MEMERTHERF (BFNE KEBE
RARBERORBYA) ; RO)BRFEEBE
BERRTEDIVIRERAEENK D -

TREIII K F R R 3R & H 12 & P e R 4
BEUKREREEI DV RME !

Year ended 31 May

HESH31IBLEEE
2023 2022
20234 20224
% of total % of total
HK$’000 revenue HK$’'000 revenue
FAET BN E FET 15K
B Bt
Club and entertainment operation & Fff F {3 4 % 38 77,981 100.0 50,257 100.0
Restaurant operation BEEE - - - -
Total 4Bt 77,981 100.0 50,257 100.0

The revenue generated from the operation of club and
entertainment business increased by approximately
HK$27,724,000, or approximately 55.2%, from
approximately HK$50,257,000 for the Corresponding Period
to approximately HK$77,981,000 for the Reporting Period.
Such increase was mainly due to the relaxing in the business
hours of our outlets during the Reporting Period under the
continued containment of the pandemic.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Changes in inventories

The changes in inventories mainly represented the cost
of beverage and food ingredients used in the Group’s
club, entertainment and restaurant operations. The major
beverage and food ingredients purchased by the Group
include but is not limited to liquors, champagne, liqueurs,
frozen food, dried food, etc. The changes in inventories, one
of the components of the operating expenses, increased by
approximately HK$7,699,000, or approximately 60.9%, from
approximately HK$12,641,000 for the Corresponding Period
to approximately HK$20,340,000 for the Reporting Period.

Other income and gains

The Group’s other income increased by approximately
HK$2,134,000, as compared with the Corresponding
Period. Such increase was mainly due to the combine effect
of (i) a gain on early termination of lease amounting to
approximately HK$3,069,000; (ii) a slash in pandemic related
rent concession amounting to approximately HK$1,284,000;
and (iii) reversal of provision of reinstatement costs and
trade receivables written off amounting to approximately
HK$387,000.

Advertising and marketing expenses

Advertising and marketing expenses primarily consisted
of advertising and promotional expenses such as the cost
of engaging resident and guest DJs and the expenses
incurred for engaging a public relations company for the
provision of marketing and promotion services to the
Group’s club, entertainment and restaurant operations.
The advertising and marketing expenses increased by
approximately HK$1,510,000, or approximately 17.6%, from
approximately HK$8,594,000 for the Corresponding Period
to approximately HK$10,104,000 for the Reporting Period.
Such increase was mainly due to the surge in expenses
incurred for public relation services and advertising and
marketing services resulted from increase in the business
hours of our outlets during the Reporting Period.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEREE®RD R

Employee benefits expenses

Employee benefits expenses primarily consisted of all
salaries and benefits payable to all employees and staff,
including the Directors, headquarters staff and operational
staff in each outlet. The employee benefits expenses
increased by approximately HK$3,406,000, or approximately
25.9%, from approximately HK$13,163,000 for the
Corresponding Period to approximately HK$16,569,000 for
the Reporting Period. Such increase was mainly due to the
relaxation of restriction in the business hours of our outlets
during the Reporting Period which resulted in more salaries
borne by the Group.

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment and
right-of-use assets

Depreciation represented the depreciation charge for
property, plant and equipment (including, among others,
leasehold improvements, furniture, fixtures and equipment)
and right-of-use assets. Property, plant and equipment are
depreciated so as to write off their cost net of expected
residual value over their estimated useful lives on a
straight-line basis. The total depreciation increased by
approximately HK$1,781,000, or approximately 16.9%, from
approximately HK$10,569,000 for the Corresponding Period
to approximately HK$12,350,000 for the Reporting Period.

Other expenses

Other expenses mainly represented security expenses
for the clubs, credit card commissions, repairs and
maintenance costs, cleaning expenses, professional fee and
entertainment expenses. The other expenses decreased by
approximately HK$286,000, or approximately 1.8%, from
approximately HK$16,057,000 for the Corresponding Period
to approximately HK$15,771,000 for the Reporting Period.
Such decrease was mainly due to effective cost control
measure in response to the pandemic since the first half of
the Reporting Period.

Profit/(loss) before income tax

As a result of the cumulative factors discussed above, a
profit before income tax of approximately HK$6,239,000 was
recorded for the Reporting Period, compared to the loss
before income tax of approximately HK$9,734,000 for the
Corresponding Period.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Profit/(loss) and total comprehensive income for the year

The profit and total comprehensive income for the Reporting
Period was approximately HK$5,880,000 compared to
the loss and total comprehensive income of approximately
HK$7,942,000 for the Corresponding Period. During the
Reporting Period, the removal of the social distancing
measures in pubs, clubs and entertainment premises
in Hong Kong resulting in increase in operational hours
and the lifting of cross-border travel restrictions have
boosted the operations of the Group. With the combined
effect of the above, the Group’s had recorded profit and
total comprehensive income for the Reporting Period as
compared to a loss for the Corresponding Period.

FINANCIAL POSITION, LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL
RESOURCES

The Group recorded net cash generated from operating
activities of approximately HK$7,065,000 for the Reporting
Period and net cash generated from operating activities of
approximately HK$8,552,000 for the Corresponding Period.
Such drop in net cash generated from operating activities
was primarily due to (i) the increase in trade and other
receivables; and (ii) the decrease in contract liabilities.

As at 31 May 2023, the Group’s total cash and bank
balances (including cash and cash equivalents and restricted
bank deposits) were approximately HK$10,589,000 (2022:
approximately HK$1,578,000). The current ratio (calculated
by current assets divided by current liabilities) of the Group
was 0.81 (2022: 0.22), the difference was due to the Group
had completed placing and rights issue with net proceeds
of approximately HK$5,800,000 and HK$12,000,000,
respectively, during the Reporting Period. The gearing ratio
(calculated by total debts divided by total equity) of the
Group was 90.0% (2022: zero).
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEREE®RD R

CAPITAL STRUCTURE

The capital structure of the Group comprises of issued
share capital and reserves. As at 31 May 2023, the
equity attributable to owners of the Company amounted
to approximately HK$15,574,000 (2022: approximately
HK$6,002,000 deficiency in assets).

Placing of New Shares under General Mandate

On 16 May 2022, the Company entered into a placing
agreement with a placing agent to raise fund to support the
Group’s business operations, strengthen the Company’s
financial position and replenish the Company’s cash reserve.
Pursuant to the placing agreement the Company has
conditionally agreed to place through the placing agent, on
a best effort basis, for up to 199,760,000 ordinary shares
(these were the then existing shares prior to the Share
Consolidation) (aggregate nominal value: HK$1,997,600), to
not less than six placees independent of the Company at
a price of HK$0.03 per placing share (net price per placing
share: approximately HK$0.029 and the closing price of the
share on 16 May 2022: HK$0.031 per share). The placing
shares were allotted and issued pursuant to the general
mandate granted to the Directors at the annual general
meeting of the Company held on 22 October 2021. All the
conditions precedent under the 2022 placing agreement
have been fulfiled and the placing was completed on 8
June 2022. For details of the placing, please refer to the
announcements of the Company dated 16 May 2022 and 8
June 2022.

The net proceeds from the placing of approximately
HK$5,800,000 (gross proceeds: approximately
HK$5,992,800) of have been fully utilised as the general
working capital as intended to support the operation of the
Group as at the date of this annual report.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Share Consolidation

In order to maintain the trading amount for each board
lot at a reasonable level and to reduce the transaction
and registration costs incurred by the Shareholders and
investors, on 7 October 2022, the Board proposed to
implement the share consolidation on the basis that every
twenty (20) issued and unissued shares of HK$0.01 each
in the share capital of the Company be consolidated into
one (1) consolidated share of HK$0.20 each. The Share
Consolidation was completed on 16 November 2022. After
completion of the Share Consolidation, the issued share
capital of the Company is 59,928,000 shares of HK$0.20
each, and the authorised share capital of the Company is
500,000,000 shares of HK$0.20 each.

For details of the Share Consolidation, please refer to
the circular of Company dated 20 October 2022 and the
announcements of the Company dated 7 October 2022, 10
October 2022 and 14 November 2022.

Rights Issue

In order to provide working capital to support the setting
up and operation of new lounge in Lan Kwai Fong (i.e.
LKF Lounge) as well as routine operation of the Group,
the Company raised funding by way of rights issue of total
number of 29,964,000 ordinary shares (aggregate nominal
value: HK$5,992,800) at a price of HK$0.42 per rights
shares (net price per rights share: approximately HK$0.40,
and the closing price of the Share on 28 December 2022:
HK$0.47 per share) on the basis of one (1) rights share for
every two (2) ordinary shares with par value of HK$0.20 each
to the qualifying Shareholders whose name appear on the
register of members of the Company on 12 January 2023
pursuant to the terms and conditions of the underwriting
agreement entered into by the Company with Silverbricks
Securities Company Limited on 28 December 2022.

All the conditions precedent under the underwriting
agreement have been fulfiled and the right issue was
completed on 27 February 2023. For details of the right
issue, please refer to the announcements of the Company
dated 28 December 2022, 12 January 2023 and 24
February 2023 and the prospectus of the Company dated 3
February 2023.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEREE®RD R

The net proceeds from the rights issue of approximately
HK$12,000,000 (gross proceeds: approximately
HK$12,500,000) have been utilised as in the following
manner as at the date of this report:-

AR PR S R IE$ 38 4 4912,000,0007%8 75 (Fr
BRIE4EEE © #4912,500,0008 7T) » KA E H
ERUTANESER

Use of the net proceeds from Allocation of Utilised net Unutilised
the rights issue HAGFRSTIERFZEMAE  net proceeds proceeds net proceeds
FRiSFRIE EHAN KEVEH®
BHEMNSE FSMIERE FIERIEREE
HK$ million HK$ million HK$ million
BEET BEET BEET
Renovation and other costs and ~ WREIEHEAYE ER 1L 4.0 4.0 =
expenses for setting up lounge EERENEERE
at the leased premises at Lan AR (Hh R
Kwai Fong (any surplus will BRREERERAER—RK
be utilised as general working EEEE)
capital of the Group)
Rent payment relating to leasing (S EFEHABEEYE 1.8 0.6 1.2
of the premises at Lan Kwai Z2MHE
Fong for the first year
General working capital —REEES 6.2 6.2 =
12.0 10.8 1.2
EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD HREHREIE

Placing of New Shares under General Mandate

On 17 May 2023, the Company entered into a placing
agreement with a placing agent to raise fund for setting
up the Wan Chai lounge (i.e. Amante House), inventory
purchases of the lounge and as general working capital of
the Group. Pursuant to the placing agreement, the Company
has conditionally agreed to place through the placing agent,
on a best effort basis, for up to 11,985,600 placing shares
(aggregate nominal value: HK$2,397,120), to not less than
six placees independent of the Company at a price of
HK$0.50 per placing share (net price per placing share:
approximately HK$0.484 and the closing price of the share
on 17 May 2023: HK$0.50 per share). The placing shares
were allotted and issued pursuant to the general mandate
granted to the Directors at the annual general meeting of
the Company held on 14 November 2022. All the conditions
precedent under the placing agreement have been fulfilled
and the placing was completed on 23 June 2023. For details
of the placing, please refer to the announcements of the
Company dated 17 May 2023, 6 June 2023 and 23 June
2023.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

The net proceeds from the placing was approximately
HK$5,800,000 (gross proceeds: approximately
HK$5,992,800) which have been fully utilised as
approximately HK$1,000,000 for the cost and expenses of
setting up the Amante House; approximately HK$4,000,000
for inventory purchasing for the Amante House and
approximately HK$800,000 for general working capital of the
Group.

Capital Reorganisation

In order to provide greater flexibility to the Company to
declare dividends and to undertake any corporate exercise
which requires the use of distributable reserves in the
future, on 26 July 2023, the Board proposed to implement
capital reorganisation which involving (i) the capital reduction
involving the reduction of the par value of each issued Share
from HK$0.20 to HK$0.01 by cancelling the paid up share
capital to the extent of HK$0.19 per issued Share so that
following such reduction, each issued Share with a par
value of HK$0.01 in the share capital of the Company shall
become one new share; and (i) the share premium reduction
involving the reduction of the entire amount standing to the
credit of the share premium account of the Company to
offset the accumulated losses of the Company. Immediately
following the capital reduction becoming effective, each
authorised but unissued Share will be sub-divided into
twenty (20) authorised but unissued new shares with a par
value of HK$0.01 each.

The circular of the capital reorganisation has been
despatched to the Shareholders on 23 August 2023 and
the extraordinary general meeting approving the capital
reorganisation will be held on 8 September 2023. For
details of the capital reorganisation, please refer to the
announcements of the Company dated 26 July 2023 and 16
August 2023 and circular of the Company dated 23 August
2023.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEREE®RD R

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

There are certain risks involved in the operations of the
Group’s business. Set forth below are some of the major
risks that could materially and adversely affect the Group.

1) In order to expand and diversify our outlet network,
we expect to establish more bars and set up more
restaurants in Hong Kong. The food and beverage,
and entertainment industry in Hong Kong is highly
competitive. Our success to branch out is subject
to a number of risks and uncertainties, including
identification of suitable locations and/or securing
of leases on reasonable terms, timely acquisition
of necessary governmental approvals and licences,
ability to hire quality personnel, timely completion
decoration and renovation works, acquisition of
sufficient customer demand, securing of adequate
suppliers and inventory that meet our quality
standards on timely basis, reduction in potentia
cannibalisation effects between the locations of
our outlets and the general economic conditions.
The costs incurred in expansion plans may place
substantial strain on our managerial, operational and
financial resources. As such, we cannot assure that
we can always operate the expand outlets network
on a profitable basis or that any new outlet will
reach the planned operating levels. If any new outlet
experiences prolonged delays in breaking even or
achieving our desired level of profitability or operate
at a loss, our operational and financial resources
could be strained and our overall profitability could be
affected.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

As we lease or license all of the properties on
which our outlets operate, we are exposed to the
fluctuations in the commercial real estate market.
There is no objective way for us to accurately predict
the rental rates in the commercial real estate market
in Hong Kong, and our substantial lease liabilities
expose us to potentially significant risks, including
increasing our vulnerability to adverse economic
conditions, limiting our ability to obtain additional
financing and reducing our cash available for other
purposes. Any non-renewal (whether as a result of the
landlord’s or licensor’s or our decision) or termination
of any of our leases or licence or substantial
increased rentals or licence fees could cause us to
close down the relevant outlet or the need to relocate
to another site, depending on our business needs
or performance from time to time. In such events,
we could face a drop in sales, write off leasehold
improvements, and could incur relocation costs for
renovation, removal and resources allocation, which
could in turn result in financial strain in our operations
and diversion of management resources.

For each of the Corresponding Period and Reporting
Period, our purchases from our largest supplier
accounted for approximately 30.3% and 38.2% of
our total purchases, respectively. We make purchases
from our largest supplier under individual purchase
order, and have not entered into any long term
contract with it. If our largest supplier for any reason
reduces the volume supplied to us or cease to supply
to us, we will need to find alternative suppliers on
similar sale terms and conditions acceptable to us. If
we fail to do so in a timely manner, the operations of
our clubs will be interrupted, our costs may increase
and our business, financial condition, results of
operations and growth prospects may therefore be
materially and adversely affected.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEREE®RD R

To address the above risks and uncertainties, the Directors
will closely monitor the progress of the expansion plan and
to operate the expanded network on a profitable basis. The
Directors will continue to review and evaluate the business
objective and strategy and make timely execution by taking
into account the business risks and market uncertainties.

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENTS HELD

The Group did not hold any significant investment for the
Reporting Period.

MATERIAL ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSAL OF
SUBSIDIARIES

Save as disclosed in this annual report, the Group did
not carry out any material acquisition nor disposal of any
subsidiaries for the Reporting Period.

DIVIDENDS

No dividend has been paid or declared by the Company, or
by any of the companies now comprising the Group for the
Corresponding Period and Reporting Period.

FOREIGN EXCHANGE EXPOSURE

Since most of transactions are denominated in Hong Kong
dollars, the Group is not exposed to significant foreign
exchange exposure.

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

The Group did not have any capital commitments as at 31
May 2022 and 2023.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

The Group did not have any significant contingent liabilities
as at 31 May 2022 and 2023.

PLEDGE OF ASSETS

The Group did not have any restricted bank deposit that
were pledge to secured bank borrowings as at 31 May 2022
and 2023.

20  New Amante Group Limited HEEEBEABRAT

HTEHLARBRAIRERR  EFREY
ERBEBRAZNEERURBANEELSER
REE -BEEREERS RFLEFERER
oI REBEFRBRATHEIEERRER
REITARBIREARE-

FRFEARE
RREBE FEETEFEENEARSE

EXRBRIEMBRTE

BRI AFRPAMESEIN RSB A%
BUrEETENEANBAHEETAHRBEA
3o

35

REFRARKRS B X AT N A% EREF
ETEAASHERNIEIRRE -

5 BE L B

MR AREDRZUBTEE HAEE L EHE
BREAIERRE-

B KR

R2022F K2023F5H31H  AEF T EE K
FEIE o

FARERE
20228 %2023F5H831H » KE & #E T 7
ERyAEGB

EERF

20225 X2023F5H831H » KEE B E M
SIREBITERABTEREERM TIEF



Management Discussion and Analysis

EMPLOYEES REMUNERATION

As at 31 May 2023, the Group employed 88 employees
(2022: 59 employees) and the gender ratio in the
workforce was approximately 54.5% male and 45.5%
female. Employee benefit expenses (including Directors’
remuneration, wages, salaries, performance related
bonuses, other benefits and contribution to defined
contribution pension plans) amounted to approximately
HK$16,569,000 for the Reporting Period (2022:
approximately HK$13,163,000). Brief summary of the
remuneration policy of the Group is set out in page 31 of this
annual report.

OUTLOOK

As a result of the Hong Kong Government easing the
anti-pandemic measures during the fourth quarter of the
Reporting Period, the pandemic has broadly eased in Hong
Kong. The bars and restaurants industry in Hong Kong
gets back on track gradually. Moreover, with the re-opening
of the border with PRC and other international countries,
cross-border activities have been resumed, which has
improved economic prospects. We have observed that the
revenue of the Group was benefited not only from the local
consumption, but also from the tourist consumption, which
led to positive financial results for the Reporting Period.
The management of the Group will closely monitor the
impact on the business inflicted by the change of mode of
consumption after the pandemic.

Besides maintaining a competitive position in the bars and
restaurants sector, the Group has been expanding and
developing along its principal businesses. As disclosed in
the announcements of the Company published during the
Reporting Period and up to the date of report, the Group has
launched new cigar lounges in Lan Kwai Fong and Wan Chai
which has diversified its business.

While the Group delivered a promising financial result for
the Reporting Period, the management of the Group will
continue to devise stringent financial plans to respond the
future challenges. Dedicated resources will be allocated
to revenue-generating operations in order to maintain a
competitive edge in market and enhance diversification.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEREE®RD R

In order to cope with the fast changing environment, the
Group has devised plans to cement our lead and share
in market by (i) identifying weaknesses of the operations
on an on-going basis and impose improvement via review
by frontline managers regularly; (i) keeping upgrade of
standards and qualities of facilities and refurbishment of
our premises to keep our clientele satisfied; (iii) enhancing
cooperation with suppliers and landlords for better terms to
make ends meet; and (iv) reviewing the operational efficiency
and stringent cost control measures.

The Group is committed to strengthen our core competency
to keep abreast of the latest trends, analyse the situation
and adjust our strategies from time to time to minimise
the business risk and bring favourable returns to our
Shareholders.
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Biographical Details of Directors

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Wong Chi Yung, aged 40, has been appointed as
a non-executive Director and the chairman of the Board
on 1 March 2021 and re-designated as an Executive
Director, Chairman, CEO and compliance officer of the
Company on 12 July 2021 and appointed as an authorised
representative of the Company on 14 March 2022. Mr. Wong
obtained a bachelor’s degree of Business Administration in
Finance and Management from the Hong Kong University
of Science and Technology. Mr. Wong has extensive
experience in accounting and corporate finance. He is
currently an independent non-executive director of Polyfair
Holdings Limited (stock code: 8532). He was a licensed
representative under the SFO to carry out Type 6 regulated
activity (advising on corporate finance) in INCU Corporate
Finance Limited (from July 2016 to April 2021). He was also
an executive director (from April 2015 to July 2016) and
a non-executive director (from July 2016 to June 2019) of
China Information Technology Development Limited (stock
code: 8178).

Ms. Liu Huijing, aged 40, has been appointed as an
Executive Director and the vice-chairman of the Board
on 3 April 2023. Ms. Liu has extensive experience in
entertainment, brand promotion and business management,
she has been working in New Sparkle Roll International
Group Limited (“New Sparkle”, a company listed on the
main board of the Stock Exchange (stock code: 970))
since 2006, responsible for overseeing marketing and
brand management of world-renowned high-end luxury
brands represented by New Sparkle or associated with
it in Shanghai, including Davidoff, Richard Mille, DeWitt,
Parmigiani, Boucheron and Rolls-Royce. She is currently the
deputy general manager, investment manager and assistant
to the group’s chairman of New Sparkle and is responsible
for the operation of the group’s film and television and media
sections. Ms. Liu obtained a master’s degree in marketing
from the University of Hertfordshire in the United Kingdom
in 2011. Ms. Liu currently holds 4,265,250 shares of the
Company.
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Biographical Details of Directors

EFREFS

Ms. Lui Lok Yan, aged 34, has been appointed as an
Executive Director on 3 May 2022. Ms. Lui served in various
securities and asset management companies and has over
5 years of experience in fund management, investment
analysis and assets management. Ms. Lui was a licensed
representative under the Securities and Futures Commission
in accordance with the SFO to carry out Type 1, 4 and 9
regulated activities. Ms. Lui obtained a bachelor’'s degree of
science from Aston University, United Kingdom in 2010.

INEDS

Mr. Pong Chun Yu, aged 45, has been appointed as
an independent non-executive Director on 22 January
2021. He is also the chairman of the audit committee and
remuneration committee and a member of the nomination
committee. Mr. Pong is an associate member of The Hong
Kong Institute of Directors and fellow member of Hong Kong
Institute Certified of Public Accountants. Mr. Pong was
the financial controller of Sunny Side Up (Never) Limited,
an indirect wholly owned subsidiary of Sun Entertainment
Group Limited (stock code: 8082) (from December 2016 to
November 2018.) He was a financial manager of Television
Broadcasts Limited (a company listed on main board of
the Stock Exchange (stock code: 511)) (from April 2022
to September 2022). Mr. Pong graduated from the Hong
Kong Baptist University in 2000 with a bachelor’s degree in
Business Administration (Accounting).

Mr. Hui Wai Hung, aged 33, has been appointed as an
independent non-executive Director on 16 February 2021.
He is a member of each of the nomination committee and
audit committee and remuneration committee. Mr. Hui
obtained a degree of Bachelor of Commerce in Accounting
and Finance from the University of New South Wales,
Sydney, Australia in 2015. Mr. Hui has experience in retail
and food and beverage sectors over 6 years.

Mr. Jiang Qiaowei, aged 29, has been appointed as an
independent non-executive Director on 16 February 2021.
He is also the chairman of the nomination remuneration
committee and a member of each of the audit committee
and remuneration committee. Mr. Jiang graduated with a
Bachelor of Computer Science from Susquehanna University,
United States in 2016. Mr. Jiang also obtained a Master
degree of Business Administration in Finance from La Salle
University, United States in 2018 and a degree of Bachelor
of Public Policy Management from the Education University
of Hong Kong in 2020.
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Corporate Governance Report

The Board is committed to achieving high standards of
corporate governance by emphasising transparency,
independence, accountability, responsibilities and fairness.
The Board strives to ensure that effective self-regulatory
practices exist to protect the interests of the Shareholders
and to enhance long-term shareholders’ value.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company endeavors to adopt prevailing best corporate
governance practices and has applied the CG Code. The
Board has reviewed the Company’s corporate governance
practices and has formed the opinion that the Company
throughout the Reporting Period and up to the date of
this report, has complied with the CG Code except for the
following deviations.

Pursuant to the code provision C.2.1 of the CG Code, which
stipulates that the roles of chairman and chief executive
officer should be separate and should not be performed by
the same individual. Accordingly, there will be a deviation
from the code provision C.2.1 by the Company as Mr. Wong
Chi Yung is the Chairman and CEO.

Notwithstanding the aforesaid deviation, the Board
considers that the present structure will not impair the
balance of power and authority between the Board and the
management of the Group as the Board assumes collective
responsibility on the decision-making process of the
Company’s business strategies and operation. Nevertheless,
the Company will continue to review its operation and
seek to re-comply with the code provision C.2.1 of the CG
Code by splitting the roles of chairman and chief executive
officer at a time when it is appropriate to increase the
independence of corporate governance of the Group.

Pursuant to code provision D.1.2 of the CG Code, the
management of the Company should provide monthly
updates to the Board to enable the Board and each Director
to discharge their duties. However, given that companies
listed on the GEM board are required to prepare quarterly
financial results, and that no material changes in the Group’s
business operation or performance between months have
been noted in the past, the Company considers that
providing quarterly updates to the Board is sufficient for the
Board and each Director to discharge their responsibilities.
In the event there are any significant updates to be provided,
the Company will update the Board as early as practicable
for discussion and resolution.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE STRUCTURE

The Board is primarily responsible for formulating strategies,
monitoring performance and managing risks of the Group.
At the same time, it also has the duty to enhance the
effectiveness of the corporate governance practices of the
Group. Under the Board, there are three board committees,
namely the audit committee, remuneration committee and
nomination committee. All these committees perform their
distinct roles in accordance with their respective terms of
reference (available on the Company’s website) and assist
the Board in supervising certain functions of the senior
management.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Group adopted rules 5.48 to 5.67 of the GEM Listing
Rules as its own code of conduct regarding Directors’
securities transactions on terms no less exacting than the
required standard of dealings.

Having made specific enquiries with all the Directors and all
the Directors have confirmed they have complied with the
required standard of dealings under the code of conduct
for Directors’ securities transactions during the Reporting
Period.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

At present, the Board of the Company comprises six
Directors as follows:

Executive Directors:

Mr. Wong Chi Yung
(Chairman and CEO)

Ms. Liu Huijing (Vice-chairman of the Board)
(appointed on 3 April 2023)

Ms. Lui Lok Yan

INEDs:

Mr. Pong Chun Yu
Mr. Hui Wai Hung
Mr. Jiang Qiaowei

Biographical details of the Directors are set out in the

section headed “Biographical Details of Directors” on pages
23 to 24.
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Corporate Governance Report

The Board has the responsibility of leading the Company.
They are collectively responsible for promoting the success
of the Group by directing and supervising the Group’s
affairs. The Board is accountable to the shareholders of the
Company for the strategic development of the Group with
the goal of maximising long-term shareholder value, while
balancing broader stakeholder interests.

The attendance record of each Director at Board meetings,
audit committee meetings, remuneration committee
meetings, nomination committee meetings and general
meeting for the Reporting Period is set out in the following
table:

Board
Meetings
(attendance/
total no. of
Name of Directors meeting held)*
EEEF
(LEEH
Y/ B
3z EE LN
Executive Directors HrEZ
Mr. Wong Chi Yung ITERE 1717
Ms. Liu Huling (agpointed on 3 April 2003) YEEat 313
(Fo0255 455 B 51
Ms. Lui Lok Yan BREMLT 1717
Mr. Ng Shing Chun Ray SRARE 12/14
(resigned on 3 April 2023) (Ko0235453A 8 )
INEDs EUFHEE
Mr. Pong Chun Yu BRTAE 1717
Mr. Hui Wai Hung STERLE 1717
Mr. Jiang Qiaowel BBELE 16117

* The Board meetings including 5 written resolution
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Meetings Meetings Meetings Meeting
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meeting held) ~ meeting held) ~ meeting held)  meeting held)
BPZRE §MzEe REZRE REAE

25 (LEeE o5 (LEeE 9% (LEeE (Lg%
Y/ 81 Y/ 87 RY/8F Y/ 87
254y gELY) EELE EELL
NATER NATER NATER 17
NATER NATER NATER NATER
NATER NATER NATER 17
NATER NATER NATER 17
44 2/ 22 111

44 2/ 22 111

44 2/ 22 0/
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All Directors are provided with details of agenda items
for decisions making with reasonable notice. Directors
have access to the advice and services of the company
secretary who is responsible for ensuring that the Board
procedures are complied with and advising the Board on
compliance matters. Directors are also provided with access
to independent professional advice, where necessary, in
carrying out their obligations as Directors, at the expenses of
the Company. Directors who are considered to have conflict
of interests or material interests in the proposed transactions
or issues to be discussed would not be counted in the
quorum of meeting and would abstain from voting on the
relevant resolutions.

All Directors assume the responsibilities owed to the
shareholders of the Company for the well-being and success
of the Company. They are aware of their duties to act in
good faith and in the best interests of the Company.

The Board is responsible for maintaining proper accounting
records so as to enable the Directors to monitor the
Company’s overall financial position. The Board updates
shareholders on the operations and financial positions
of the Group through quarterly, half yearly and annual
results announcements as well as the publication of timely
announcements on other matters as prescribed by the
relevant rules and regulations.

The Company has three INEDs, at least one of whom has
appropriate financial management expertise, in compliance
with the GEM Listing Rules. Each of the INEDs has made
an annual confirmation of his independence pursuant to rule
5.09 of the GEM Listing Rules. The Company is of the view
that all INEDs meet the independence guidelines as set out
in rule 5.09 of the GEM Listing Rules and are independent in
accordance with the terms of the guidelines.

According to the Articles of Association, any Director
appointed by the Board to fill a casual vacancy or as an
addition to the existing Board shall hold office only until
the first general meeting of the Company after his/her
appointment and be subject to re-election at such meeting.
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Corporate Governance Report

APPOINTMENT, RE-ELECTION AND REMOVAL

Each of the executive Directors and INEDs has entered
into a service contract or letter of appointment with the
Company for three years but subject to termination in certain
circumstance as stipulated in the relevant service contracts
or letter of appointment. At each annual general meeting,
one third of the Directors for the time being or, if their
number is not a multiple of three, then the number nearest to
but not less than one third, shall retire from office by rotation
provided that every Director shall be subject to retirement at
an annual general meeting at least once every three years.
Any Director appointed to fill a casual vacancy or as an
addition to the Board shall hold office until the first annual
general meeting of members after his/her appointment and
be eligible for re-election at such meeting.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTION

The Board is responsible for performing corporate
governance duties and has adopted written terms of
reference on its corporate governance functions.

The duties of the Board in respect of the corporate
governance functions include:

(i) developing and reviewing the Company’s policies and
practices on corporate governance;

(ii) reviewing and monitoring the training and continuous
professional development of Directors and senior
management;

(iii) reviewing and monitoring the Company’s policies and
practices on compliance with legal and regulatory
requirements;

(iv) developing, reviewing and monitoring the code of
conduct and compliance manual (if any) applicable to
employees and Directors; and

(v) reviewing the Company’s compliance with the CG
Code and disclosure in the Corporate Governance
Report.

Up to the date of this report, the Board has performed the
corporate governance duties in accordance with its terms of
reference.
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BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

The Board has adopted a board diversity policy (‘Board
Diversity Policy”) setting out the approach to achieve
diversity on the Board. The Company considered diversity
of Board members can be achieved through consideration
of a number of aspects, including but not limited to gender,
age, cultural and educational background, professional
experience, skills and knowledge. All Board appointments
will be based on meritocracy, and candidates will be
considered against objective criteria, having due regard for
the benefits of diversity on the Board.

Selection of candidates will be based on a range of
diversity perspectives, including but not limited to gender,
age, cultural and educational background, professional
experience, skills and knowledge. The ultimate decision will
be made upon the merits and contribution that the selected
candidates will bring to the Board.

Based on recommendations from the Nomination
Committee, the Board will set measurable objectives to
implement the Board Diversity Policy and review such
objectives from time to time to ensure their appropriateness
and ascertain the progress made towards achieving those
objectives. The Nomination Committee will review the Board
Diversity Policy, as appropriate, to ensure its continued
effectiveness from time to time.

As at the date of this report, the Board comprises 4 male
directors and 2 female directors.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Remuneration Committee was set up on 14 March
2017 to oversee the remuneration policy and structure for all
Directors and senior management.

Within terms of reference in compliance with code provision
E.1.2 of the CG Code, the primary objectives of the
Remuneration Committee include making recommendations
to the Board on the remuneration policy and structure
of the Directors and the senior management and
determining the remuneration packages of all Directors
and senior management. The Remuneration Committee
is also responsible to ensure that no Director or any of
his associates will participate in deciding his/her own
remuneration, which will be determined by reference to the
performance of the individual and the Company as well as
market practice and conditions.

30 New Amante Group Limited HEEEBEABRAT

EFEHESTIERE
EXEERMEFENES A ERR(ESE
HMEZTERE) ETHAEBEREFTTNE
ZREMNAH -AREIRXB/EBZHTEERE
EREFENES T BFEERRNMER
FR - XTECREEEE FXLER KERA
H-BFEGMAZERUBAMS BRI
REXDTBEREZFEHNESTIEHNERBRT
UEEREERBANE-

REAERU-RIZTICHEBEREE  1F
BARREN Fik XTREABER -EF
KB - RERMB RERERBEEENE
NERERFABESTGHRNE/MEL -

RERLZEGVERER EFTRHEN
STEERNBERESENES TEHER A
iRt EFERUBRREGEEREEERZ
FEHENEE -RLZEGRIAHREBEERR
BNEFENESTEER URFREKESR
R e

RAERSE EFCEENREUHEEAMA
MBS

NEEE
HINEZEESN2017E38148% 1 UEBERE
BEERSREEBIHNBE REE-

ENAEXEEARTRNTAMRXEEAN 2R
BREELERN FHEZE SN IEEREEME
EhEREEENFNERARREONEFTTR
HEBER UKEEMBEEShGREEE
MM EE - FMEE T TEERFESTHH
ERBBAANSSHEBEEEB I HM > AR
MR 2EB|ARELRBNEREUARTHER KR
15 I T & RE e



Corporate Governance Report

During the Reporting Period, the Remuneration Committee
held two meetings.

The Remuneration Committee comprises three INEDs,
namely:

Mr. Pong Chun Yu (Chairman)
Mr. Hui Wai Hung
Mr. Jiang Qiaowei

Remuneration Policy of the Group

The remuneration policy of the Group is designed to ensure
that remuneration offered to the Directors and/or employees
is appropriate for the respective duties performed,
sufficiently compensate them for the effort and time
dedicated to the affairs of the Group, and is competitive and
effective in attracting, retaining and motivating employees.
The key components of the Company’s remuneration
package include basic salary, and where appropriate, other
allowances, incentive bonus, mandatory provident funds
and share options granted (if any) under the Share Option
Scheme. Details of the Share Option Scheme are set out on
pages 77 to 80 of this annual report.

The emoluments payable to Directors are determined with
reference to the responsibilities, qualifications, experience,
duties, performance of the Directors, prevailing market
conditions and remuneration benchmark with directors of
listed companies of similar size and industry nature. They
include incentive bonus primarily based on the results of
the Group and share options granted (if any) under the
share option scheme of the Company. The Remuneration
Committee performs review on the emoluments of the
Directors from time to time. No Director, or any of his
associates or executive, is involved in deciding his own
emoluments.

Employees’ remuneration packages are determined
with reference to the responsibilities, qualifications and
experience, duties and performance of individuals as well as
prevailing market compensation packages. The packages
are reviewed annually and as required from time to time.
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The Group will spend resources in training, retention
and recruitment programs, and encouraging staff for
self-development and improvements. The Group keeps
monitoring and evaluating the performance of managerial
staff, aiming to achieve continuous improvements and
correction of deficiencies.

The Group believes that direct and effective communication
is essential for the establishment of good relations between
the management and employees. The Group receives
comments and suggestions from employees through internal
networks and the suggestion box, and adopts and analyzes
related comments and suggestions, and rewards those
providing recommendations.

Directors’ and the Five Highest Paid Individuals’
Emoluments

The Directors’ fees and remuneration and the emoluments of
the five highest paid individuals during the year are disclosed
in note 10 to the consolidated financial statements of this
annual report.

The contributions to pension scheme of Directors for the
year are disclosed in note 39 to the consolidated financial
statements of this annual report.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Nomination Committee was set up on 14 March 2017
for making recommendations to the Board on appointment
of Directors and succession planning for the Directors.

Within terms of reference in compliance with code provision
B.3.1 of the CG Code, the principal duties of the Nomination
Committee include reviewing the Board composition,
making recommendations to the Board on the appointment
and succession planning of Directors, assessing the
independence of the independent non-executive Directors
and viewing the Board Diversity Policy.

In accordance with the Articles of Association, Ms. Liu
Huijing, Mr. Hui Wai Hung and Mr. Jiang Qiaowei shall retire
and being eligible, offer themselves for re-election at the
forthcoming annual general meeting. No Directors proposed
for re-election at the forth coming AGM has an unexpired
service contract which is not determinable by the Group
within one year without payment of compensation, other
than normal statutory obligations.
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Nomination Policy

The Board has adopted the following policies for the
nomination of Directors:

Selection Criteria

In assessing and selecting candidates for Directors, the
Nomination Committee shall consider the following non-
exhaustive list of factors:

° the candidate’s character and integrity, professional
skills and experience;

o the potential contributions that a candidate can bring
to the Board in terms of diversity of gender, age,
culture and educational background etc.;

° whether the candidate meets the required
independence criteria as set out in the GEM Listing
Rules;

° whether the candidate is willing and able to devote
sufficient time to fulfill the duties of being a Director;
and

° such other perspectives appropriate to the

Company'’s business.

Nomination Procedures

The evaluation, recommendation, nomination, selection and
appointment or re-appointment of each proposed Director
shall be assessed and considered by the Nomination
Committee and the Board against the Selection Criteria and
the Board Diversity Policy.

In the context of appointment of any proposed candidate
to the Board, after the Nomination Committee receives the
proposal to appoint a new Director or the nomination from
a shareholder, the Nomination Committee shall evaluate
the candidate’s eligibility to serve as a Director based on
the above criteria in combination with his or her personal
profile. If multiple candidates are involved, the Nomination
Committee shall prioritize them according to the Company’s
needs and candidates’ respective qualification.

In the case of the re-appointment of a Director at the
forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company, the
Nomination Committee shall review the overall contribution
of the Directors and their services, their participation and
performance within the Board and whether such Director still
meets the above selection criteria.
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During the Reporting Period, the Nomination Committee held
two meetings.

The Nomination Committee comprises three INEDs namely:

Mr. Jiang Qiaowei (Chairman)
Mr. Hui Wai Hung
Mr. Pong Chun Yu

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee was set up on 14 March 2017 with
written terms of reference in compliance with Code Provision
D.3.3 of the CG Code that set out the authorities and duties
of the Audit Committee. The Audit Committee performs,
amongst others, the following functions:

° Review financial information of the Group

° Review relationship with and terms of appointment of
the external auditor

° Review the Company’s financial reporting system,
internal control system and risk management system.

During the Reporting Period, the Audit Committee held four
meetings. The Audit Committee oversees the internal control
system of the Group, reports to the Board on any material
issues and makes recommendations to the Board.

The Audit Committee comprises three INEDs, namely:

Mr. Pong Chun Yu (Chairman)
Mr. Hui Wai Hung
Mr. Jiang Qiaowei

The chairman of the Audit Committee possesses the
appropriate professional qualifications or accounting
or related financial management expertise. None of the
members of the Audit Committee is a former partner of the
Company'’s existing external auditor.
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During the Reporting Period, the Audit Committee has
held meetings with the Company’s auditor and/or the
management of the Company to discuss the auditing, risk
management, internal control systems, the effectiveness of
the internal audit function and financial reporting matters of
the Group. The Audit Committee has reviewed the Group’s
consolidated financial statements for the Year, the first
quarterly report for the three months ended 31 August 2022,
the interim financial report for the six months ended 30
November 2022 and the third quarterly report for the nine
months ended 28 February 2023, including the accounting
principles and practice adopted by the Group.

DIVIDEND POLICY

The Company has adopted a dividend policy that aims to
provide the guidelines for the Board to determine whether
dividends are to be declared and paid to the Shareholders
and the level of dividend to be paid. Under the dividend
policy, in deciding whether to propose a dividend and in
determining the dividend amount, the Board shall take into
account, among others,

° the Group’s actual and expected financial
performance;
o the Group’s expected working capital requirements,

capital expenditure requirements and future
expansion plans;

° retained earnings and distributable reserves of the
Company and each member of the Group;

° the Group'’s liquidity position;

° the general economic conditions and other internal
or external factors that may have an impact on the
business or financial performance and position of the
Group; and

° any other factors that the Board deems appropriate.

The declaration and payment of dividends by the Company
shall remain to be determined at the sole discretion of the
Board and is also subject to any restrictions under the
Companies Law of the Cayman Islands, the GEM Listing
Rules, the laws of Hong Kong and the Company’s articles of
associations and any other applicable laws and regulations.
The Company does not have any pre-determined dividend
distribution ratio. The Company’s dividend distribution
record in the past may not be used as a reference or basis
to determine the level of dividends that may be declared or
paid by the Company in the future.
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The Company will continually review the Dividend Policy
and reserves the right in its sole and absolute discretion
to update, amend and/or modify the dividend policy at any
time, and the dividend policy shall in no way constitute a
legally binding commitment by the Company that dividends
will be paid in any particular amount and/or in no way
obligate the Company to declare a dividend at any time or
from time to time.

INTERNAL CONTROLS AND RISK MANAGEMENT

The Board and the Audit Committee acknowledge their
responsible for maintaining sound and effective internal
control systems in order to safeguard the Group’s assets
and Shareholders’ interests, and review and monitor the
effectiveness of the Company’s internal control and risk
management systems annually so as to ensure that internal
control and risk management systems in place are adequate.
The Company also has a process for identifying, evaluating
and managing the significant risks to the achievement of
its operational objective. The risk management and internal
control systems are designed to manage rather than
eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business objective,
and can only provide reasonable but not absolute assurance
against material misstatement or loss. This process is
subject to continuous improvement up to the date of this
annual report. The day-to-day operation is entrusted to
each individual department, which is accountable for its own
conduct and performance, and is required to strictly adhere
to the policies set by the Board. The Company carries out
reviews on the effectiveness of the internal control systems
from time to time in order to ensure that they are able to
meet and deal with the dynamic and ever-changing business
environment.
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The Directors have reviewed the need for an internal audit
function and are of the view that in light of the size, nature
and complexity of the business of the Group, it would be
more cost effective not to appoint external independent
professionals to perform internal audit function for the
Group. Currently, the financial controller of the Company
oversee such a function. The Company has engaged an
Internal Control Consultant to conduct independent review
on the internal control systems of the Group. Internal control
review report were submitted to and approved by the Board
and the Audit Committee. For the principal risks faced
by the Group, the Management has developed ongoing
mitigating measures to manage such risks. For control
weaknesses identified by the Internal Control Consultant,
the Group has adopted enhanced control measures to
rectify relevant control weaknesses. The abovementioned
annual review covered material controls, including financial,
operational and compliance controls and risk management
functions of the Group. The Board considered that the risk
management and internal control systems of the Group were
effective during the Reporting Period. The improvement
of the systems of risk management and internal control is
an ongoing process and the Board maintains a continuing
commitment to strengthen the Group’s environment control
and processes.

The Board and the Audit Committee have conducted an
annual review and considered that the internal control and
risk management systems is effective and adequate, and in
compliance with the code provisions as set out in the CG
Code, and that there have adequate resources, qualifications
and experience, training and budget of the accounting,
internal audit and financial reporting functions.
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ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing
the annual consolidated financial statements of the
Company which give a true and fair view of the state of
affairs, results and cash flows of the Group for the Reporting
Period.

The Board is responsible for presenting a balanced, clear
and understandable assessment of annual and interim
reports, inside information announcements and other
disclosures required under the GEM Listing Rules and other
statutory and regulatory requirements.

The Management has provided to the Board such
explanation and information as are necessary to enable
the Board to carry out an informed assessment of the
Company’s consolidated financial statements which are put
to the Board for approval.

The Directors were aware that the Group’s net current
liabilities were approximately HK$7,399,000 as at 31 May
20283. These conditions indicate the existence of a material
uncertainty which may cast significant doubt about the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern.

Notwithstanding the above conditions, the financial
statements were prepared based on the assumption that the
Group can be operated as a going concern.

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE

The Board is responsible for effective governance and
oversight of the environmental, social and governance
matters, as well as assessment and management of material
environmental and social risks. The ESG Report is prepared
in accordance with the ESG Reporting Guide, and which is
set out in pages 44 to 70 of this annual report.
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HANDLING AND DISSEMINATION OF INSIDE
INFORMATION

The Company discloses information in compliance with
the GEM Listing Rules, and publishes periodic reports and
announcements to the public in accordance with the relevant
laws and regulations. The primary focus of the Company
is to ensure information disclosure is timely, fair, accurate,
truthful and complete, thereby enabling shareholders,
investors as well as the public to make rational and informed
decisions.

The Group has put in place the procedures and internal
controls for the handling and dissemination of inside
information. The Group discloses inside information to
the public as soon as reasonably practicable unless the
information falls within any of the safe harbours as stated
in the SFO. Before the information is fully disclosed to the
public, the Group ensures the information is kept strictly
confidential. If the Group believes that the necessary
degree of confidentiality cannot be maintained or that
confidentiality may have been breached, the Group would
immediately disclose the information to the public. The
Group is committed to ensure that information contained in
announcements or circulars are not false or misleading as to
a material fact, or false or misleading through the omission
of a material fact in view of presenting information in a clear
and balanced way, which requires equal disclosure of both
positive and negative facts.

COMPANY SECRETARY

The Company Secretary is responsible for ensuring
that Board procedures are followed and facilitating
communications among Directors as well as with
shareholders and management.

Ms. Sun Shui was appointed as the Company Secretary on
16 February 2021 and is responsible for overseeing all the
company secretarial matters of the Group.

Ms. Sun confirmed that, she has taken not less than 15
hours of relevant professional training.
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EXTERNAL AUDITOR AND AUDITOR’S
REMUNERATION

The statement of the external auditor of the Company on
their reporting responsibilities and opinion on the Group’s
financial statements for the Reporting Period is set out in
the section headed “Independent Auditor’'s Report” in this
annual report.

The Audit Committee is responsible for considering the
appointment of the external auditor and reviewing any non—
audit functions performed by the external auditor, including
whether such non-audit functions could lead to any potential
material adverse effect on the Company.

The fees paid/payable to BDO Limited in respect of the audit
services and non-audit services for the Reporting Period are
set out as follows:

5 B 12 B4 BT 2 4% 24 B 7 A

AABIEZBMAERREETHNERARE A
EENBEHBNMBRERFEHNER N
AERBUZBEMRE ) — -

BREZETEEEBIINEREMNEZEIRER
SIS BB ETTRIERIFE B B EEE
FERHESEHARTELEEMNBEEERT

A

REBESHBEN BN FEBILEERG T
EBFARARNBRBAERRGT RIFELRBEN
BER#HINWT

Fee paid/payable

Bt &R

HK$’000

FET

Audit services EIZIRTE 650
Total 4m st 650

INDUCTION AND CONTINUING PROFESSIONAL
DEVELOPMENT

Pursuant to the code provision C.1.1 of the CG Code, newly
appointed Director(s) should receive a comprehensive,
formal and tailored induction on appointment. Pursuant
to the code provision C.1.4 of the CG Code, all Directors
should participate in a programme of continuous
professional development (“CPD”) to develop and refresh
their knowledge and skills and to ensure that their
contribution to the Board remains informed and relevant.
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During the Reporting Period, all the Directors have
participated in the CPD and/or induction and the relevant
details are set out below:

Name of Directors

EEXEELRRS

RREHE 2REFHESURREXLRE
K/ SHERN > BREFIEHEIIWMT ¢

CPD Participation

(note 1)
EExgs SARBEEXRER
(Hiat1)
Yes/No
R/B
Executive Directors HITEE
Mr. Wong Chi Yung FEBERE Yes 2
Ms. Liu Huijing (appointed on 3 April 2023) ZIBIBE UL (12023453 HEZET) Yes 2
(note 2) (fffa#2)
Ms. Lui Lok Yan ERMuL L Yes &
Mr. Ng Shing Chun Ray (resigned on 3 April 2023) RE& %4 (11202344534 5 1F) Yes 2
INEDs BUFRTEE
Mr. Pong Chun Yu BiRFRE Yes 2
Mr. Hui Wai Hung R L Yes 2
Mr. Jiang Qiaowei BERRE Yes 2
note (1):  Participation in CPD includes attending seminars, reading relevant  piz27) S @S % RS HEOESMAS E  BIHEEASE
materials in relation to the business of the Group, directors’ duties, .%}k EEBS GEMLIH B R R E M
latest development of the GEM Listing Rules and other applicable eSS EARMNEREME -
regulatory requirements.
note (2): Including an induction provided by the Company. Ht5(2): BIER AN BIREN IR
CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENT SEXH
A special resolution was passed at the AGM held on 14 o022 F11BA14AHETHEEBEEAD 8

November 2022 to amend the memorandum and articles
of association of the Company and adopt the new M&A
to reflect the changes of the relevant laws of the Cayman
Islands and the GEM Listing Rules and other consequential
and housekeeping changes. A consolidated version of the
Company’s constitutional documents is available on the
Company’s website and the website of the Stock Exchange.

COMMUNICATIONS WITH SHAREHOLDERS AND
INVESTORS

The Company believes that maintaining a high level of
transparency is a key to enhance investor relations. It is
committed to a policy of open and timely disclosure of
corporate information to its shareholders and investment
public.
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The Company updates the Shareholders on its latest
business developments and financial performance through
its annual, interim and quarterly reports. The corporate
website of the Company (www.new-amante.com) has
provided an effective communication platform to the public
and the shareholders.

SHAREHOLDER COMMUNICATION

The objective of shareholder communication is to
provide the Shareholders with detailed information about
the Company so that they can exercise their rights as
shareholders in an informed manner.

The Company uses a range of communication tools to
ensure the Shareholders are kept well informed of key
business imperatives. These include annual general meeting,
annual report, various notices, announcements and circulars.
The annual general meeting and other general meetings
of the Company are primary forums for communication
between the Company and its shareholders. The Company
provides shareholders with relevant information on the
resolution(s) proposed at general meetings in a timely
manner in accordance with the GEM Listing Rules. The
information provided is reasonably necessary to enable
shareholders to make an informed decision on the proposed
resolution(s).

PROCEDURES FOR SHAREHOLDER TO CONVINCE
AN EXTRAORDINARY GENERAL MEETING

There are no provisions allowing shareholders to propose
new resolutions at the general meetings under the Cayman
Islands Companies Act. However, Shareholders are
requested to follow article 64 of the Articles of Association
which provides that extraordinary general meetings should
be convened on the requisition of one or more Shareholders
holding, on the date of deposit of the requisition, not less
than 10% of the voting rights (on a one vote per share basis)
in the issued share capital of the Company. Such requisition
shall be made in writing to the Board or the company
secretary of the Company for the purpose of requiring an
extraordinary general meeting to be called by the Board for
the transaction of any business specified in such requisition.
Such meeting shall be held within 2 months after the deposit
of such requisition. If the Board fails to proceed to convene
an extraordinary general meeting within 21 days of the
deposit of the requisition, the requisitionist(s) may convene
an extraordinary general meeting himself/themselves, and
all reasonable expenses incurred by the requisitionist(s) as a
result of the failure of the Board shall be reimbursed to the
requisitionist(s) by the Company.
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PROCEDURES FOR SHAREHOLDER TO PROPOSE
PERSON FOR ELECTION AS A DIRECTOR

The provisions for a Shareholder to propose a person
for election as a Director of the Company are laid down
in article 113 of the Articles of Association. No person,
other than a retiring Director, shall, unless recommended
by the Board for election, be eligible for election to the
office of Director at any general meeting, unless notice in
writing of the intention to propose that person for election
as a Director and notice in writing by that person of his
willingness to be elected shall have been lodged at the
principal office of the Company or at the Hong Kong Branch
Share Registrar. The period for lodgment of the notices
required under the Articles of Association will commence no
earlier than the day after the despatch of the notice of the
general meeting appointed for such election and end no later
than 7 days prior to the date of such general meeting and
the minimum length of the period during which such notices
to the Company may be given will be at least 7 days.

PROCEDURES FOR SENDING ENQUIRIES TO THE
BOARD

Shareholders may send written enquiries to the Company,
for the attention of compliance officer, by email:
edwin108@new-amante.com, or mail to 25/F., China
Huarong Tower, 60 Gloucester Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong.
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ABOUT THIS REPORT

The Group regards corporate social responsibilities as
one of the core values of its business operations for
sustainable development. The Group persistently strives to
operate its business in an economic, environmentally, and
socially sustainable manner. The Group is keenly aware of
the importance of balancing its business needs with the
stewardship of the natural environment, the need to meet
market demand for resources, and the need to achieve a
harmonious development of society.

The Company presents this ESG Report for
the Reporting Period, in accordance with the
“Environmental, Social and Governance Reporting
Guide” as set out in Appendix 20 to GEM Listing Rules
and based on the material aspects of the Group and
stakeholders.

The ESG Report has complied with the “comply or
explain” provisions set out in the “Environmental, Social
and Governance Reporting Guide” under Appendix 20 to
the GEM Listing Rules. We value your feedback regarding
the review and our overall sustainability practices. Please
provide your comments by email to amante.house@new-
amante.com.

This ESG Report serves to provide details of the Company’s
ESG policies and initiatives of its major operating segment in
Hong Kong, which is principally engaged in the operation of
club, entertainment and restaurant business.

The Board has the overall responsibility for the Company’s
ESG strategy and reporting, monitoring and managing
the ESG related risks. The management is responsible for
evaluating effectiveness of the ESG risk management and
internal control systems and the management confirms that
these systems are effective to mitigate our ESG related risks.
Assessment of ESG status and progress are conducted on
an ongoing basis. To understand the concerns of various
stakeholders, the Company has engaged and discussed with
various business functions and management personnel, and
identified the following material aspects and has managed
them strictly in accordance with the Group’s policies and
guidelines and in compliance with the relevant legal and
regulatory standards.
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During the Reporting Period, to the best knowledge,
information and belief of the Directors after having made all
reasonable enquiries, no member of the Group had been
involved in any material breach, or non-compliance, with
any applicable environmental laws or regulations, or laws or
regulations relating to employment, employee’s health and
safety, labour standards, product and service responsibility
or corruption that had a significant impact on the Company
or the Group.

GOVERNANCE STRUCTURE
Board’s oversight of ESG issues

The Board has a primary role in directing and overseeing
sustainability initiatives to ensure the effectiveness and
relevance in light of the evolving sustainability landscape.
The Board is committed to incorporating ESG mindset into
the Group’s business operations and responsible for the
long-term sustainability of the Group, including formulating
strategies and overseeing the Group’s ESG related risks
and opportunities. The Board considers ESG-related risks
and opportunities as part of the Company’s overall strategic
formulation.

The Board has delegated the power of sustainability
strategies development and policies implementation to the
management. The management is responsible for executing
projects, evaluating results, monitoring potential risks and
reporting on performance.

ESG management approach and strategy for material
ESG-related issues

To better understand the opinions and expectations of
different stakeholders on the ESG issues, materiality
assessment is conducted annually. The Group ensures
various platforms and channels of communication are used
to reach, listen and respond to its key stakeholders. Through
communication with the stakeholders, the Group is able to
understand their expectations and concerns. The feedbacks
obtained allow the Group to make more informed decisions,
and to better assess and manage the impacts of the
business decisions.

The Group has evaluated the materiality for each of the ESG
aspects through the following steps: (i) identification of ESG
issues by the Group; (i) key ESG areas prioritisation with
stakeholder engagement; and (iii) validation and determining
material ESG issues based on the results of communication
with the stakeholders.
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Taking these steps enhances the understanding of the
expectations and concerns of the Group’s stakeholders on
various ESG issues, which enable the Board to plan the
sustainable development direction to address material ESG-
related issues in the future.

Progress review made against ESG-related goals and
targets

ESG-related goals and targets have been set to provide a
strategic direction for all operations, the progress is closely
reviewed by the Company from time to time. Modification
may be needed if the progress falls short of expectation and/
or change of business operations.

The Group’s sustainability target enables the Company
to develop a realistic roadmap and focus on results of
achieving the visions. The sustainability performance and
progress made against the goals are reported annually to the
Board for review at least annually.

REPORTING PRINCIPLES

This ESG Report is based on the following four reporting
principles:

Materiality: Stakeholder engagement and materiality
assessment were conducted regularly to identify material
ESG issues, and to ensure that these issues are addressed
in the report.

Quantitative: Data presented in this report have been
collected prudently. Please refer to the environmental and
social performance data for standards and methodologies
used for calculation of key performance indicators.

Balance: An unbiased and balanced picture of the
performance has been disclosed in a transparent manner.

Consistency: Unless otherwise stated, the disclosures, data
collection and calculation methods have remained consistent
throughout the years to facilitate comparability over time.

REPORTING BOUNDARIES

This ESG Report covers the Group’s business operation
of clubhouse, entertainment and restaurant in Hong Kong
and has primarily highlighted the major performance and
disclosure for the four environmental aspects and eight
social aspects in the Reporting Period.
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STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENT

Stakeholder engagement plays a core role in the
sustainability of the Group. The Group fully appreciates
the needs to build both online and offine communication
channels and to provide stakeholders with timely reports
on strategic planning and performance of the Group in
order to establish a continuing communication mechanism
with the stakeholders. In addition, the Group consults the
stakeholders on their recommendations and propositions
to ensure its business practices can meet the expectations
of the stakeholders. Through regular engagement with key
stakeholders, the Group is able to identify major concerns
and proceed to formulating a response.

The stakeholders include the shareholders, government and
regulatory bodies, employees, customers, suppliers, society
and the public. The Group discusses with the stakeholders
through various channels about their expectations and
relevant feedback of the Group as below:

Stakeholders Expectations
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&S A
ROENZ2EELAEENAIREERTES
EEB-AEERATHRATERIR LR
BMTHNBERE IARNEERREHAERLE
EERBEIRRBHRE WERAFHER
URFBEBEA UL REBEMFMNEN
BEkEREMMES URFREEBEEL
EIRFOHENRE - BBIEFMHENEHRS
BoXEEEHHITIEHNELEFHES
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Communication and response

FinE HZ &8 K ol FE
Shareholders e Financial results e Improving profitability
f% 2R CUE e Re&NEEN
e ESG performance e Monitoring use of resources
RE-HEREBREN BERERER
e (Corporate transparency e Regular information disclosures
TEFERE EHIE BIRE
e Sound risk control e Optimising risk management and
B2 R R B IE internal control
BIEREEE RN EPEEIE
Government and e Compliance with laws and regulations e Compliance operation
regulatory bodies BTEREER BRAKE
B 1T 582 B 5 1% e Tax payment in accordance with laws e Tax payment in full and on time
LR P B S BB AR R
e Compliance with environmental e Compliance of environmental policies
regulations BTIRIBHBE
ETIRIBER
Employees e Career development platform e Promotion mechanism
(== BEZERERTS BH
e Salary and benefits e Competitive salary and employee
i sz rm A benefits

e Safe working environment
Z2 TFIRIE

BHRFNFHNRETEF

e Providing trainings for employees and
strengthen their safety awareness
REESEINIRMRZ 2 EH
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Stakeholders Expectations

KinE HAZE
Customers e Product (food and beverage) and
g service quality

Ef (B RIRBEXR

e Customer rights and interests

protection

REEXF#ER
Suppliers e Business ethics and credibility
R mEEERES

e Integrity cooperation

MIEEIF

Society and the public
HERAR

Environmental protection
IRIRRE

e Employment opportunities

MERT

MATERIALITY ASSESSMENT

During the Reporting Period, the Group conducted a
comprehensive materiality assessment, which involved
interviews and surveys with internal and external
stakeholders to identify “material issues” and reflect the
environment, social and operational issues which have the
most significant impacts on the Company’s business and the
relevant issues which are of concern to the stakeholders.

With reference to the scope of disclosure as required
under the ESG Reporting Guide, as well as taking into
consideration its business features, the Group has identified
and determined 24 issues covering GHG emission, energy
consumption, employee welfare, occupational health and
safety, training and development, supply chain management,
customer privacy, anti-corruption, and community
investment with respect to its business operation.
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Communication and response

38 R o] fE

e Monitoring customers’ satisfaction level
through enquiry, questionnaire and
social media platforms
UEH BFERARXERTaERER
R E

e Complaint handling mechanism

iz 1 9% o 1% )

e Performing the contracts according to

law
KEBX

e Building a responsible supply chain
BiUIBSENHEERE

e Putting into use environmental

protection and energy saving equipment
FRRRAEERE
e Providing employment opportunities

Rt EXS
EZMTE

REBREHE *EBETEZENEEZ MG
BT R RN R IR P EETHRE
MBI TEREEI RRBRERRE EHRFN
ERINEASEEREATENRE HER

KERRE
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BREHNREE24EEE BEREREH
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The Group’s materiality matrix of ESG issues in the

Reporting Period:

HIGHEST

B[S

= T

0

o

RENSRENEEY
~

IMPORTANCE OF TOPIC TO STAKEHOLDERS

10 11

Environmental issues
RESE

1.

2.

Greenhouse gas emissions
BERBBBIW

Energy consumption and
resource management
SERHERERERE
Water resources management
KEREHE

Waste management
BEEYEIE

Use of packaging materials
BEMEHER

Impact on the environment
HIRBENTZ

Climate change

FIREE
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BEHBAERRE HERELEENER

KB
High Priority
BREL
19° 20
21
22
o
13 1546
1447
126 34 180, :
L
12
4 5 6 7 8 9 10
IMPORTANCE OF TOPIC TO BUSINESS HIGHEST
BEHEBNESY ErS
Social issues Operation issues
HEEEHE REEH
8.  Community contribution 16. Anti-corruption
HeER R&S
9.  Occupational health and 17. Supply chain management
safety 1H 8 B 18
BERENZe 18. Supplier evaluation and
10. Child labour selection
BT 13t 7 72 5 Ak e B 43¢
11. Forced and compulsory 19. Customer service and
labour satisfaction
9838 K5l 55 T BERRBRWEE
12. Development and training 20. Customer privacy
FRE KR Y SN
13. Salaries and employee 21. Feedback and complaint
benefits handling
e REEET [ B8 F 5 Ffv iR T
14. Diversity and equal 22. Product safety and quality
opportunity EnZEkaE
bk FEES 23. Intellectual property protection
15. Talent attraction and retention M EERE
USE A2 N 24. Marketing and labelling
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ENVIRONMENTAL
Emissions

During the Reporting Period, the Group measured
and managed its environmental performance in
several aspects throughout its operations.

The Group is principally engaged in the operation of
club, entertainment and restaurants in Hong Kong.
Throughout the operating process, the relevant
emission includes noise emission, light emission, air
emission and GHG emission.

)

Noise emission

The operation of our clubs, namely Mudita
and Faye, naturally generates music in the
evenings. To minimize noise emission, the
Group installs noise reduction materials and
structure. The locations of our clubs are not in
residential crowded areas. Faye is located at
Lan Kwai Fong, a night entertainment district in
Hong Kong, whereas Paper Street is located at
Bonham Strand in Sheung Wan.

The Group is not aware of any incidents of
non-compliance with laws and regulations that
have a significant impact on the Group relating
to noise emission.

Light Emission

The light emissions should not and do not
cause any disturbance to the public since all
the featured events are conducted inside our
club. To minimize light emission, the Group has
complied with all the relevant laws, ordinances,
rules and regulations in Hong Kong in our
structural construction and operation to ensure
all the lighting systems are properly installed.

The Group is not aware of any incidents of
non-compliance with laws and regulations that
have a significant impact on the Group relating
to light emission.
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iii)

Gas Emission

As cooking process involves the usage of
fuels, restaurant operation inevitably generates
exhaust gases. To protect the vicinity
environment, all of the Group’s restaurants
have strictly complied with the oil fume and
cooking odor requirements as stipulated by
Air Pollution Control Ordinance (Chapter 311
of the laws of Hong Kong). The Company is
committed to executing effective gas emissions
control through the installation and use of
appropriate and efficient filtering equipment
as well as organizing the regular inspection,
maintenance and repair of the ventilation
system.

During the Reporting Period, the major GHG
emissions of the Group were mainly produced
from indirect emissions due to electricity
purchased from The Hong Kong Electric
Company Limited.

Other air pollutants include nitrogen oxides
(“NOx”"), sulphur oxides (“SOx”) and particulate
matter (“PM”), which have adverse effects on
the climate, ecosystems and air quality. The
Group uses electric vehicles which has no
vehicle fuel usage and mainly uses electric
cooktops in the operation of restaurants,
therefore no material emissions of NOXx,
SOx and PM were generated. The Group
generates other air pollutants through town gas
consumption in its operation.

iii)
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The key environmental performance indicators
of the Group’s emissions in the Reporting
Period are shown in the table below:

Air emissions

Environmental Indicators

RIBHER

NOX (Note 1)
ﬁ%ﬂ:#@ (HF5E1)
SOx
el

PM

6 AL

Unit
B

Kg
T
Kg
T
Kg
T

Note 1: The Group has used a gas cooking stove since April

2023.

Reduction target of air emissions

Environmental Indicators

IRIBHEIR

NOx intensity
aetmzE
SOx intensity
matmzE
PM intensity

B Mk E

Reduction Target

AR AR

Maintain minimal generation
REFELEBMY
Maintain minimal generation
REFELEBMY
Maintain minimal generation

RSB A 1R i
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RBEHRRB > ~EB SR EE
RIRIBEWIERHIIN T

RAEHER

2023
20234

0.01

N/A
B
N/A
B

2022
20224

N/A
B
N/A
¥k
N/A
¥k

MizE1 : AEEBE2023F48EB—EHFEAR

Tkt

FASHEREY R HE B AR

Baseline Year

BEF

N/A
NEM
N/A
NEM
N/A
NEM

Status
AR AR

N/A
TEMA
N/A
TEMA
N/A
TEMA



GHG emissions from operation

Environmental Indicators
RIFIEE

Direct emissions (Scope 1)

BiEdm (EE)
Indirect emissions
(SCOpe 2) (Note 1)
EEHEN (EE2) W=D
Other indirect emissions
(Scope 3)
HinEEPe (EES3)
Total GHG emissions MNote 2.3)

BEREIEE a2
GHG emissions

intensity MNote 3. 4
B R

Unit
B i

Tonnes of carbon dioxide
equivalent

W_EICIREE

Tonnes of carbon dioxide
equivalent

W_EICIREE

Tonnes of carbon dioxide
equivalent

W_ESIEIREE

Tonnes of carbon dioxide
equivalent

W_ESIEIREE

Tonnes of carbon dioxide/
HK$ million revenue

ESG Report
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HEEERNRBREREHB

m_etREE BRBTkE

2023 2022
20234 20224
0.1 N/A
Nl

101.4 123
0.7 1.2
102.2 124.2
1.3 2.5

Note 1:

Note 2:

Note 3:

Note 4:

The emission factor of electricity consumed is
sourced from: Hong Kong Electric Sustainability
Report 2022.

GHG emissions can be classified into three scopes:

Scope 1: It represents mainly town gas
consumption by gas cooking stove.

Scope 2: It represents mainly the electricity
purchased from power suppliers.

Scope 3: It represents mainly the paper waste
disposed at landfills and water consumed.

Total GHG emissions and GHG emissions intensity
in 2022 have been restated.

GHG emissions intensity is calculated by dividing
the total GHG emissions by the Group’s total
revenue of club, entertainment and restaurant
business. The Group’s total revenue of club,
entertainment and restaurant business for the
year ended 31 May 2023 was approximately
HK$77,981,000 (2022: HK$50,257,000).

ST FEEMHERRBIRE | 202268
BENRETHRERES

MsE2: BERBHERITIR=ZEER

HEN TRREMRLELENIER
WRRUHFE

#E2 TEIS BN HEREN
BNES -

HES: TEERETHIAENE
MR KFE ©

MiEE3 1 FR2022FMBERBHREER
BEREHIRZECKEY -

MisEd . RERBHNEEDRBERE
HEMU AR 2 R LU AS 52 B P ~ 1R
REEXHENERGETE A&
E & E2023F5831HIEFEN
EF RN EBERNENRR
A 4977,981,000%8 7T (20224 :
50,257,000 7T) °
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Reduction target of GHG emissions
intensity

Environmental Indicators Reduction Target

RIBHER B R

GHG emission intensity
(Scope 1)

RERBEHREE EE1) 2028 Fi L 15%
Reduce 5% by Year 2028

GHG emission intensity
(Scope 2)

RERBHREE E#E2) 2028 Fi L 15%
Reduce 5% by Year 2028

GHG emission intensity

(Scope 3)
RERBHNREE EE3) 2028 FHi L 15%
i) Sewage Discharges and Waste
Management

During the Reporting Period, all of the
Group’s clubs and restaurants have
been granted with the water pollution
control licenses by the Environmental
Protection Department of Hong Kong.
To minimise the environmental impact
from the sewage discharge, the Group
has also installed adequate, efficient and
appropriate equipment to ensure the
sewage has been properly processed
before discharge.

The Group is committed to reducing
waste in its operating activities which
produce non-hazardous wastes
comprising mainly of food wastes,
waste oils, paper wastes and plastic
wastes. The Group hires waste
disposal companies to handle club
and restaurants’ waste collection
and recycling. No material hazardous
wastes are generated from the Group’s
operations of club and restaurants
which serving customers with food, light
refreshment and beverages.

New Amante Group Limited HEEEEERAE

Reduce 5% by Year 2028

mEREHFREENRGEBR

Baseline Year Status
HEF AR BE

2023 In progress

20234 AT

2023 In progress

20234 AT

2023 In progress

20234 TR
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Wastes produced from operation

Environmental Indicators Unit
RIFIEE B i
Non-hazardous wastes Tonnes
produced in total Mot
EXfNEEEEYES WE)

Non-hazardous wastes
produced intensity Mot 1
EEfNEEEEY®EE W&

Tonnes/HK$ million revenue

L= S 6

ESG Report
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Hazardous wastes produced  Tonnes
in total
EFNESEEYHESE U]

Hazardous wastes produced  Tonnes/HK$ million revenue

intensity

EENAEERERVEE

Note 1: The Group has engaged waste management
companies to handle non-hazardous wastes, such
as kitchen waste and food waste. Hence, no data of
non-hazardous waste is maintained.

Reduction target of intensity of non-
hazardous and hazardous wastes produced

Environmental Indicators Reduction Target

IRIBHER AR R

Non-hazardous waste
produced intensity

EENEREERVEE RIFE LB

Hazardous waste produced Maintain minimal generation

intensity
EXNEEBEENZE REFE LMY
Compliance with relevant laws and
regulations

The Group is not aware of any material non-
compliance with the Air Pollution Control
Ordinance, Water Pollution Control Ordinance
and Waste Disposal Ordinance and other
applicable laws and regulations that have
a significant impact relating to air and
greenhouse gas emissions, discharging into
water and land, generation of hazardous and
non-hazardous waste of the Group during
the Reporting Period. In addition, no non-
compliance with relevant laws and regulations
that resulted in significant fine or sanction has
been reported in the Reporting Period.

L= Y= il 6

Maintain minimal generation

KEETHEEY
2023 2022
20234 20224
N/A N/A
B Nl
N/A N/A
B Nl
N/A N/A
B BB
N/A N/A
B BB

Ml 2EECRFEERYEEQTRE
BRIZERY UHEEEYRE
MEERY Bt BERZESE
EMRIBIE -

EENBERERMRESERY
ZENREER

Baseline Year Status
HEF AR BE
N/A N/A
NiEH TEA
N/A N/A
B TEA
BT LEERER

RBREHE ~*EETEFERAE
ERRBERBEREIN @K
Rt s - cEBELEEER
BEEERYVI BERTREER
ERTSREREH KT REH
1% 81) 2 BE F= ) e B 1 1) LA e EL Ath
BREERRER UBEREK
FENBER I REBESHE
wiEREERBREERRERME
HNERIRIBI B S o
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Use of Resources

The resources used by the Group are principally
attributed to the consumption of electricity, water and
paper at the back office and outlets.

Electricity is consumed during the daily business
operations from using electrical equipment. To
promote an environmentally friendly office, the Group
promotes and advises several measures such as:
i) employees are encouraged to switch the electric
equipment to energy saving mode such as the
automatically power down of printers and computers
after a period of inactivity and turn off lightings before
leaving the office and outlets; and ii) temperature
switches are adopted to maintain the workplaces at a
reasonable temperature. The Group’s electric vehicles
are strictly used for transporting management,
customers and for business activities to keep energy
consumption at a minimum.

Although non-significant amounts of water is
consumed through the business activities, the Group
also encourages water saving by driving water-saving
habits and posting green messages in the workplace
to remind the employees to use water effectively.
During the Reporting Period, the Group has not
experienced any difficulty in sourcing water that is fit
for the usage of the Group.

The Group implements measures for reducing
the paper consumption such as: i) double-sided
printing and reuse of single-sided printed papers
are encouraged; and ii) encourage to use more
e-channels to disseminate corporate information.
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RIE-HEKRE
Relevant consumptions from operations RS EEERHE
Resources consumed Unit 2023
BIRHFE B 2023%F
Energy consumption
AEIRIHFE
Electricity consumption kWh 149,110
BIIHFE T BB
Gas consumption Note 1) kWh 240
1R LI FE () T BB
Total energy consumption kWh 149,350
48 BE TR M FE T R
Energy consumption intensity KWh/HK$ million revenue 1,914.7
RERHERE TERE/B8BlsE
Water consumption
IK¥E
Water consumption Cubic metre 1,420
IKFE A K
Water consumption intensity Cubic metre/HK$ million revenue 18.2
KERE MHKBEBTE

Note 1: The Group has used a gas cooking stove since April 2023.

The Group’s operations of club and restaurants mainly
serving customers with food, light refreshment and
beverages, no significant packaging materials were
recorded during the Reporting Period.

Reduction target of resources consumption

Environmental Indicators Reduction Target
RIRIER HHEE R

Energy consumption intensity Reduce 5% by Year 2028
FBERERE 2028 AiE 5%

Water consumption intensity Reduce 5% by Year 2028
IKFERE 2028 AiE 5%

ESG Report

AWE

2022
20224

173,249
N/A
38
173,249

3,444.3

2,762

54.9
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REBESHE ~&F

KEGT K

2R (F2nERRERY VIR
REED) LEEEREREMHK -

HIRHFERNREEB R

Baseline Year

BEF

2023
20234

2023
20234

Status
AR AR

In progress
#EiTH
In progress
#EiTH
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During the Reporting Period, the Group adopted a
series of initiatives for efficient energy use and energy
conservation. Details of such measures and the
related results achieved are listed as follows:

Resources saving measures

HIREAHE

Water conservation

RBRERB ~EBHRA—FT
B WF) R BE R T 81 49 BE R BV $5
Mo EHR MBI RMZERY
MERERIT -

Details and results achieved

FREBRFRRER

Usage of water resources is strictly controlled in the back

office and outlets. All staff is encouraged to save water in
the workplace. As a result, consumption of water has been

reduced.

EGES)EERIN BAEMAERFENKEREAZIBRESN ZBEEET
EILESPRERAI K - IE > KFEB R -

Energy saving

Staff are encouraged to switch the electric equipment to energy

saving mode and turn off lightings before leaving the office and
outlets thus reducing the relevant consumption of electricity.
B9 AE R HRETERANAERFIEARERKREYIRESNERLL

RAPAIRER > MR L HERAE

The Environment and Natural Resources

The Group is committed to reducing the operation
impacts on environment and natural resources.
The Group encourages environmental education
and advocacy among employees to motivate
environmentally responsible behavior which helps
fufil the Group’s commitment to minimizing its
adverse impacts on the environment. During the
Reporting Period, there was no significant impact
on the environment and natural resources from the
operations of the Group.

The Group actively introduces environmental
protection measures in the office spaces and outlets
including turning off electric equipment and lighting
during non-operating hours, posting green messages
in the workplace to remind staff to save water
and reusing of papers. In addition, the Group also
encourages its employees to save resources, cherish
food and avoid wastage of resources.
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Climate Change

Task Force on Climate-related Financial Disclosures
provides a reporting framework for companies to
report their climate-related risks to the stakeholders.
It divided climate-related risks into physical risks
and transition risks, the physical impacts of
climate change and transition risks brought by
decarbonisation could have material impact to the
Group’s operation and development. The Group has
raised its awareness towards the risks and potential
impacts on the Group due to climate change. The
Group has identified the climate-related risks that
may adversely impact the Group’s operations and
development.

The Group understands that the climate change
has posed existential threats to the world and its
operation, and the Group must put effective measures
in place to protect its operations from potential
disruptions and damages caused by them. Such
risks include physical risks such as typhoon and
rainstorms potentially leading to loss of electrical
power and property damage and staff casualty as
well as transition risks such as policy and regulatory
changes.

In response to these, the Group regularly reviews
global and local government policies, regulatory
updates and market trends to identify potential
climate-related risks which may have an impact
on the Group’s business operation. The Group will
develop a response plan when necessary such as
by changing the business strategy and modifying the
development plan in order to reduce the negative
impacts of such climate-related risks.

The Group will continuously incorporate sustainable
practices in its business operations and prepare and
maintain sufficient resources for managing identified
climate-related risks and studying the potential
remediation measures.

During the Reporting Period, there was no climate-
related risk, including physical risks and transitional
risks that had a significant impact to the Group.
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B) SOCIAL B) #®
Employment 12 1%

Employee is the foundation of success of the Group. EBEEAREERNIINEG - AXEBRA AN
The Group is an equal opportunity employer and TR BEEPRFEHB MR &
no discrimination is tolerated on the basis of age, TS EEEE 5R0E Sl U R AR O B9 ]
gender, race, colour, sexual orientation, disability or I 485 o

marital status.

The Company also prohibits any kinds of
discrimination at the workplace, which generally
refer to the gender, pregnancy, marital status, WAR TN BESNKERTEERE & & I
disability, family status, and race in the practices BHEIN KA A ERERHEHTESE
for human resources. Other than the policies for & o

anti-discrimination, the Company provides fair

opportunities for all staff members.

RRBFRIEFE T ESRERTE N
R BESRANEROMR N EZ B

The total number of employees and the distribution
on demographics as of 31 May 2022 and 2023 have
been depicted as below:

FR2022F K 2023%F5831H  BEE4EE
REEHKDMIBERAOT :

60

2023 2022
2023%F 20224
By gender B RE 9
Male 5 48 (54.5%) 42 (71.2%)
Female Z 40 (45.5%) 17 (28.8%)
By age group e E R H B8 2
Under 30 years old 30 AT 44 (50.0%) 29 (49.2%)
30-50 years old 30508 36 (40.9%) 25 (42.3%)
Over 50 years old 5058 M £ 8 (9.1%) 5 (8.5%)
By employment type BEFENE 2
Full-time £ 47 (53.4%) 41 (69.5%)
Part-time 3 41 (46.6%) 18 (30.5%)
By geographical region ¥ it &E 8 9
Hong Kong 5% 88 (100%) 59 (100%)
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During the Reporting Period, the Group’s employee
turnover rate by categories is as follows:

Employee turnover rate BERKE

By gender Mot 4 Bl &Y 4y )
Male z
Female Eoq

By age group Mot "

Under 30 years old 30U T

30-50 years old 30E505%

Over 50 years old 508 M k&

By geographical region Mete ! et & &) o3 (i)
Hong Kong 58

Note 1:

Employee turnover rate is calculated based on the number of
employees who ceased employment in specified category during the
Reporting Period divided by the total number of employees as at the
end of the Reporting Period in specified category.

The Group aims to provide a harmonious and
respectful working environment for the employees
through competitive remuneration packages including
basic salary, commissions, holidays, group insurance
and mandatory provident fund that are comparable to
the market standard and structured to commensurate
with individual responsibilities, qualifications,
experiences and performance. Periodical review is
conducted and the appraisal results provide basis for
annual salary review and promotion appraisal.

The employment contract specified the terms
including scope of work, wages/allowances, working
hours, rest days, dismissal and other benefits and
welfare to the staff. To stay competitive, the Group’s
base salaries are in line with the industry norms.

442 45 B 4B ) 53 00
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2023 2022
20234 20224
89.6% 35.7%
52.5% 11.8%
93.2% 37.9%
63.9% 20.0%
= 20.0%
72.7% 28.8%
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Compliance with relevant laws and regulations

The Group is not aware of any material non-
compliance with the Employment Ordinance,
Employees’ Compensation Ordinance and other
applicable laws and regulations that have a
significant impact relating compensation and
dismissal, recruitment and promotion, working
hours, rest periods, equal opportunity, diversity, anti-
discrimination and other benefits and welfare on the
Group during the Reporting Period. In addition, no
non-compliance with relevant laws and regulations
that resulted in significant fine or sanction has been
reported in the Reporting Period.

Health and Safety

The Group realises that ensuring the health and safety
of employees are very important to the business
operations of the Group and therefore we make every
effort to build and maintain a working environment
which is free from workplace health and safety
incidents.

The Group follows safety manuals issued by the
Occupational Safety of Health Council which set out
work safety measures to prevent common accidents
which could happen in the outlets. Managers are
responsible to ensure compliance of safety, hygiene
and fire requirements by conducting checks and
inspections of the premises regularly such as fire exit
passageway shall be kept clear from obstruction. Fire
extinguishers and other equipment shall be kept at
the correct location and that they are accessible and
remain free from obstruction.
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The Group has engaged a third-party security
company for the clubs which will provide a team
of security staff, working under the supervision of
the club managers. The roles of the security team
cover performing patrolling, attending the scene and
liaising with customers to stop any potential fights in
case of arguments or any fights or other suspicious
circumstances, and reporting fights, drug use, theft
and harassments to the police when necessary. The
Group has established safety and anticrime manual,
which is implemented strictly by the security team.
The club managers are responsible for coordinating
with the security team.

The Group implements headcounts and identity
checking procedures at the entrance of the premises
of the clubs to monitor the number of guests inside
the premises and whether the customers are above
18 years old when entering into the clubs. In order
to spot potential illegal activities such as fights, drug
abuse or theft at an early stage, CCTVs are installed
inside the club premises. The security team will attend
the scene investigate immediately if any suspicious
circumstance arises or stop any potential fight inside
the premises once identified.

The below table shows the work-related fatalities and
recordable injury for the three years ended 31 May
2021, 2022 and 2023:

Notification of accident EiEm

Number of work related fatalities ATET A

Rate of work-related fatalities A TIET EE=

Lost days due to work injury R TEMmELRNEXH
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2023 2022 2021
20234 20225 20214
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Compliance with relevant laws and regulations

The Group is not aware of any material non-
compliance with Occupational Safety and Health
Ordinance and other applicable laws and regulations
that have a significant impact on providing a safe
working environment and protecting employees
from occupational hazards of the Group during the
Reporting Period. In addition, no non-compliance
with relevant laws and regulations that resulted in
significant fine or sanction has been reported in the
Reporting Period.

Development and Training

As part of the Group’s initiatives for improving
business performance and encouraging personal
development of the staff, the Group strives to provide
comprehensive development to the employees.

The Group has provided training across different
operational functions, including induction training
for new employees, technical training, and training
to enhance the employees’ knowledge, skill level
and quality when performing their duties. For the
bartenders and cooks, the Group encourages them to
take courses to further enhance their technical skills.
The senior management also gives regular training to
the staff in relation to customer service skills.

During the Reporting Period, a staff has attended an
external training programme, Basic Food Hygiene
Certificate for Hygiene Supervisors, to enhance food
hygiene and safety knowledge.
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During the Reporting Period, the percentage of
employees trained is as follows:

ESG Report
RIE-HEREGRS

RREHBE ZIEEEDLEWMT :

2023 2022
2023%F 20224
Percentage of employees ZHlES 7kt e 106% 144%
trained Mot 1
Employees trained by gender "o 2 $Z14 Bl 8 5 1 Z 3l & W2
Male B 59% 80%
Female £y 41% 20%
Employees trained by BEFEN S FTHNZIEE W
employment category "2
Senior management BHREEE 1% 1%
Middle management FREIERE 9% 5%
General staff —RET 90% 94%

Note 1: Percentage of employees trained is calculated by dividing
the number of employees who took part in training by the
number of employees as at the end of the Reporting Period.

Note 2: It is calculated by dividing the number of employees trained
in specified category by the total number of employees
trained.

During the Reporting Period, the average training
hours completed per employee are as follows:

M1 BEERINIBEDLEN RS EBININEEAH
BRUBRERARNEEAE-

M2 BEEEINZIEEABRUZIES
BAHEE-

REBESHE BENFERIIFHRN
T

2023 2022
2023 20225
Average training hours per 8 8 B F 3952 3B vt 29.7 40.3
employee Moe 7
Average training hours by gender %1% 5l 2 9 #9195 2l B 8 W22
(Note 2)
Male B 32.3 45.3
Female 7z 26.6 28.0
Average training hours by HEFEENESH
employment category "2 T35 52 2| B gy (=2
Senior management EREERE 2.3 2.0
Middle management FREIRE 10.1 10.2
General staff —RET 44.4 65.9

Note 1: Average training hours per employee is calculated by
dividing the total number of training hours by the total
number of employees at the end of the Reporting Period.

Note 2: It is calculated by dividing the total number of training hours
for specified category by the number of employees for
specified category as at the end of the Reporting Period.

MIEET (B B R 193 31 B 8% 5= 51 48 B BB DU
HHRNESEASE-

MizE2 @ B EEN T IR BIFURSHRE
R EEAHBE-
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Labour Standards

The Group fully understands that the exploitation of
child and forced labour are universally condemned,
and therefore it takes the responsibility against child
and forced labour very seriously. The Group strictly
complies with all laws and regulations against child
labour and forced labour.

Employment by the Group is based on the principle
of fairness, openness and willingness. All individuals
enter into employment contracts without acts of
forced labour. In case of child labour and forced
labour, the Group will immediately terminate the
contract with the employee concerned and the
person-in-charge accountable.

Compliance with relevant laws and regulations

The Group is not aware of any material non-
compliance with the Employment Ordinance,
Employment of Children Regulations and other
applicable laws and regulations that preventing from
employment of child or forced labour by the Group
during the Reporting Period. In addition, no non-
compliance with relevant laws and regulations that
resulted in significant fine or sanction has been
reported in the Reporting Period.

Supply Chain Management

Suppliers have a direct impact on the Group’s
sustainability performance. The Group’s suppliers
mainly include beverage and food suppliers.

The Group selects the major suppliers based on a set
of criteria which includes product and service quality,
cost, reputation, service, agility, delivery efficiency,
past performance and relationship with the Group.
Suppliers’ attitudes towards environmental and social
issues including workplace health and safety and
human rights are also considered. Such supplier
selection criteria ensure that the Group can secure
continual supply of ingredients of consistent quality,
identify the source of supply promptly, and maintain
flexibility in stock levels and establish a responsible
supply chain for the environment. Generally, the
Group would not procure from the suppliers unless
they pass the selection criteria.
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The operating managers are primarily responsible for
monitoring the level of food and beverage and making
orders. Each of the outlets place purchase orders
with the procurement staff which then place orders
with the relevant suppliers. Upon delivery of the items
to the outlets, the staff checks the time of delivery,
the brand and type, quantity and quality of deliveries
against the delivery notes or invoices and the orders
before acceptance. The Group also inspects the best-
by date and condition of the food ingredients, and
if they fall below our quality control standards, the
Group would return them to the suppliers.

During the Reporting Period, the Group had not
experienced any significant problems with the quality
of beverage and food products provided by the
suppliers, any material limitations in the supply nor
any shortage of beverage and food products. The
Group believes that the supply chain management
and procedures can ensure the safety of the supply
chain.

During the Reporting Period, the number of suppliers
by geographical region is as follows:

Hong Kong 58
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Product Responsibility

Considering the importance of continuous customers’
satisfaction and support, the Group is committed to
providing customers with high quality services and
products. The Group provides training and guidelines
to its staff on service-related areas such as beverage
and food handling and personal hygiene to enhance
the quality of services provided to the customers.
All frontline service staff are trained to be courteous,
competent and responsive and to provide cordial
hospitality to customers. The outlets staff are required
to be professionally uniformed during all working
hours. The operating managers hold daily briefing
sessions with all front-line service staffs on the daily
operations of outlets. In these briefing sessions, the
managers would review staff performance and reflect
the customers’ feedbacks. Such daily performance
reviews assist the front-line service staff in
maintaining and improving service levels. The Group
strives to promote customer satisfaction through
responding to their comments and feedbacks. The
front-line service staff are required to treat customer
requests, enquiries or complaints promptly and
seriously. In case of any customer complaint in
relation to beverage or food or quality of services, the
relevant operating managers would take initiatives to
investigate and resolve the matter and attend to the
customers promptly.

If any staff receives a complaint from a customer, he
shall report to his supervisor, usually the operating
manager, who would review and understand the
matter with the relevant customer and offer remedial
proposals to the customer. If the complaint cannot
be resolved on site or if a complaint has been
received through emails, the operating managers
will investigate the incident and file a report to the
management with solutions to improve or avoid
similar incidents in the future. An explanation will be
sent to the relevant customer to ensure the matter
would be resolved and to maintain a good customer
relationship. The Group’s management will review
the complaints and arrange necessary training to the
staff to consistently improve the operation of outlets.
During the Reporting Period, no recalls of products
due to safety and health reasons and no complaints
related to products and services were reported.
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Data Privacy Protection

The Group has implemented certain internal
control measures in ensuring the confidentiality of
the operation data so as to protect the suppliers,
business partners, customers and itself. The Group’s
employment contract, staff handbook and internal
control manual clearly define the requirements in
relation to protecting the Group’s data. For example,
i) staffs are only allowed to access, retrieve, store
and/or copy computer data that are necessary and
directly related to their work; ii) any unauthorized
access, retrieval, storage or copy of computer data,
as well as unauthorized transfer and disclosure of
data to third parties, are strictly prohibited and may
lead to summary dismissal; and iii) administrative
department is tasked with the implementation of a
practical and reliable mechanism to ensure security of
all data contained in computers and to protect data
against unauthorized access or retrieval.

Intellectual Property Rights Protection

The Group is committed to complying with relevant
laws and regulations in relation to intellectual property
right. It is the Group’s policy to respect intellectual
property rights during its daily operations and not
to use any infringing articles including computer
software. The Group will not use or copy except for
necessary and lawful backup purposes, any software
of related documentation, unless having been
authorised by the owner of the copyright concerned.

Compliance with relevant laws and regulations

The Group is not aware of any material non-
compliance with the Trade Descriptions Ordinance,
Copyright Ordinance, Prevention of Copyright Piracy
Ordinance, Personal Data (Privacy) Ordinance and
other applicable laws and regulations that have
a significant impact relating to health and safety,
advertising, labelling and privacy matters relating
to products and services provided and methods of
redress on the Company during the Reporting Period.
In addition, no non-compliance with relevant laws and
regulations that resulted in significant fine or sanction
has been reported in the Reporting Period.
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Anti-corruption

Corruption, deception, bribery, forgery, extortion,
money laundering and any other kinds of business
fraud are strictly prohibited and fully investigated by
the Audit Committee. In every business operation,
employees and the management must demonstrate
integrity. No tolerance is given to fraud. According
to the staff handbook and internal control manual
established by the Group, policy is established to
govern investigation and follow-up procedures of
reported fraud incidents. To enhance the governance
of the Group, periodic and systematic fraud risk
assessments are conducted. Any abnormality should
be reported to the Audit Committee for investigation.
Whistle-blowing channel is also established for the
reporting of violations of professional conducts.

During the Reporting Period, the Company has
provided anti-corruption education and training
materials such as Anti-Corruption and Ethical
Governance which is published by Independent
Commission Against Corruption, Hong Kong, to its
directors and senior management, in order to raise
their awareness towards ethical and corruption
issues.

Compliance with relevant laws and regulations

The Group is not aware of any material non-
compliance with the Prevention of Bribery Ordinance
and other applicable laws and regulations that have
a significant impact on the Group relating to bribery,
extortion, fraud and money laundering during the
Reporting Period. In addition, there was no legal case
concerning corruption brought against the Group or
its employees during the Reporting Period.

Community Investment

The Group cares about its community and is willing to
give helping hands to the needy in order to promote
harmony and stability of the society. The management
continues to focus on the needs of the society
and endeavour to enhance the sustainability of the
community.

During the Reporting Period, the Group made
contributions to the society through donation of
HK$50,000 for supporting The Community Chest
Sports for Millions 2022/2023.
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The Board presents its annual report and the audited
consolidated financial statements of the Group for the
Reporting Period.

COMPANY INFORMATION

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands
with limited liability. The address of its registered office is
located at Windward 3, Regatta Office Park, P.O. Box 1350,
Grand Cayman KY1-1108, Cayman lIslands. The address
of its principal place of business is located at 25/F., China
Huarong Tower, 60 Gloucester Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong.
The Company’s shares are listed on the GEM of the Stock
Exchange.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company acts as an investment holding company. The
Group is principally engaged in the operation of club and
entertainment as well as restaurant business in Hong Kong.

An analysis of the Group’s performance by the principal
activities and geographical locations of operations for the
Reporting Period is set out in note 6 to the consolidated
financial statements.

FIVE YEAR SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of
the Group for the last five financial years is set out on pages
85 to 86 of the annual report.

BUSINESS AND FINANCIAL REVIEW

Details of the business review are set out in the section
headed “Management Discussion and Analysis” on pages 9
to 22.

RESULTS AND RESERVES

As at 31 May 2023, the Company’s reserves available for
distribution to shareholders comprising share premium
account plus accumulated losses. No distributable reserves
was available for distribution as at 31 May 2023 (2022: nil).
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DIVIDEND

The Board did not recommend the payment of a final
dividend for the Reporting Period (2022: nil).

CHARITABLE DONATIONS

The Group made charitable donations of HK$50,000 during
the Reporting Period (2022: nil).

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

Due to the nature of the Group’s business, the majority
of customers consist of retail customers from the general
public. As such, the Directors consider that it is not
practicable to identify the five largest customers of the
Group for the Reporting Period.

Our Group purchased approximately 38.2% of its total
purchases from the largest supplier during the Reporting
Period. Detail of the trade and other payables of the Group
as at 31 May 2023 are set out in note 21 to the consolidated
financial statements. Up to the date of this report, the
trade and other payables to the largest supplier has been
fully settled. For the procurement of bulk commodities or
services, the Group has set bidding programme with strict
implementation.

The information in respect of the Group’s purchases
attributable to the major suppliers during Reporting Period
are as follows:

The largest supplier BAEER
Five largest suppliers in aggregate I ARHIERE 48T

None of the Directors, their associates or any shareholders,
which to the knowledge of the Directors owned more than
5% of the Company’s issued Shares, had a beneficial
interest in any of the Group’s five largest suppliers and
customers.
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PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment
of the Group for the Reporting Period are set out in note
15 to the consolidated financial statements of this annual
report.

LOANS AND BORROWINGS

The total borrowings of the Group as at 31 May 2023
was HK$9,425,000 (2022: approximately HK$8,454,000).
Particulars of loans and borrowings are set out in notes
23 and 24 to the consolidated financial statements of this
annual report.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements of share capital of the Company
during the Reporting Period are set out in note 26 to the
financial statements.

Details of the Company’s activities involving Shares or
share capital during the Reporting Period are set out in
sub-section “CAPITAL STRUCTURE” under Management
Discussion and Analysis on pages 14 to 16.

DIRECTORS

The Directors during the Reporting Period and up to the date
of this annual report are:

Executive Directors:

Mr. Wong Chi Yung (Chairman and CEQO)
Ms. Liu Huijing (Vice-chairman of the Board)
(appointed on 3 April 2023)
Ms. Lui Lok Yan
Mr. Ng Shing Chun Ray
(resigned on 3 April 2023)

INEDs:

Mr. Hui Wai Hung
Mr. Jiang Qiaowei
Mr. Pong Chun Yu
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Pursuant to article 108 of the Articles of Association, at
each annual general meeting, one-third of the Directors for
the time being (or, if their number is not a multiple of three
(8), the number nearest to but not less than one-third) shall
retire from office by rotation, provided that each Director
(including those appointed for a specific term) will be subject
to retirement by rotation at least once every three (3) years
at the annual general meeting. The retiring Directors shall be
eligible for re-election.

Pursuant to article 112 of the Articles of Association, the
Board shall have power from time to time and at any time
to appoint any person as a Director either to fill a casual
vacancy or as an addition to the Board. Any Director so
appointed shall hold office only until the next following
general meeting of the Company (in the case of filing a
casual vacancy) or until the next following annual general
meeting of the Company (in the case of an addition to the
Board), and shall then be eligible for re-election. Any Director
appointed under this article shall not be taken into account
in determining the Directors or the number of Directors who
are to retire by rotation at an AGM.

Accordingly, Ms. Liu Huijing, Mr. Hui Wai Hung and Mr. Jiang
Qiaowei shall retire from office and, being eligible, will offer
themselves for re-election at the forthcoming annual general
meeting.

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS

Biographical details of the Directors are set out on pages
23 to 24 in the section headed “Biographical Details of
Directors.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS AND LETTERS
OF APPOINTMENT

Mr. Wong Chi Yung, being the Executive Director, has
entered into a service contract with the Company for a term
of three years commencing from 12 July 2021 and shall be
renewable thereafter, unless terminated by either party by
giving not less than one month’s written notice to the other
party.

Ms. Liu Huijing, being the Executive Director, has entered
into a service contract with the Company for a term of three
years commencing from 3 April 2023 and shall continue
thereafter, unless terminated by either party by giving not
less than three months’ written notice to the other party.
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Ms. Lui Lok Yan, being the Executive Director, has entered
into a service contract with the Company for a term of three
years commencing from 3 May 2022 and shall continue
thereafter, unless terminated by either party by giving not
less than one month’s written notice to the other party.

Each of Mr. Pong Chun Yu, Mr. Hui Wai Hung and Mr.
Jiang Qiaowei, being the INEDs, has entered into a letter
of appointment with the Company for a term of three years
commencing from 22 January 2021 (Mr. Pong Chun Yu) and
16 February 2021 (Mr. Hui Wai Hung and Mr. Jiang Qiaowei)
and shall be renewable thereafter, unless terminated by
either party by giving not less than one month’s written
notice to the other party.

None of our Directors, including those proposed for
re-election at the AGM, has entered or has proposed to
enter into any service agreement or letter of appointment
with us or any other members of the Group, which is not
expired or not determinable by us or any member of the
Group within one year without payment of compensation
(other than statutory compensation).

All the INEDs were appointed for a specific terms subject to
the relevant provisions of the Articles of Association or any
other applicable laws whereby the Directors shall vacate or
retire from their office.

UPDATES ON DIRECTORS’ INFORMATION

Save as disclosed below or in the Company’s 2022 interim
and quarterly reports or elsewhere in this annual report,
pursuant to rule 17.50(2) of the GEM Listing Rules, there is
no change to the directorship and no updated information
since the date of publication of the 2022 interim report.

= Ms. Liu Huijing was appointed as an Executive
Director and vice-chairman of the Board on 3 April
2023;

= Mr. Ng Shing Chun Ray resigned as an Executive
Director on 3 April 2023; and

= Mr. Pong Chun Yu terminated his consultancy
agreement with Sun Entertainment Culture Limited.
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PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISIONS

During the Reporting Period and up to the date of this
annual report, the directors are indemnified out of the assets
and profits of the Company from and against all actions,
costs, charges, losses, damages and expenses which they
or any of them shall or may incur or sustain by or by reason
of any act done, concurred in or omitted in or about the
execution of their duty, or supposed duty, in their respective
offices. The Company has taken out and maintained
directors’ liability insurance which provides appropriate
cover for the directors and directors of the subsidiaries of
the Group.

CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE

The Company has received from each of the INEDs an
annual confirmation of independence pursuant to rule
5.09(c) of the GEM Listing Rules and considers all the
independent non-executive directors to be independent.

DIRECTORS’ AND CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS’
INTERESTS IN A COMPETING BUSINESS

During the Reporting Period and up to the date of this
annual report, the Directors, including the INEDs, are not
aware of any business or interest of the Directors, the
management of the Company and their respective close
associates (as defined under the GEM Listing Rules) that
compete or may compete with the business of the Group
and any other conflict of interest which any such person had
or might have with the Group.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS,
CONTRACTS ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS
OF SIGNIFICANCE

Save as disclosed in the section head “RELATED PARTY
TRANSACTION” below and note 33 to the consolidated
financial statements of this annual report, there is no
contract of significance to which the Company or any of
its subsidiaries and the controlling shareholders of the
Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party and in which
the Directors had a material interest, whether directly or
indirectly, subsisted during or at the end of the year or at any
time during the Reporting Period.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

As at 31 May 2023, the Company did not enter into or have
any management and/or administration contracts in respect
of the whole or any principal business of the Company.
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RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Save as disclosed in the section headed “DIRECTORS’
INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS, CONTRACTS
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE”
above and note 34 to the consolidated financial statements of
this annual report, no other connected transaction nor related
party transaction of the Company has been carried out during
the Reporting Period. In relation to the transactions disclosed
under note 33 to the consolidated financial statements of this
annual report, the loans and transactions are fully exempted
connected transactions under the GEM Listing Rules as
they are conducted on normal commercial terms and are
unsecured by the assets of the Group.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Share Option Scheme was adopted pursuant to a
resolutions passed by the Shareholders on 14 March 2017
for the primary purpose of granting options to eligible
participants as incentives or rewards for their contribution
to the Group. Eligible participants of the Scheme include
any employees, any executives, non-executive Directors
(including INEDs), suppliers, customers, advisers and
consultants of the Company or any of its subsidiaries.

On 8 March 2021, a total of 68,800,000 Options (prior to
the effect of the Share Consolidation and Rights Issue) were
granted to directors, employees and consultants of the
Company at an exercise price of HK$0.385 per share (prior
to the effect of the Share Consolidation and Rights Issue)
exercisable within 5 years from the date of grant, of which
each of the INEDs, namely Mr. Hui Wai Hung, Mr. Jiang
Qiaowei and Mr. Pong Chun Yu, have been granted 400,000
Options (for details, please refer to the announcement of the
Company dated 8 March 2021). As at 1 June 2022, there
were 11,200,000 Options (prior to the effect of the Share
Consolidation and Rights Issue) available for grant under the
Share Option Scheme. As at 31 May 2023, up to 549,514
Options of HK$0.20 each granted but yet exercised; and
there are up to 1,510,486 outstanding Options available for
grant for the equivalent shares of HK$0.20 each. During
the 12 months ended 31 May 2023, saved as disclosed in
the below table, no Option has been granted, exercised,
cancelled or lapsed. No service provider sublimit was set
under the Share Option Scheme.

The maximum number of shares which may be issued under
the Share Option Scheme and any other schemes of the
Company (excluding options lapsed pursuant to the Share
Option Scheme and any other scheme of the Company)
is 2,060,000 shares (after taking into the effect of the
Share Consolidation and the Rights Issue), representing
approximately 2.02% of the issued shares of the Company
as at the date of this annual report.
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The maximum number of shares which may be issued to
each eligible participant under the Share Option Scheme
in any 12-month period must not exceed 1% of the issued
shares of the Company unless approved in advance by the
Shareholders in general meeting.

Any option to be granted under the Share Option Scheme to
a Director, chief executive or substantial Shareholder or to
any of their respective associates must be approved by all
independent non-executive Directors (excluding independent
non-executive Director who is the grantee). In addition,
any option to be granted to a substantial shareholder or
an independent non-executive Director or to any of their
respective associates which will result in the shares issued
and to be issued in excess of 0.1% of the issued shares or
with an aggregate value (based on the closing price of the
shares at the date of the grant) in excess of HK$5,000,000
within any 12-month period is subject to approval by the
Shareholders in general meeting.

The offer of a grant of Options under the Share Option
Scheme may be accepted within 21 days from the date
of the offer and by payment of HK$1.00 as consideration
for the grant of an Option. An Option may be exercised in
accordance with the terms of the Share Option Scheme at
any time during a period as to be determined and notified
by the Directors to each grantee, but shall end in any event
not later than 10 years from the date of the grant of Option.
There is no vesting period requirement for the options
granted under the Share Option Scheme.

The Share Option Scheme will be valid and effective for a
period of ten years commencing on the listing date of the
Company. The remaining life of the Share Option Scheme is
four years.

The exercise price is determined by the Directors and
shall be at least the highest of: (i) the closing price of
the Company’s shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s
daily quotations sheet on the date of the offer of grant of
an option, which must be a trading day; (i) the average
closing price of the Company’s shares as stated in the
Stock Exchange’s daily quotations for the five trading days
immediately preceding the date of the offer of grant of an
option; and (iii) the nominal value of the Company’s shares.
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Share Option Movements

Particulars and movement of the Options granted under the
Share Option Scheme during the Reporting Period are set
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out in note 27 to the consolidated financial statements and 1R e

summarised as below.

Movement of Options during the Reporting Period:

Grant date
RiHBH

Mr. Hui Wai Hung (INED) 8/3/2021
SRS (BUFRTES)
Mr. Pong Chun Yu (INED) 8/3/2021
BRFAL BUkHTES)
Continuous contract employee 8/3/2021
REANES
Consultants® 8/3/2021
EER

Exercise
price!"
(HK$)

frE@En
(B7)
7,567
7,567

7,567

7,567

Exercisable
period

(L

08/03/2021 -
07/03/2026

08/03/2021 -
07/03/2026

08/03/2021 -
07/03/2026

08/03/2021 -
07/03/2026
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Number of share options®

BRECHE

RSB REBRES S RENEBRES
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As at

1/6/2022

I

1/6/2022

400,000

400,000

10,000,000

19,200,000

Adjustment Adjustment

for share

Granted  Exercised Consolidation

ikt
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o S (380,000)

o o (380,000)
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352

352

8,809
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(488,457)

(488,457)
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BHH

As at
31/5/2023
i
31/5/2023
20,352
20,352

20,352

488,458
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Notes:

(1) The exercise price of Options was adjusted to HK$7.567 following
completion of the Share Consolidation on 14 November 2022 and
the Rights Issue on 24 February 2023.

2) All Options are vested immediately on the date of grant.

(3) Options were granted to 6 consultants (namely, Ms. Hung Wai Ching,
Mr. Liu Shaobai, Mr. Chow Yuk Lam, Mr. Liu Xiaoyi, Mr. Dong Bo
Frederic and Mr. Togo Takashi) equally in recognition of their past
and/or for motivation of future contributions and services provided to
and/or to be provided to the Group.

As of 31 May 2023, there remained 1 of the mentioned consultants,
namely Mr. Dong Bo Frederic, yet to have any of his Options
exercised.

(4) No Option was exercised during the Reporting Period, therefore, the
weighted average closing price of the relevant Shares immediately
before the dates on which the options were exercised was zero.

REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND FIVE
HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS

Brief summary of the remuneration policy of the Group is set
out in page 31 of this annual report. Details of the Directors’
fee and remuneration of the Directors and the emoluments
of the five highest paid individuals during the Reporting
Period are set out in note 10 to the consolidated financial
statements of this annual report.

PENSIONS SCHEME

The Group’s principal retirement benefits schemes available
to its Hong Kong employees are defined contribution
schemes (including the Mandatory Provident Fund) which are
administered by independent trustees. Both the Group and
the employees contribute respectively to the schemes sums
which represent a certain percentage of the employees’
salaries. The contributions by the Group are expensed as
incurred and may be reduced by contribution forfeited for
those employees who have left the schemes prior to full
vesting of the relevant employer’s contribution. During the
year, the Group had no forfeited contribution available to
reduce its existing level of contributions to the retirement
benefit schemes in future years.

The contributions to pension scheme of Directors for the

year are disclosed in note 39 to the consolidated financial
statements of this annual report.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’
INTERESTS IN SHARES OF THE COMPANY

Save as disclosed below, as at 31 May 2023, none of
the Directors or chief executive of the Company or their
associates had any interests and short positions in the
shares, underlying shares or debentures of the Company
or its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part
XV of the SFO) which are required (a) to be notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions
7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests or short
positions which they are taken or deemed to have under
such provisions of the SFO); or (b) pursuant to section 352
of the SFO, to be entered in the register referred to therein;
or (c) pursuant to the rule 5.46 of the GEM Listing Rules to
be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange:

Long positions in shares of the Company

Name of Directors

Exs By tHEmME
Ms. Liu Huijing Beneficial owner
BBHELL BEm#EA A

Mr. Pong Chun Yu
BEIRF L

Beneficial owner

BEm#EBEA

Mr. Hui Wai Hung
SFHETE ST

Beneficial owner

BEm#EBEA

Beneficial owner

BEm#EBEA

Mr. Jiang Qiaowei
BBREE

Note:  Options granted to the Directors

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Save as otherwise disclosed in this annual report, at no
time during the Reporting Period was the Company or
any of its subsidiaries a party to any arrangements which
enable the Directors to acquire benefits by means of the
acquisitions of shares in, or debentures of, the Company or
any other body corporate, and neither the Directors nor the
chief executive (including their spouse and children under
18 years of age) had an interest in, or been granted any
rights to subscribe for the securities of the Company and its
associated corporations (within the meaning of the SFO), or
had exercised any such right.

Capacity/Nature of Interest

Report of the Directors
EFGHRS
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Report of the Directors

EFEHRS

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS IN
SHARES OF THE COMPANY

Save as disclosed below, as at 31 May 2023, to the
best knowledge of the Directors or chief executive of the
Company, no person (other than a Director or chief executive
of the Company) had interests or short positions in the
shares or underlying shares of the Company, as recorded in
the register maintained by the Company pursuant to section

336 of the SFO:

Long positions in shares of the Company

Name

LeE2 Py

Mr. Wang Ning
TRELE

Mr. Yuan Lin®

Mg ED

Zhongcai Herui Industry
Development Co Limited™®

MR EXERARAFO

Zhongcai Herui Investment
Group Co Limited

Capacity/Nature of Interest

g5 HEME

Beneficial owner

BEmBEAA

Beneficial owner

BEmBEAA

Interest of spouse

FofBEm

Interest of controlled corporation
RIEAEET

Interest of controlled
corporation

ZEAEED

Beneficial owner

R EEEBRAT BREBA
Note: Wz
(1) Mr. Yuan Lin (i) personally holds 8,313,000 Shares; (ii) is deemed 1)

to have interest in 200,000 Shares held by his spouse; and (i) is
deemed to have interest in 12,075,000 Shares held by his indirectly
controlled company, Zhongcai Herui Investment Group Co Limited
(a company directly and wholly owned by Zhongcai Herui Industry
Development Co Limited, which is directly held as to 90% by Mr.

Yuan Lin).
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PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF SHARES

Neither the Company, nor any of its subsidiaries purchased,
redeemed or sold any of the listed securities of the Company
during the Reporting Period.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the
Articles of Association or the laws of Cayman Islands which
would oblige the Company to offer new shares on a prorate
basis to existing shareholders.

REVIEW OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The Audit Committee has reviewed with the management of
the Company and the Auditor, the accounting principles and
policies as adopted by the Company, the practices of the
Group and the audited consolidated financial statements for
the Reporting Period.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company is committed to maintaining the highest
standard of corporate governance practices. Information
on the corporate governance practices adopted by the
Company is set out in the Corporate Governance Report on
pages 25 to 43 of this annual report.

ESG REPORT

The ESG Report is set out on pages 44 to 70 of this annual
report.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

Save as disclosed in the section under headed “EVENTS
AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD” on pages 16 to 17 in this
annual report, the Directors are not aware of any significant
event requiring disclosure that has taken place subsequent
to 31 May 2023 and up to the date of approval of this
annual report.
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Report of the Directors
EEGHRS

AUDITOR

BDO Limited was appointed as the auditor of the Group
in 2017 for conducting the audit works of the Group since
then.

BDO Limited shall retire in the forthcoming AGM and, being
eligible, will offer itself for re-appointment. A resolution for
the re-appointment of BDO Limited as the auditor of the
Group will be proposed at the forthcoming AGM.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the
Company and within the knowledge of the Directors, as at
the date of this annual report, the Company has maintained
the sufficient public float under the GEM Listing Rules.

PUBLICATION OF INFORMATION ON WEBSITES

This annual report is available for viewing on the website of
Stock Exchange at www.hkex.com.hk and on the website of
the Company at www.new-amante.com.

By order of the Board

Wong Chi Yung
Chairman and CEO

31 August 2023
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FIVE YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY
hFEMBEHRE

UTRAERRRELBEYREENEEUR
EERBRHEZ NEBREEAFRANEERZ
HEMBBRRKRBRER

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of
the Group for the last five financial years, as extracted from
the audited consolidated financial statements in this annual

report and the prospectus, is set out below:

RESULT E
Year ended 31 May
HBESHBLEE
2023 2022 2021 2020 2019
2023F 2022  2021F 2020  2019%F
HK$’ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$'000 HK$ 000
FET FErT FET  FErT  TFET
Revenue W s 77,981 50,257 24,427 50,397 81,889
Finance income BEUWA - = = 249 626
Changes in inventories FE2 &% (20,340) (12,641)  (5,127) (10,208) (17,739)
Other income and gains H U A K I 5 5,438 3,304 19,066 1,861 858
Expense related to short term lease yshEEN =Y El - = = (r77)  (26,709)
Advertising and marketing expenses BEREHAS (10,104)  (8,594)  (3,591)  (7,310) (11,246)
Employee benefits expenses BERAFES (16,569) (13,163) (11,367) (16,939) (23,180)
Fair value change on financial assets at /A F{Est A=A f
fair value through profit or loss BENATEEE - - - (15) 62
Equity-settled share-based payments URBREEURGAER
g - - (15,676) = =
Depreciation of property, plant and M BB MR ETE
equipment (4,049)  (3,480)  (4,131)  (3,916) (3,942
Depreciation of right-of-use assets EREEENTE (8,301)  (7,089) (12,790) (17,537) =
Other expenses Hthfs (15,771)  (16,057) (14,212) (15,665) (20,763)
Impairment loss on goodwil BmERERE - = = - (2,209
Impairment loss on property, plant and ~ #1% \ W= K 35 5 R (B E5 18
equipment - - (3,988) (2,090) (2,379)
Impairment loss on right-of-use assets ~ ERAREEREEE - - (8,369)  (8,555) =
Write-off of trade and other receivables  #i8 B 57 B E & Ux 018 (914) (593)  (1,951)  (2,988)  (1,243)
Write-off of amount due from a related  #ii 55 FE Uz BE Bt A S 70 1B
company - — — (172) -
Provision for expected credit loss B RAMEWRHRIEZ
on trade and other receivables BREERERE (579) (367) (226) (476) (862)
Finance costs ROE A A (553)  (1,311)  (1,541)  (2,485) (873)
Profit/(loss) before income tax BRETEMATRF, (B18) 6,239 (9,734)  (39,476)  (36,624) (27,706)
Income tax (expense)/credit Frsi () /HER (359) 1,792 (10) 130 169
Profit/(loss) and total comprehensive FREF (BE) &
income for the year PEWNGEEE 5,880 (7,942) (39,486) (36,494) (27,537)
2023 ANNUALREPORT 3§ 8D



FIVE YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

hFMBIRE

Year ended 31 May

HESA3MBLEE
2023 2022 2021 2020 2019
20235  2022%F 20214 20204 20194
HK$’ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$'000 HK$ 000
FET FET FET  TET  FET
Loss and total comprehensive income M N A TREGERNESRE
for the year attributable to: K& [ I AR AR
- Owners of the Company —EATEEA 3,649  (8,871) (36,873) (35,704) (26,780)
- Non-controlling interests —FFERER 2,231 929 (2,613) (790) (757)
5,880  (7,942) (39,486) (36,494) (27,537)
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES BEEHARE
Year ended 31 May
HESASIBLEE
2023 2022 2021 2020 2019
2023F  2022FF  2021F 2020 20194
HK$’ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$'000 HK$ 000
FET FHET  FET  TET  TFET
Total assets BmEE 55,363 31,548 64,679 47,126 71,585
Total liabilities mefmd (44,893)  (44,885) (75,674) (69,583) (57,548)
Total equity/(deficiency in assets) s/ (BEEB) 10,470  (13,337) (10,995) (22,457) 14,037
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

IBDO

www.bdo.com.hk

FEE ¢ +852 2218 8288
{5E : +852 2815 2239

www.bdo.com.hk

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF NEW AMANTE GROUP LIMITED
(HEBREERRAR)

(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
New Amante Group Limited (formerly known as BCI Group
Holdings Limited) (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(together the “Group”) set out on pages 96 to 192, which
comprise the consolidated statement of financial position
as at 31 May 2023, and the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of
changes in equity and the consolidated statement of cash
flows for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated
financial statements, including a summary of significant
accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give
a true and fair view of the consolidated financial position
of the Group as at 31 May 2023, and of its consolidated
financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) and have
been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Tel : +852 2218 8288
Fax: +852 2815 2239

BWIZHEMER S

25t Floor Wing On Centre
111 Connaught Road Central
Hong Kong
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
BB S

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA.
Our responsibilities under those standards are further
described in the “Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit
of the Consolidated Financial Statements” section of our
report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with
the HKICPA's “Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants”
(the “Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe
that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

MATERIAL UNCERTAINTY RELATED TO GOING
CONCERN

We draw attention to note 3(c) to the consolidated financial
statements, which indicates that as at the end of the
reporting period, the Group’s net current liabilities was
HK$7,399,000. These conditions, along with other matters
as set forth in note 3(c) to the consolidated financial
statements, indicate that a material uncertainty exists that
which may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern. Our opinion is not modified in
respect of this matter.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period.
These matters were addressed in the context of our audit
of the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and
in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide
a separate opinion on these matters. In addition to the
matter described in the “Material Uncertainty Related
to Going Concern” section, we have determined the
matters described below to be the key audit matters to be
communicated in our report.

Provision for expected credit losses (“ECLs”) on trade
and other receivables

The Group had trade and other receivables (excluding
prepayments) of approximately HK$11,323,000 as at 31
May 2023. The balances were significant to the Group as
they represented approximately 20.5% of the Group’s total
assets on the consolidated statement of financial position.

The collectability of the trade and other receivables is
key element of the Group’s working capital management,
which is managed on an on-going basis by management.
The Group’s determination of ECLs on trade and other
receivables requires the application of significant judgement.
It includes the identification of exposures with a substantial
deterioration in credit quality, and assumptions used in
the expected credit loss models (for exposures assessed
individually or collectively), such as expected future cash
flows and forward-looking factors.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
BB S

We identified ECLs assessment of trade and other
receivables as a key audit matter because assessing ECLs
on trade and other receivables is a subjective area as it
requires management’s judgement and uses of estimates.

Refer to Notes 18 and 37(b) to the consolidated financial
statements and accounting policy in Note 4(f)(ii).

How our audit addressed the key audit matter:

Our audit procedures in relation to management’s judgement
and uses of estimates on ECLs assessment of trade and
other receivables included:

° reviewing and assessing the application of the
Group’s policy for calculating the ECLs;

° evaluating the independent external valuer’s
competency, capability and objectivity;

° evaluating techniques and methodology in the ECLs
model with reference to the requirements of HKFRS 9;

° assessing the reasonableness of management’s loss
allowance estimates by examining the information
used by management to form such judgements,
including testing the accuracy of the historical
default data, evaluating whether the historical loss
rates are appropriately adjusted based on current
economic conditions and forward-looking information
and examining the actual losses recorded during
the current financial year and assessing whether
there was an indication of management bias when
recognising loss allowances;

° understanding and evaluating the key controls which

govern credit control, debt collection and estimation
of ECLs; and

90  New Amante Group Limited #HEEEEABRAT

ESRES REMBUWRBENFARESEBET
HESERESFE DEFGES KEME
WHRENFEREEEEETHER AEEE
{'F t I B o o AR {4 5t o

FHREE SR ERRME18K37(b) &M=t
4(N)(i)Fr & & 5t BUER ©

EFHEN W E R EFTEE
ESNEERHES REMBWRIEZRHRE
B ET R F i R e B G ST E TR &
BFeE:

. BERAFEMAERBAEEGRREY &
ERBRZER

. SFEBISNEREEMZEE EN R
B

o

. 2EEBMHREENFEN  FHE
HEEBEBRREPNRITRG A ;

. EZREEEFHAERABMAANER
(BRASBETENBENERNE T
HBEEERESE B RAER THMEAT
EHENBERBRBETSYREER
SHERER) RFLEEEHEREE
HENEENE U EEEEERRE
BEARAESLIRRE

. TRIEFEHEEES BENEHKRE
StRAEEHRRETE A ZHERNIRE
fll 5 &



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

° discussing with management the estimates of the
recoverable amounts for those significant accounts
receivables over 90 days after the reporting period,
including customers’ payment history and current
ability to pay, and take into account information
specific to the customer as well as pertaining to
the economic environment in which the customer
operates.

OTHER INFORMATION IN THE ANNUAL REPORT

The directors are responsible for the other information.
The other information comprises the information included
in the Company’s annual report, but does not include the
consolidated financial statements and our auditor’'s report
thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does
not cover the other information and we do not express any
form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information
is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on
the work we have performed, we conclude that there is
a material misstatement of this other information, we are
required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this
regard.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
BB S

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair
view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and
the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the
directors are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable,
matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless the directors either
intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have
no realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors are also responsible for overseeing the Group’s
financial reporting process. The Audit Committee assists the
directors in discharging their responsibility in this regard.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT
OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our
opinion. This report is made solely to you, as a body, in
accordance with the terms of our engagement, and for no
other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or
accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is
not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with
HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement when it
exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they
could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated
financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

- identify and assess the risks of material misstatement
of the consolidated financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit
procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain
audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud
is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud
may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

- obtain an understanding of internal control relevant
to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness
of the Group’s internal control.

- evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
and related disclosures made by the directors.

BWIZHEMER S
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

I 2R S

94

conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’
use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether
a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to
the related disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to
modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on
the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions
may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going
concern.

evaluate the overall presentation, structure and
content of the consolidated financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the
consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding
the financial information of the entities or business
activities within the Group to express an opinion
on the consolidated financial statements. We are
responsible for the direction, supervision and
performance of the group audit. We remain solely
responsible for our audit opinion.

New Amante Group Limited ¥ EEEEERAE
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding,
among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the
audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our
audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement
that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements
regarding independence, and to communicate with them
all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be
thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable
actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards applied.

From the matters communicated with the directors, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in
the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the
current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We
describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or
when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a
matter should not be communicated in our report because
the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be
expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

BDO Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Lau Kin Tat, Terry
Practising Certificate Number PO7676

Hong Kong, 31 August 2023
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

mEEENmR

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MAY 2023 #; 202355831 L FE

2023 2022
20234 20224
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
k=3 FET FAET
Revenue W &R 7 77,981 50,257
Changes in inventories FE 2 e 9 (20,340) (12,641)
Other income and gains H A A R W = 8 5,438 3,304
Advertising and marketing expenses EBEkEiHEHES (10,104) (8,594)
Employee benefits expense EERFFHE 9 (16,569) (13,163)
Depreciation of property, plant and ME -BERREITE
equipment 15 (4,049) (3,480)
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FREEEITE 16(a) (8,301) (7,089)
Other expenses HinpAxx (15,771) (16,057)
Write-off of trade and other receivables &8 B 5 K H 1th F& Ut =t 18 (914) (593)
Provision for expected credit losses on & 5 & H 1th & U =% 15 78 HA
trade and other receivables, net EEBEBETERE (579) (367)
Finance costs =N 11 (553) (1,311)
Profit/(loss) before income tax BRFT S M ADEF (5 18) 9 6,239 (9,734)
Income tax (expense)/credit M (X)) /1% 12 (359) 1,792
Profit/(loss) and total comprehensive FraEHN (BB &
income for the year SHEW @A 5,880 (7,942)
Profit/(loss) and total comprehensive UTFALTEGERER
income for the year attributable to: (B518) 2= m W=
HaEE .
— Owners of the Company R N/NEIEZ Y =N 3,649 (8,871)
- Non-controlling interests —JEER 2,231 929
5,880 (7,942)
Earnings/(loss) per share attributable KABER ANEMS (restated)
to owners of the Company SREF (BE) (&1EE)
- Basic and diluted (HK cents) —BEARRKEE (GBL) 14 5.20 (16.72)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
tra B R

AS AT 31 MAY 2023 $202355H831H

2023 2022
2023%F 20224
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
ik FET FAET
Non-current assets ERHEE
Property, plant and equipment YD~ BB KR 15 9,603 8,258
Right-of-use assets EREEE 16(a) 12,503 8,271
Deferred tax assets REMRMIBE E 19 1,784 1,792
Deposits & 18 1,720 4,467
25,610 22,788
Current assets REEE
Inventories F8 17 8,287 3,726
Trade and other receivables B 5 K E WIS 18 10,877 3,456
Cash and cash equivalents BEKMBEEEY 20 10,589 1,578
29,753 8,760
Current liabilities mMENEME
Trade and other payables B o M EMENIE 21 16,659 13,390
Contract liabilities == 22 - 794
Amounts due to directors FEEE A 25 203 2,091
Amounts due to non-controlling FET IEFZE RS #E 2 R 18 25
interests 2,700 2,700
Other borrowings H A& 23 2,948 -
Loan from an ex-shareholder KE—ZRIRKREZER 24 6,477 8,454
Lease liabilities HEaR 16(b) 6,964 11,987
Income tax payable ST 351 =
Provision EEg o] 21 850 -
37,152 39,416
Net current liabilities mEBEREEE (7,399) (30,656)
Total assets less current liabilities BEHERRBHEE 18,211 (7,868)
Non-current liabilities ERENER
Lease liabilities HE&aE 16(b) 7,741 4,239
Provision 1A 21 - 1,230
7,741 5,469
Net assets/(liabilities) BE (8B 3% 10,470 (13,337)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

REMFBIRRR

AS AT 31 MAY 2023 /$202355H831H

2023 2022
20234 20224
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
iog=3 FET FAET
Equity S
Share capital &N 26 17,978 9,988
Reserves & 28 (2,404) (15,990)
Equity attributable to owners of KABIHEB AEEER
the Company 15,574 (6,002)
Non-controlling interests JEZERE = 29 (5,104) (7,335)
Total equity/(deficiency in assets) mKEs S (BERL) 10,470 (13,337)
On behalf of the board of directors RREEE

Mr. Wong Chi Yung
FEBERE
Director

EF

Ms. Liu Huijing
BIEER L
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

mEEmEER

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MAY 2023 & £2023F5831H Lt FE

Attributable to owners of the Company

LAGEAIN
Non-
Share Share  Accumulated  Share option Other controlling
capital premiumd lossest reservet reservef Total interests Total
Bk RivaBs  RatBEr  EREREY  AfEE B HEREG fhit
HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS'000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS000 HKS 000
FET FEr FAT FET FEr FAT FET Fér
ot 28— MNote28)  Mote28c) — Moke28(d)  (Note 28) Note 29
i) (E2e)  WEee)  WEsw) (W) W29
Balance as at 1 June 2021 R0t 61 RIE ? 9,088 98,650 (121,266) 6,835 2,400 (3.413) (7,582) (10,995)
Loss and total compreensive EREEREANRE
income for the year - - (8.871) - - (8.871) 99 (7,942
Partal disposal of a subsidiary Mote 29 B E-EHEBAR (H29) - - - - 6,262 6,282 (682) 5,600
Balance as at 31 May 2022 and 120025831 H K202
1 Jung 2022 651 AR 9,088 98,650 (130,157) 6,835 8,682 (6,002 (7,335) (13,337)
Profit and total comprehensive income ERERREENZAE
for the year - - 3,649 - - 3,649 2,81 5,880
Transaction costs attibutable to placing ﬁE EERAmE - (120 - - - (120) - (120
Issue of orcnary shares by placing ~ EAREETLER 1,99 3,995 - - - 5,993 - 5,993
Transaction costs attibutable to %J‘ETE RERE
rights issue - (531) - - - (531) - (531)
Issue of orainary shares by rights issue BB EHTEER 5992 6,593 - - - 12,585 - 12,585
Balance as at 31 May 2023 100285 E 31 AR 17,978 108,587 (126,508) 6,835 8,662 15,574 (5,104 10470
# The total of these balances represents “reserves” in the consolidated # ZEERNBBIEREMBR R RPN REE

statement of financial position.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
nv-F IEEI}ILE%

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MAY 2023 #; 202355831 L FE

2023 2022
20234 20224
HK$’000 HK$°000
FET FAET
Cash flows from operating activities REEHFAIFRER=E
Profit/(loss) before income tax FRETIEMRANEN . (BB18) 6,239 (9,734)
Adjustments for: KEEE
Bank interest income fET‘J?’F'J A (10) (2)
Imputed interest income on financial assets BREERASTENTHE
measured at amortised cost EHEERE WA (146) (153)
Finance costs B A 553 1,311
Depreciation of property, plant and ME-BERREITE
equipment 4,049 3,480
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FTREESETE 8,301 7,089
Gain on early termination of lease REZLLEBAEN WS (3,069) =
Reversal of provision of & 18 BY 2~ 338 & #2 [0
reinstatement costs (380) =
Reversal of written-off of trade receivables B 5 & W Rk TE i 8 5 o] (7) -
Write-off of property, WEE Y2 ~ B Bk
plant and equipment 28 =
Write-off of trade and other receivables EH B 5 & H i FE W R IE 914 593
Provision for expected credit losses on B 5 M E e W IE T R
trade and other receivables, net EEBBEEZEE 579 367
Covid-19-related rent concession 2019 KM mIEEMEE
E= (137) (1,421)
Operating profit before working capital CSEBETEHAREEF
changes 16,914 1,530
Increase in inventories FEEm (4,561) (3,181)
(Increase)/decrease in trade and other B 5 M E g R IE
receivables (g hn) o (7,388) 11,001
Increase/(decrease) in trade and other B 5 hEMENRIE
payables ®hn Gee b 2,894 (872)
(Decrease)/increase in contract liabilities aHaE Ohl) /1Em (794) 208
Decrease in amount due to a related FE (I — IR B A B R IE R D
company - (134)
Cash generated from operations KERRSRE 7,065 8,552
Income tax paid BT ER - =
Net cash generated from operating RETHFRSREFEE
activities 7,065 8,552
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

meRE

BE

NILER

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MAY 2023 & £2023F5831H Lt FE

2023 2022
20234 20224
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FET FAET
Cash flows from investing activities BRETHFBRER=E
Purchases of property, plant and equipment BEEY% K= KkZE (4,222) (1,859)
Deposits paid for property, plant and ME-BEKRRENENES
equipment - (1,200)
Withdrawal of restricted bank deposits RN REIRITEMR - 17,860
Interest received 2 H B 10 2
Net cash (used in)/generated from investing & & &) (FF ) Fr8
activities IREFEE (4,212) 14,803
Cash flows from financing activities MEEHFFSRER=E
Proceeds from bank borrowings, secured IRITEMPTERIE > AIKF - 38,850
Repayments of bank borrowings, secured BIRRITER IR - (56,708)
Proceeds from other borrowings H A& ® P8 ;I8 3,624 -
Repayments of other borrowings BEHMER (676) -
Proceeds from an ex-shareholder BIRR R PTERIE 220 =
Repayments to an ex-shareholder ) 71 B 2R 2= X (2,197) (807)
Repayments of principal portion of EEHEaEAEED
lease liabilities (10,299) (7,520)
Interest paid BEFE (553) (1,061)
Loan arrangement fee paid ENERZHER - (250)
(Repayments to)/proceeds from directors (MEFER) EEZMENE (1,888) 1,635
Repayments to non-controlling interests BEIZ2 T En =N - (20)
Proceeds from allotment of shares to non- FIFEE A P 2E AR 1A
controlling interests TIRSE O - 1,600
Transaction costs attributable to placing (=R I DN (120) =
Proceeds from issue of ordinary shares by BEREETEBRMEMIE
placing 5,993 -
Transaction costs attributable to rights issue R FE(L 3 5 B 24 (531) =
Proceeds from issue of ordinary shares by BEMEETEBRRMMSMIE
rights issue 12,585 -
Net cash generated from/(used in) REEEFRE S (FRA) &
financing activities R 6,158 (24,281)
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and HERREEEMEM
cash equivalents Grb) 358 9,011 (926)
Cash and cash equivalents at FNRER[EEEY
beginning of the year 1,578 2,504
Cash and cash equivalents at end of FRASKRREEEBY
the year 10,589 1,578
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GENERAL

New Amante Group Limited (formerly known as
“BCl Group Holdings Limited) was incorporated in
the Cayman Islands, as an exempted company with
limited liability under the Companies Law (as revised)
of the Cayman lIslands. Its shares are listed on the
GEM of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.
The address of its registered office is Windward 3,
Regatta Office Park, P.O. Box 1350, Grand Cayman
KT1-1108, Cayman lIslands and its principal place
of business in Hong Kong is located at 25/F., China
Huarong Tower, 60 Gloucester Road, Wan Chai,
Hong Kong. The Company is an investment holding
company and the Group is principally engaged in
the operation of club, entertainment and securities
investment in Hong Kong.

ADOPTION OF HKFRSs

(a) Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs -
effective 1 June 2022

The Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants has issued a number of new or
amended HKFRSs that are first effective for the
current accounting period of the Group:

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ke MR AR MY EE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MAY 2023 #; 202355831 L FE

—REE

WEEEEERAE (AIBEMER
BERAR) REBEHERANE (KE
) THERESMM A EREER
REI-HRONREEHERZMER
N BIGEM k1 o H 5t it 3 55 55 #h ik
Windward 3, Regatta Office Park, P.O.
Box 1350, Grand Cayman KT1-1108,
Cayman Islands’> MESB T E = =i
BRANMI N BB EF S LT EOSE PR %
RAE251 - ARNBA—BREEZERA
BRAEBRFENSBLES G Rt
KRBHEEER

RMERM RS ER

(@) MR RETERMBRE
R —Hr2022F6 H1AEX
BEEGHMAGERMETNAE
SEERSHHIBE RERH
SIREES] BB HHREER !

Amendments to HKFRS 3
RV HHRSERFEIT (BT E)
Amendments to HKAS 16

Reference to the Conceptual Framework

BE R ER AR 4t

Property, Plant and Equipment — Proceeds before
Intended Use

MR E KRB — 58 E R RN TEMIE

Onerous Contracts — Cost of Fulfilling a Contract

BIEEN—EBITaNRA

Amendments to HKFRS 1 First-time Adoption of Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards, HKFRS 9
Financial Instruments, HKFRS 16 Leases and
HKAS 41 Agriculture

EARAVBREENFIFERRMNSER B REEL B
BHBRESHENESREMTE - SEUBREERSE
16 ERBBF R F41REE (BEIX)

International Tax Reform — Pillar Two Model Rules

B BRIRF5 o — 2 i Z 1A R

BEGTEAFE165E (BETE)
Amendments to HKAS 37
BAEGTERFEI7HR (BETE)
Annual Improvements to
HKFRS 2018-2020 Cycle

¥20184F E£2020F B HIH
EBMBREENNFEERE

Amendments to HKAS 12
EBZETERFE125% (BF]K)

The Group has not early applied any new or
amended HKFRSs that is not yet effective for
the current accounting period.

AERTKREAEAEANER
D 5T HEARE i R E AR AT AR ME
SIEBUBREER -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2. ADOPTION OF HKFRSs (continued)

(b)

New/revised HKFRSs that have been issued (b)

but are not yet effective

The following new/revised HKFRSs, potentially
relevant to the Group’s consolidated financial
statements, have been issued, but are not yet
effective and have not been early adopted by
the Group. The Group’s current intention is to

R MR R MR

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MAY 2023 & £2023F5831H Lt FE

2. BRMWEARAUBERITEN (B

BB 45 B8 40 K A S O BT BT 4B 0
BB EE R

TH TR A BN RS BR
REMNTE S EETEBM
BRI R EAEMAEH R
EEXEY T PLEC YY)
I A 4% 10 4 ¥4 B ERE PR R

apply these changes on the date they become & o
effective.
HKFRS 17 Insurance Contracts and the related amendments?

BEVBIRSERNEI75E
Amendments to HKFRS 10 and
HKAS 28
BEEVBIREERNFE105E K
S FZERIFH285% (BFTA)
Amendments to HKFRS 16
HET R EERF165E (BF14)
Amendments to HKAS 1
SRGENF15R (BT E)
Amendments to HKAS 1
SR G ENF15R (BT E)
Amendments to HKAS 1

BBGFENBI5% (BFTE)

Amendments to HKAS 1 and HKFRS

Practice Statement 2

ERGHENBIRREBUBRS

AEHREF295% (BFTA)
Amendments to HKAS 8
SR g ZERFHEST (BT X)
Amendments to HKAS 12

BB G ERB125% (5] )

RiE &4 RAEREST

Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investor and
its Associate or Joint Venture?®

KREEHHEBEATNSErECEHESEAEE

Liability in a Sale and Leaseback?

ERLHENERE?

Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non-current?

R EEDE A REI IR B>

Non-current Liabilities with Covenants?

B 5 32 56 B9 3 7 B & 12

Hong Kong Interpretation 5 (Revised) Presentation of
Financial Statements — Classification by the Borrower
of a Term Loan that Contains a Repayment on Demand
Clause?

BEBREET (KB MBRERZ 27| —ERAHEHE
BERERER 2 EHHE N 5482

Disclosure of Accounting Policies'

B AT BRI ER

Definition of Accounting Estimates’

BEHESHNER

Deferred Tax related to Assets and Liabilities arising from
a Single Transaction'

BE-—XREELNEERAEARELERIE"

Amendments to HKAS 7 and HKFRS 7 Supplier Finance Arrangement?

BEEGHENRTRAEAVBREE HEDMBEZH
BIZE79% (1BET2)
1 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 R2023F1B1HS 2 BRABHFE
1 January 2023 EHRBE AR
2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 2 R2024F1B1H Z BB E
1 January 2024 EHEE M
3 No mandatory effective date yet determined but 3 SNBSS T EERER

available for adoption
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ir e TR AR MY EE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MAY 2023 #; 202355831 L FE

2. ADOPTION OF HKFRSs (continued)

(b)

New/revised HKFRSs that have been issued
but are not yet effective (continued)

The directors of the Company anticipate that
the application of all new and amendments
to HKFRSs will have no material impact on
the consolidated financial statements in the
foreseeable future.

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION

(a)

(b)

(c)

Statement of compliance

The consolidated financial statements
have been prepared in accordance with all
applicable HKFRSs, HKASs and Interpretations
and the disclosure requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance. In addition, the
consolidated financial statements include
applicable disclosures required by the GEM
Listing Rules.

Basis of measurement

The consolidated financial statements have
been prepared under the historical cost basis.

Going concern assumption

The Group continues to adopt the going
concern basis in preparing its consolidated
financial statements. At the end of the
reporting period, the Group’s net current
liabilities was HK$7,399,000 (2022:
HK$30,656,000). Although the Government
has lifted up restrictions relating to the
containment of COVID-19 pandemic, including
those relevant to nightclubs and entertainment
business, the aftermath of it has still posed
uncertainties to the future prospect of the
Hong Kong economy in general as well as the
travel habits of local residents and tourists has
changed after the pandemic.

These events or conditions indicate that a
material uncertainty exists that may cast
significant doubt on the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern, and therefore
it may be unable to realise its assets and
discharge its liabilities in the normal course of
business.
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(b)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R MR R MR

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MAY 2023 & £2023F5831H Lt FE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued)

(c)

Going concern assumption (continued)

In view of these circumstances, the
Directors of the Company have given careful
consideration of the liquidity and future cash
flows of the Group in assessing the Group’s
ability to continue as a going concern. For this
purpose, management has prepared a cash
flow forecast, which covers a period of 18
months from the year end date of 31 May 2023
(the “Forecast Period”), that covered different
possible outcomes of the COVID-19 pandemic
and took account of the following:

(i) In August 2023, the directors (Note
25) and ex-shareholder (Note 24)
undertook that they will not request
the Group to repay the outstanding
amounts of approximately HK$203,000
and HK$6,477,000 respectively until 30
November 2024.

(if) The Directors will strengthen to
implement measures aiming at
improving the working capital and cash
flows of the Group, including closely
monitoring the general administrative
expenses and operating costs; and

(iii) The raise of additional working capital of
approximately HK$5,992,800 upon the
completion of the Placing on 23 June
2023 (Note 40).

Based on the above, the Directors of the
Company are of the opinion that the Group will
have sufficient working capital to finance its
operations and to meet its financial obligations
over the Forecast Period as and when they
fall due. However, the going concern of the
Group is dependent upon the successful
implementation of the cost cutting measures.
Accordingly, the Directors considered that it
is appropriate to prepare the consolidated
financial statements on a going concern basis.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ir e TR AR MY EE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MAY 2023 #; 202355831 L FE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued)

(c)

(d)

Going concern assumption (continued)

Should the Group be unable to continue as
a going concern, adjustments would have to
be made to reduce the values of the assets
to their net realisable amounts, to provide for
any further liabilities which might arise and to
classify non-current assets and liabilities as
current assets and liabilities respectively. The
effects of these potential adjustments have not
been reflected in these consolidated financial
statements.

Functional and presentation currency

The consolidated financial statements are
presented in Hong Kong dollars, which is
the same as the functional currency of the
Company and its subsidiaries, and all values
are rounded to the nearest thousands, except
when otherwise indicated.

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(a)

Business combination and basis of
consolidation

The consolidated financial statements
comprise the financial statements of the
Group. Inter-company transactions and
balances between group companies together
with unrealised profits are eliminated in
full in preparing the consolidated financial
statements. Unrealised losses are also
eliminated unless the transaction provides
evidence of impairment on the asset
transferred, in which case the loss is
recognised in profit or loss.

The results of subsidiaries acquired or
disposed of during the year are included in
the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income from the effective dates of acquisition
or up to the effective dates of disposal, as
appropriate. Where necessary, adjustments
are made to the financial statements of
subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies
in line with those used by other members of
the Group.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4,

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R MR R MR

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MAY 2023 & £2023F5831H Lt FE

(continued)

(a)

Business combination and basis of
consolidation (continued)

The Group accounts for business combinations
using the acquisition method when the
acquired set of activities and assets meet
the definition of a business and control is
transferred to the Group. In determining
whether a particular set of activities and assets
is a business, the Group assesses whether the
set of assets and activities acquired includes,
at a minimum, an input and a substantive
process and whether the acquired set has the
ability to produce outputs.

The cost of an acquisition is measured at the
aggregate of the acquisition-date fair value
of assets transferred, liabilities incurred and
equity interests issued by the Group, as the
acquirer. The identifiable assets acquired and
liabilities assumed are principally measured
at acquisition-date fair value. The Group’s
previously held equity interest in the acquiree,
if any, is re-measured at acquisition-date fair
value and the resulting gains or losses are
recognised in profit or loss. The Group may
elect, on a transaction-by-transaction basis,
to measure the non-controlling interests
that represent present ownership interests
in the subsidiary either at fair value or at
the proportionate share of the acquiree’s
identifiable net assets. All other non-controlling
interests are measured at fair value unless
another measurement basis is required by
HKFRSs. Acquisition-related costs incurred are
expensed unless they are incurred in issuing
equity instruments in which case the costs are
deducted from equity.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ir e TR AR MY EE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MAY 2023 #; 202355831 L FE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(a)

Business combination and basis of
consolidation (continued)

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary,
the gain or loss on disposal is calculated as
the difference between (i) the aggregate of
the fair value of the consideration received
and the fair value of any retained interest
and (ii) the previous carrying amount of the
assets (including goodwill), and liabilities
of the subsidiary and any non-controlling
interest. Amounts previously recognised in
other comprehensive income in relation to
the subsidiary are accounted for in the same
manner as would be required if the relevant
assets or liabilities were disposed of.

Subsequent to acquisition, the carrying
amount of non-controlling interests that
represent present ownership interests in the
subsidiary is the amount of those interests at
initial recognition plus such non-controlling
interest’s share of subsequent changes in
equity. Non-controlling interests are presented
in the consolidated statement of financial
position within equity, separately from equity
attributable to owners of the Company.
Profit or loss and each component of other
comprehensive income is attributed to the
owners of the Company and to the non-
controlling interests. Total comprehensive
income is attributed to such non-controlling
interests even if this results in those non-
controlling interests having a deficit balance.

Changes in the Group’s interests in a
subsidiary that do not result in a loss of
control of the subsidiary are accounted for as
equity transactions. The carrying amount of
the Group’s interests and the non-controlling
interests are adjusted to reflect the changes in
their relative interests in the subsidiaries. Any
difference between the amount by which the
non-controlling interests are adjusted and the
fair value of the consideration paid or received
is recognised directly in equity and attributed
to the owners of the Company.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4,

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R MR R MR

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MAY 2023 & £2023F5831H Lt FE

(continued)

(b)

(c)

Subsidiaries

A subsidiary is an investee over which the
Company is able to exercise control. The
Company controls an investee if all three of
the following elements are present: (i) power
over the investee, (i) exposure, or rights, to
variable returns from the investee, and (iii) the
ability to use its power to affect those variable
returns. Control is reassessed whenever facts
and circumstances indicate that there may be
a change in any of these elements of control.

In the Company’s statement of financial
position, investments in subsidiaries are
stated at cost less impairment loss, if any. The
results of subsidiaries are accounted for by the
Company on the basis of dividend received
and receivable.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated
at cost less accumulated depreciation and
accumulated impairment losses. The cost
of property, plant and equipment includes
its purchase price and the costs directly
attributable to the acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s
carrying amount or recognised as a separate
asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable
that future economic benefits associated with
the item will flow to the Group and the cost of
the item can be measured reliably. The carrying
amount of the replaced part is derecognised.
All other repairs and maintenance are
recognised as an expense in profit or loss
during the financial period in which they are
incurred.

FE

(b)

(c)

TETECER (@)

Bt B 2 5]

B /B R B) 4% 2 /2 B) B 17 i 2 1
WREHR - T =ETEEE
wmER AREERNREER ()
EREFMREHR (I)IKZXHE
BEREHRAIE MR AR
M5 R(iESAFMBEBRNEZEZ
FOEMKR -EEFENRBERRE
TERZFENTRAIERE
RIZAE R o

RERBDUBRIEAR > K E
AR RERNRBEBERIE
(WmAE) ik -WEB AR EEH
ERBRBRABERREEEA
fRe

ME--BERRE

Y2~ R B Kk e ¥5 B AN R R 5T
TERRFRAEBERINEK -9
X2 BERRBERFICERBEESE
REEEE N EZBERAE -

BEMUASTABEERBEIER
%78 B Fir M 75 B9 2R 2R A8 0% F 2 7T
FEMAXREBBEZEE R ARD
SEREIRBILIEE (WEB
) - WEBBRBONREESA L
- FTAEHMEERFEER
EENVHEHEREaRIESHA
%o

2023 ANNUAL REPoRT 38 109



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ir e TR AR MY EE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MAY 2023 #; 202355831 L FE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(c)

(d)

Property, plant and equipment (continued)

Property, plant and equipment are depreciated
so as to write off their cost net of expected
residual value over their estimated useful
lives on a straight-line basis. The useful lives,
residual value and depreciation method are
reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at the
end of each reporting period. The principal
annual rates are as follows:

20% and the lease
term, whichever is
the shorter

Furniture, fixtures and 20%
equipment

Motor vehicles 20%

Leasehold
improvements

An asset is written down immediately to its
recoverable amount if its carrying amount is
higher than the asset’s estimated recoverable
amount.

The gain or loss on disposal of an item of
property, plant and equipment is the difference
between the net disposal proceeds and its
carrying amount, and is recognised in profit or
loss on disposal.

Government grant

Government grants are not recognised until
there is reasonable assurance that the Group
will comply with the conditions attaching to
them and that the grants will be received.

Government grants that are receivable as
compensation for expenses or losses already
incurred or for the purpose of giving immediate
financial support to the Group with no future
related costs are recognised in profit or loss
in the period in which they become receivable
and are recognised as other income, rather
than reducing the related expense.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4,

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R MR R MR

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MAY 2023 & £2023F5831H Lt FE

(continued)

(e)

Leasing
Accounting as a lessee

All leases are required to be capitalised in the
statement of financial position as right-of-use
assets and lease liabilities, but accounting
policy choices exist for an entity to choose
not to capitalise (i) leases which are short-
term leases and/or (ii) leases for which the
underlying asset is of low-value. The Group has
elected not to recognise right-of-use assets
and lease liabilities for low-value assets and
leases for which at the commencement date
have a lease term of 12 months or less and
do not contain purchase option. The lease
payments associated with those leases have
been expensed on straight-line basis over the
lease term.

Right-of-use asset

The right-of-use asset is recognised at cost
and would comprise: (i) the amount of the
initial measurement of the lease liability (see
below for the accounting policy to account for
lease liability); (i) any lease payments made
at or before the commencement date, less
any lease incentives received; (iii) any initial
direct costs incurred by the lessee; and (iv) an
estimate of costs to be incurred by the lessee
in dismantling and removing the underlying
asset to the condition required by the terms
and conditions of the lease, unless those
costs are incurred to produce inventories. The
Group measures the right-to-use assets at
cost, less any accumulated depreciation and
any impairment losses, and adjusted for any
remeasurement of lease liability. The Group
accounts for leased building which is held for
own use under HKFRS 16 and are depreciated
over the lease term on a straight-line basis.

Lease liability

The lease liability is recognised at the present
value of the lease payments that are not paid
at the date of commencement of the lease.
The lease payments are discounted using the
interest rate implicit in the lease, if that rate
can be readily determined. If that rate cannot
be readily determined, the Group uses the
lessee’s incremental borrowing rate.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ir e TR AR MY EE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MAY 2023 #; 202355831 L FE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(e)

Leasing (continued)
Lease liability (continued)

The following payments for the right-to-use
the underlying asset during the lease term that
are not paid at the commencement date of the
lease are considered to be lease payments: (i)
fixed lease payments less any lease incentives
receivable: (ii) variable lease payments that
depend on an index or a rate, initially measured
using the index or rate as at commencement
date; (i) amounts expected to be payable by
the lessee under residual value guarantees;
(iv) the exercise price of a purchase option if
the lessee is reasonably certain to exercise
that option; and (v) payments of penalties for
terminating the lease, if the lease term reflects
the lessee exercising an option to terminate the
lease.

Subsequent to the commencement date,
the Group measures the lease liability by:
(i) increasing the carrying amount to reflect
interest on the lease liability; (i) reducing the
carrying amount to reflect the lease payments
made; and (iii) remeasuring the carrying
amount to reflect any reassessment or lease
modifications, or to reflect revised in-substance
fixed lease payments.

When the Group revises its estimate of the
term of any lease (because, for example, it re-
assesses the probability of a lessee extension
or termination option being exercised), it
adjusts the carrying amount of the lease
liability to reflect the payments to make over
the revised term, which are discounted using
a revised discount rate. The carrying value of
lease liabilities is similarly revised when the
variable element of future lease payments
dependent on a rate or index is revised, except
the discount rate remains unchanged. In both
cases, an equivalent adjustment is made to the
carrying value of the right-of-use asset, with
the revised carrying amount being amortised
over the remaining (revised) lease term. If
the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset
is adjusted to zero, any further reduction is
recognised in profit or loss.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4,

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R MR R MR

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MAY 2023 & £2023F5831H Lt FE

(continued)

(e)

Leasing (continued)
Lease liability (continued)

When the Group renegotiates the contractual
terms of a lease with the lessor, if the
renegotiation results in one or more
additional assets being leased for an amount
commensurate with the standalone price
for the additional rights-of-use obtained,
the modification is accounted for as a
separate lease, in all other cases, where
the renegotiated increases the scope of the
lease (whether that is an extension to the
lease term, or one or more additional assets
being leased), the lease liability is remeasured
using the discount rate applicable on the
modification date, with the right-of-use asset
being adjusted by the same amount. With the
exception to which the practical expedient for
Covid-19-Related Rent Concessions applies,
if the renegotiation results in a decrease in the
scope of the lease, both the carrying amount
of the lease liability and right-of-use asset are
reduced by the same proportion to reflect the
partial or full termination of the lease with any
difference recognised in profit or loss. The
lease liability is then further adjusted to ensure
its carrying amount reflects the amount of the
renegotiated payments over the renegotiated
term, with the modified lease payments
discounted at the rate applicable on the
modification date and the right-of-use asset is
adjusted by the same amount.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ir e TR AR MY EE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MAY 2023 #; 202355831 L FE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(f) Financial Instruments

()

Financial assets

A financial asset (unless it is a trade
receivable without a significant financing
component) is initially measured at
fair value plus, for an item not at fair
value through profit or loss, transaction
costs that are directly attributable
to its acquisition or issue. A trade
receivable without a significant financing
component is initially measured at the
transaction price.

Financial assets with embedded
derivatives are considered in their
entirely when determining whether
their cash flows are solely payment of
principal and interest.

Subsequent measurement of debt
instruments depends on the Group's
business model for managing the
asset and the cash flow characteristics
of the asset. Debt instruments that
are held for collection of contractual
cash flows where those cash flows
represent solely payments of principal
and interest are measured at amortised
cost. Financial assets at amortised
cost are subsequently measured using
the effective interest method. Interest
income, foreign exchange gains and
losses and impairment are recognised
in profit or loss. Any gain or loss on
derecognition is recognised in profit or
loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4.
(continued)

R MR R MR

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MAY 2023 & £2023F5831H Lt FE

(f) Financial Instruments (continued)

(i)

Impairment loss on financial assets

The Group measured loss allowances
for expected credit loss (“ECLs”) on
trade receivables and other financial
assets measured at amortised cost.
The ECLs are measured on either of the
following bases: (1) 12 months ECLs:
these are the ECLs that result from
possible default events within the 12
months after the reporting date; and (2)
lifetime ECLs: these are ECLs that result
from all possible default events over the
expected life of a financial instrument.
The maximum period considered
when estimating ECLs is the maximum
contractual period over which the Group
is exposed to credit risk.

ECLs are a probability-weighted
estimate of credit losses. Credit losses
are measured as the difference between
all contractual cash flows that are due
to the Group in accordance with the
contract and all the cash flows that the
Group expects to receive. The shortfall
is then discounted at an approximation
to the assets’ original effective interest
rate.

The Group measured loss allowances
for trade receivables using HKFRS 9
simplified approach and has calculated
ECLs based on lifetime ECLs. The
Group has established a provision
matrix that is based on the Group’s
historical credit loss experience,
adjusted for forward-looking factors
specific to the debtors and the
economic environment.

For other debt financial assets, ECLs are
based on lifetime ECLs excepts when
there has not been a significant increase
in credit risk since initial recognition, in
which case the allowance will be based
on the 12 months ECLs.

FEGFER (@

n EWIRGB
(i) ZEHEEZHEFR

AEEME S EBARERK
REIERASTEZHME
MEE RBEHREEESE
(TTREAEERE) st
BEEE RREEEGS
BUTHAR-—BEEES
BE(MM2EREREERS
BIHEHANKRSBEHR®EI2
BEERNELENAIEENSE
BHERNRREEBE;
KR(2)2HAEMREERE
It 75 72 & Bt T B 78 51 & 17
WFFBE R BENENSHE
EMBRAEESEB NG
STREHAEEEERNME R
NeERIABAXEERR
FEERBNERS XN
fE] °

BHEEBREREERIE
BEERmMEMLS - EEEG
BNOREGOTENERE
EzaNREREBREK
AEBBF W ZRER
BRBZERFE -&AE
PHERBRREERAER
MR RIFRAEIR -

FEBEEREBYUB
& B 55 9 5% R 16 7% 5t
EESRUREZBERE
> LEREZMEHGE
EEEBRAERREEH
B-AEFEERUBRER
EEBFEEERKRER
ERNRERERE TRER
AR TEZ B BEMERE R & &

EIRIT I

Eat
& OF
4

MEMEHZERMEEM
ERBEEEEI- 1 FEVEE: &S
HEREEBEAE U
EENTHEABURERFE
J| R R E 1B A0 o B R L
12 R EEEERE
Z%o

2023 ANNUALREPORT &3 115



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ir e TR AR MY EE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MAY 2023 #; 202355831 L FE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(f) Financial Instruments (continued)

(i)

Impairment loss on financial assets
(continued)

Significant increase in credit risk

When determining whether the credit
risk of a financial asset has increased
significantly since initial recognition
and when estimating ECLs, the Group
considers reasonable and supportable
information that is relevant and
available without undue cost or effort.
This includes both quantitative and
qualitative information analysis, based
on the Group’s historical experience
and informed credit assessment and
including forward-looking information.

In particular, the following information
is taken into account when assessing
whether credit risk has increased
significantly:

o an actual or expected significant
deterioration in the financial
instrument’s external (if available)
or internal credit rating;

o significant deterioration in
external market indicators of
credit risk, e.g. a significant
increase in the credit spread, the
credit default swap prices for the
debtor;

o existing or forecast adverse
changes in business, financial
or economic conditions that are
expected to cause a significant
decrease in the debtor’s ability to
meet its debt obligations;
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4.
(continued)

R MR R MR

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MAY 2023 & £2023F5831H Lt FE

(f) Financial Instruments (continued)

(i)

Impairment loss on financial assets
(continued)

Significant increase in credit risk
(continued)

o an actual or expected significant
deterioration in the operating
results of the debtor;

o an actual or expected significant
adverse change in the regulatory,
economic, or technological
environment of the debtor that
results in a significant decrease
in the debtor’s ability to meet its
debt obligations.

Irrespective of the outcome of the above
assessment, the Group presumes that
the credit risk has increased significantly
since initial recognition when contractual
payments are more than 30 days past
due, unless the Group has reasonable
and supportable information that
demonstrates otherwise.

The Group regularly monitors the
effectiveness of the criteria used
to identify whether there has been
a significant increase in credit risk
and revises them as appropriate to
ensure that the criteria are capable of
identifying significant increase in credit
risk before the amount becomes past
due.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ir e TR AR MY EE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MAY 2023 #; 202355831 L FE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(f) Financial Instruments (continued)

(i)

Impairment loss on financial assets
(continued)

Definition of default

For internal credit risk management,
the Group considers an event of default
occurs when information developed
internally or obtained from external
sources indicates that the debtor is
unlikely to pay its creditors, including
the Group, in full. Irrespective of the
above, the Group considers that default
has occurred when a financial asset is
more than 90 days past due unless the
Group has reasonable and supportable
information to demonstrate that a
more lagging default criterion is more
appropriate.

A financial asset is credit-impaired when
one or more events of default that have
a detrimental impact on the estimated
future cash flows of that financial asset
have occurred. Evidence that a financial
asset is credit-impaired includes
observable data about the following
events:

(a) significant financial difficulty of
the issuer or the borrower;

(b) a breach of contract, such as a
default or past due event;

(c) the lender(s) of the borrower, for
economic or contractual reasons
relating to the borrower’s financial
difficulty, having granted to the
borrower a concession(s) that
the lender(s) would not otherwise
consider; or

(d) it is becoming probable that the
borrower will enter bankruptcy or
other financial reorganisation.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4.
(continued)

R MR R MR

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MAY 2023 & £2023F5831H Lt FE

(f) Financial Instruments (continued)

(i)

Impairment loss on financial assets
(continued)

Definition of default (continueq)

The Group recognises an impairment
gain or loss in profit or loss for
all financial instruments with the
corresponding adjustment recognised
through a loss allowance account.

Werite-off policy

The Group writes off a financial asset
when there is information indicating that
the debtor is in severe financial difficulty
and there is no realistic prospect of
recovery, e.g. when the debtor has
been placed under liquidation or has
entered into bankruptcy proceedings, or
in the case of trade receivables, when
the amounts are over 180 days past
due, whichever occurs sooner. Financial
assets written off may still be subject
to enforcement activities under the
Group’s recovery procedures, taking into
account legal advice where appropriate.
Any recoveries made are recognised in
profit or loss.

Interest income on credit-impaired
financial assets is calculated based
on the amortised cost (i.e. the gross
carrying amount less loss allowance)
of the financial asset. For non credit-
impaired financial assets, interest
income is calculated based on the gross
carrying amount.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ir e TR AR MY EE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MAY 2023 #; 202355831 L FE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(f) Financial Instruments (continued)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

Financial liabilities

The Group classifies its financial
liabilities, depending on the purpose
for which the liabilities were incurred.
Financial liabilities at fair value through
profit or loss are initially measured at fair
value and financial liabilities at amortised
costs are initially measured at fair
value, net of directly attributable costs
incurred. Financial liabilities at amortised
cost are subsequently measured at
amortised cost, using the effective
interest method. The related interest
expense is recognised in profit or loss.

Gains or losses are recognised in
profit or loss when the liabilities are
derecognised as well as through the
amortisation process.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a
method of calculating the amortised
cost of a financial asset or financial
liability and of allocating interest income
or interest expense over the relevant
period. The effective interest rate is the
rate that exactly discounts estimated
future cash receipts or payments
through the expected life of the financial
asset or liability, or where appropriate, a
shorter period.

Equity instruments

Equity instruments issued by the
Company are recorded at the proceeds
received, net of direct issue costs.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4,

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R MR R MR

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MAY 2023 & £2023F5831H Lt FE

(continued)

(f)

(9)

(h)

Financial Instruments (continued)

(vi)  Derecognition
The Group derecognises a financial
asset when the contractual rights to
the future cash flows in relation to
the financial asset expire or when the
financial asset has been transferred
and the transfer meets the criteria
for derecognition in accordance with
HKFRS 9.

Financial liabilities are derecognised
when the obligation specified in
the relevant contract is discharged,
cancelled or expires.

Inventories

Inventories are initially recognised at cost,
and subsequently at the lower of cost and
net realisable value. Cost comprises all costs
of purchase, costs of conversion and other
costs incurred in bringing the inventories to
their present location and condition. Cost is
calculated using the weighted average method.
Net realisable value represents the estimated
selling price in the ordinary course of business
less the estimated costs of completion and the
estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

Revenue recognition

Revenue from contracts with customers is
recognised when control of goods or services
is transferred to the customers at an amount
that reflects the consideration to which the
Group expects to be entitled in exchange
for those goods or services, excluding those
amounts collected on behalf of third parties.
Revenue excludes value added taxes or other
sales taxes and is after deduction of any trade
discounts.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ir e TR AR MY EE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MAY 2023 #; 202355831 L FE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(h)

Revenue recognition (continued)

Depending on the terms of the contract and
the laws that apply to the contract, control of
the goods or service may be transferred over
time or at a point in time. Control of the goods
or service is transferred over time if the Group’s
performance:

o provides all of the benefits received
and consumed simultaneously by the
customer;

o creates or enhances an asset that

the customer controls as the Group
performs; or

o does not create an asset with an
alternative use to the Group and the
Group has an enforceable right to
payment for performance completed to
date.

If control of the goods or services transfers
over time, revenue is recognised over the
period of the contract by reference to the
progress towards complete satisfaction of that
performance obligation. Otherwise, revenue
is recognised at a point in time when the
customer obtains control of the goods or
service.

When the contract contains a financing
component which provides the customer a
significant benefit of financing the transfer of
goods or services to the customer for more
than one year, revenue is measured at the
present value of the amounts receivable,
discounted using the discount rate that would
be reflected in a separate financing transaction
between the Group and the customer at
contract inception.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4,

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R MR R MR

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MAY 2023 & £2023F5831H Lt FE

(continued)

(h)

Revenue recognition (continued)

Where the contract contains a financing
component which provides a significant
financing benefit to the Group, revenue
recognised under that contract includes the
interest expense accreted on the contract
liability under the effective interest method.
For contracts where the period between the
payment and the transfer of the promised
goods or services is one year or less, the
transaction price is not adjusted for the effects
of a significant financing component, using the
practical expedient in HKFRS 15.

(a) Sales of tobacco, food and beverage

Revenue from sales of tobacco,
food and beverage is recognised at
a point in time when the customer
takes possession of and accepts the
products. There is generally only one
performance obligation. Payment of the
transaction price is due immediately
when the tobacco, food and beverage
are transferred to the customers.

(b) Entertainment income

Entertainment income is recognised
over-time when services are transferred
to the customers. Payment of the
transaction price is due immediately
when services are provided to
customers.

(c) Interest income
Interest income is recognised on a time-
proportion basis using the effective
interest method.

FE

(h)

TETECER (@)

W BB SR (8)
HENEIMERD BEER
REEARENZ  RIREZS
B2 W a B BZRERNX X
AEANEREENMERX -
BN RBRAEEmIRTE
ZHEBBARDS -—FHAURNBE
Mo UEXRBEBYBRS ER
B1GERIITRm A A RIBERH
EMPZRERAERZEIE

(a) HERE B REim
EXREAEREMER
BoEERE-—KRERE
RRIBERE-BmKEN
mlEH - BEER —18
BHEE - XZERBMN
EHRERRE-EmKERm
EHETEREILAZM-

(b) IEEHEMA
ERFEITELR R
LW AR BES - X5
BAR R RRIRFE IS AR 75 1R 14
FEPRRIAIZ Ao

(c) FIEHKA

A 8 U A 152 PR B PR R
44255 P29 L 1) B A 30 o

2023 ANNUAL REPORT R 123



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ir e TR AR MY EE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MAY 2023 #; 202355831 L FE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(h)

U]

Revenue recognition (continued)
(c) Interest income (continued)
Contract liabilities

A contract liability represents the
Group’s obligation to transfer goods
or services to a customer for which
the Group has received consideration
(or an amount of consideration is due)
from the customer. Prepayment from
customers in respect of membership
scheme operated by the Group, which
are considered to be unearned at the
reporting date are shown as contract
liabilities in the consolidated statement
of financial position. Contract liabilities
are recognised in the consolidated
statement of financial position until
the credit balances are consumed or
expired.

Income taxes

Income taxes for the year comprise current tax
and deferred tax.

Current tax is based on the profit or loss from
ordinary activities adjusted for items that are
non-assessable or disallowable for income tax
purposes and is calculated using tax rates that
have been enacted or substantively enacted
at the end of reporting period. The amount of
current tax payable or receivable is the best
estimate of the tax amount expected to be
paid or received that reflects any uncertainty
related to income tax.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4,

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R MR R MR

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MAY 2023 & £2023F5831H Lt FE

(continued)

U]

Income taxes (continued)

Deferred tax is recognised in respect of
temporary differences between the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities for financial
reporting purposes and the corresponding
amounts used for tax purposes. Except for
goodwill not deductible for tax purposes and
initial recognition of assets and liabilities that
are not part of the business combination
which affect neither accounting nor taxable
profits, taxable temporary differences arising
on investments in subsidiaries, associates
and joint ventures where the Group is able to
control the reversal of the temporary difference
and it is probable that the temporary difference
will not reverse in the foreseeable future,
deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all
taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax
assets are recognised to the extent that it is
probable that taxable profits will be available
against which deductible temporary differences
can be utilised, provided that the deductible
temporary differences are not arises from
initial recognition of assets and liabilities
in a transaction other than in a business
combination that affects neither taxable profit
nor the accounting profit.

Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates
appropriate to the expected manner in which
the carrying amount of the asset or liability is
realised or settled and that have been enacted
or substantively enacted at the end of reporting
period, and reflects any uncertainty related to
income taxes.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset
when there is a legally enforceable right to
set off current tax assets against current tax
liabilities and when they relate to income tax
levied by the same taxation authority and the
Group intends to settle its current tax assets
and liabilities on a net basis.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ir e TR AR MY EE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MAY 2023 #; 202355831 L FE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(i)

1)

Income taxes (continued)

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is
reviewed at each reporting date and reduced
to the extent that it is no longer probable that
sufficient taxable profits will be available to
allow all or part of the assets to be recovered.

Income taxes are recognised in profit or loss
except when they relate to items recognised
in other comprehensive income in which
case the taxes are also recognised in other
comprehensive income or when they relate to
items recognised directly in equity in which
case the taxes are also recognised directly in
equity.

Employee benefits
(i) Short term employee benefit

Short term employee benefits are
employee benefits (other than
termination benefits) that are expected
to be settled wholly before twelve
months after the end of the annual
reporting period in which the employees
render the related service. Short term
employee benefits are recognised in the
year when the employees render the
related service.

(ii) Defined contribution retirement plan

Contributions to defined contribution
retirement plans are recognised as
an expense in profit or loss when the
services are rendered by the employees.

(iiij  Termination benefits

Termination benefits are recognised
on the earlier of when the Group can
no longer withdraw the offer of those
benefits and when the Group recognises
restructuring costs involving the
payment of termination benefits.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R MR R MR

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MAY 2023 & £2023F5831H Lt FE

(continued)

(k)

U]

Share-based payments

Where share options are awarded to
employees and others providing similar
services, the fair value of the services received
is measured by reference to the fair value of
the options at the date of grant. Such fair
value is recognised in profit or loss with a
corresponding increase in the share option
reserve within equity.

Where the terms and conditions of options are
modified before they vest, the increase in the
fair value of the options, measured immediately
before and after the modification, is also
recognised in profit or loss over the remaining
vesting period.

Impairment of assets (other than financial
assets)

At the end of each reporting period, the Group
reviews the carrying amounts of the following
assets to determine whether there is any
indication that those assets have suffered
an impairment loss or an impairment loss
previously recognised no longer exists or may
have decreased:

o property, plant and equipment;
o right-of-use assets; and
o investment in subsidiaries

If the recoverable amount (i.e. the greater of
the fair value less costs of disposal and value
in use) of an asset is estimated to be less than
its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the
asset is reduced to its recoverable amount. An
impairment loss is recognised as an expense
immediately.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ir e TR AR MY EE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MAY 2023 #; 202355831 L FE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

U]

(m)

Impairment of assets (other than financial
assets) (continued)

Where an impairment loss subsequently
reverses, the carrying amount of the asset
is increased to the revised estimate of its
recoverable amount, to the extent that the
increased carrying amount does not exceed
the carrying amount that would have been
determined had no impairment loss been
recognised for the asset in prior years. A
reversal of an impairment loss is recognised in
profit or loss immediately.

Value in use is based on the estimated future
cash flows expected to be derived from the
asset or cash generating unit, discounted to
their present value using a pre-tax discount
rate that reflects current market assessments
of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the asset or cash generating unit.

Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of
uncertain timing or amount when the Group
has a legal or constructive obligation arising
as a result of a past event, which it is probable
that it will result in an outflow of resources
embodying economic benefits that can be
reliably estimated.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of
resources embodying economic benefits
will be required, or the amount cannot be
estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed
as a contingent liability, unless the probability
of outflow of resources embodying economic
benefits is remote. Possible obligations, the
existence of which will only be confirmed by
the occurrence or non-occurrence of one
or more future events, are also disclosed as
contingent liabilities unless the probability of
outflow of resources embodying economic
benefits is remote.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4.
(continued)

R MR R MR

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MAY 2023 & £2023F5831H Lt FE

(n) Related parties

(@)

A person or a close member of that
person’s family is related to the Group if
that person:

(i) has control or joint control over
the Group;

(if) has significant influence over the
Group; or

(iii) is a member of key management

personnel of the Group or the
Company’s parent.

An entity is related to the Group if any of
the following conditions apply:

(i) The entity and the Group are
members of the same group
(which means that each parent,
subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is
related to the others).

(if) One entity is an associate or joint
venture of the other entity (or an
associate or joint venture of a
member of a group of which the
other entity is a member).

(iii) Both entities are joint ventures of
the same third party.

(iv) One entity is a joint venture of a
third entity and the other entity is
an associate of the third entity.

(V) The entity is a post-employment
benefit plan for the benefit of the
employees of the Group or an
entity related to the Group.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ir e TR AR MY EE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MAY 2023 #; 202355831 L FE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(n) Related parties (continued)

(b)

An entity is related to the Group if
any of the following conditions apply:
(continued)

(vi)

(vii)

(viil)

The entity is controlled or jointly
controlled by a person identified
in (a).

A person identified in (a)(i) has
significant influence over the
entity or is a member of key
management personnel of the
entity (or of a parent of the
entity).

The entity, or any member of
a group of which it is a part,
provides key management
personnel services to the Group
or to the Company’s parent.

Close members of the family of a person are
those family members who may be expected
to influence, or be influenced by, that person in
their dealings with the entity and include:

(i)

(if)

(i)

that person’s children and spouse or
domestic partner;

children of that person’s spouse or
domestic partner; and

dependents of that person or that
person’s spouse or domestic partner.

130 New Amante Group Limited #HEEEEABRAT

4.

FE

(n)

ZETEER (@)

RS (@)
b) HWERFTSUTEMMK
o RIRAEREHH

(&)

(vi) ZEBEX(a)Fr 5
AT ERHHE R E
) o

(vii)  (a)(i)Fr & B A = ¥
ZERBBEATE
RNAZER (ZZE
BEAE) NEEE
BEEME-

(vii) ZERNZEREMN
BEBENETMAKE
NEABARNEBDN A
NEBAFRMEE
EEEABRE

—RATHEAREERMALTHE
RRXZBFRATEZEXARTZAL
FENREMNE B1F

(i) ZALTHFRZKRERBHKE
=g

iy ZALTEBHEEHEH
Fu; &k

(iiiy ZALTHZALTEBIE
BEHEENZEAC



SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4,

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R MR R MR

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MAY 2023 & £2023F5831H Lt FE

(continued)

(o)

(p)

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash at
bank and in hand, and short-term highly liquid
investments with original maturities of three
months or less that are readily convertible into
known amounts of cash and which are subject
to an insignificant risk of changes in value.

Segment reporting

The Group identifies operating segments and
prepares segment information based on the
regular internal financial information reported
to the executive directors for their decision
about resources allocation to the Group’s
business components and for their review of
the performance of those components. The
business components in the internal financial
information reported to the executive directors
are determined following the Group’s major
product and service lines.

The measurement policies the Group use for
reporting segment results under HKFRS 8
are the same as those used in its financial
statements prepared under HKFRSs, except
interest income, unallocated finance costs,
and unallocated corporate expenses, which
are not directly attributable to the business
activities of any operating segment, are not
included in arriving at the operating results of
the operating segment.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ke MR AR MY EE

77 o = |

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MAY 2023 #; 202355831 L FE

132

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies,
the directors are required to make judgements,
estimates and assumptions about the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities that are not readily
apparent from other sources. The estimates and
associated assumptions are based on historical
experience and other factors that are considered to
be relevant. Actual results differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are
reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to
accounting estimates are recognised in the period in
which the estimate is revised if the revision affects
only that period, or in the period of the revision and
future periods if the revision affects both current and
future periods.

Critical judgement going concern basis

As disclosed in note 3(c), the consolidated financial
statements have been prepared on a going concern
basis. The appropriateness of the going concern
basis is assessed after taking into account all
relevant available information about the future of the
Group, including the cash flow forecast of the Group
covering a period up to 30 November 2024. Such
forecast about the future, at a particular point of time,
about the future outcome of events and conditions,
which inherently involves various assumptions and
uncertainties. In the preparation of the cash flow
forecast of the Company, the Director assumed
that the loan facility agreement with an independent
licensed money lender in Hong Kong would be
granted until the Group is able to meet its obligations.
Actual results could differ significantly, and hence it
may cast significant doubt in relation to the going
concern assumption.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS 5.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R MR R MR

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MAY 2023 & £2023F5831H Lt FE

AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (continued)

The key sources of estimation uncertainty

In addition to the information disclosed elsewhere in
these consolidated financial statements, other key
sources of uncertainty at the end of each reporting
period, that have a significant risk of causing a
material adjustment to the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are
discussed below:

(i)

(i)

Impairment loss for trade and other
receivables

The Group estimates impairment losses of
trade and other receivables resulting from the
inability of the customers and other debtors
to make the required payments in accordance
with accounting policy stated in Note 4(f)
(ii). The Group bases the estimates on the
ageing of the receivable balances, debtors’
creditworthiness and historical write-off
experience. If the financial condition of the
customers and debtors were to deteriorate,
actual credit loss would be higher than
estimated.

Impairment loss for non-financial assets

The Group assesses at the end of the reporting
period whether non-financial assets suffered
any impairment or previously recognised loss
may decrease in accordance with accounting
policy stated in Note 4(l). The non-financial
assets are reviewed for impairment or reversal
of impairment whenever events or changes
in circumstances indicate that the carrying
amount of the assets exceeds its recoverable
amount or vice versa. The determination of
recoverable amount requires an estimation
of future cash flows and the selection of
appropriate discount rates. Changes in these
estimates could have a significant impact on
the carrying amount of assets and could result
in additional impairment charge or reversal of
impairment in future periods, where applicable.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ir e TR AR MY EE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MAY 2023 #; 202355831 L FE

5. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (continued)

The key sources of estimation uncertainty
(continued)

(i)

(i)

Impairment loss for non-financial assets
(continued)

Determining whether an item of property,
plant and equipment and right-of-use assets
is impaired or previously recognised loss
may decrease requires an estimate of the
recoverable amount of the relevant cash-
generating unit to which the asset belongs,
which is the higher of the value in use or fair
value less costs of disposal. The value in use
calculation requires the Group to estimate
the future cash flows expected to arise from
the cash-generating unit and a suitable
discount rate in order to calculate the present
value. Where the actual future cash flows are
less than expected or change in facts and
circumstances which results in the downward
revision of future cash flows, a material
impairment loss may arise.

As at 31 May 2023, the carrying amount of
property, plant and equipment and right-
of-use assets was HK$9,603,000 (2022:
HK$8,258,000) and HK$12,503,000 (2022:
HK$8,271,000) respectively.

Provision for reinstatement costs

Provision for reinstatement costs are estimated
at the inception of leasing property with
reinstatement clause and reassessed at the
end of each reporting period with reference to
the latest available quotation from independent
contractors. Estimation based on current
market information may vary over time and
could differ from the actual reinstatement
cost upon closures or relocation of existing
premises occupied by the Group. As at 31
May 2023, the carrying amounts of provision
for reinstatement costs are approximately
HK$850,000 (2022: HK$1,230,000).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R MR R MR

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MAY 2023 & £2023F5831H Lt FE

SEGMENT INFORMATION

The chief operating decision maker is defined as
executive directors of the Company. The Group
has identified its operating segment based on
the regular internal financial information reported
to the Company’s executive directors for their
decisions about resources allocation and review of
performance.

Each operating segment are managed separately as
each business offers different products and services
and requires different business strategies. For the
year ended 31 May 2023, the Group has identified
the following two operating and reportable segments:

. The operation of club and entertainment
business
. Securities investment

Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with
customers within the scope of HKFRS 15 is as
follows:

SEEF

TEEERREEMERET AT
EFXZ - AEERBERAERATDRTESTE
HE2RANERDERARRBRIEHN
RNEMBEREEEEDE -

HR B EBEMIEHENERRRBUKRER
ENEBRERF— NS EESBHD
BHEIE -8 E2023FE5H31HILEFE
AEBE S H B LT WEEE Kk 23D

i

. MEERIRERET

- mBsE

REBMBREERF15KBER LK
BREZERITYZEHONKREDHFIOT :

2023 2022
20234 20224
HK$’000 HK$°000
FAET FET
Revenue from contracts with EERAMBHREENFE155M
customer within the scope of HET RkEBEREHH
HKFRS 15: Wz -
Operation of club and entertainment 1R P R IR S TS
business 77,981 50,257

Timing of revenue recognised under HKFRS 15:

BEEBMBREEREI5KERTI
m A

2023 2022
2023%F 20224
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FET FET

Operation of club and AR S P R YR S TS

entertainment business

At a point in time A HE — B B 77,981 46,418
Over time W& BF R - 3,839
77,981 50,257
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ir e TR AR MY EE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MAY 2023 #; 202355831 L FE

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 6. HWER B
(a) Segment profit or loss, assets and liabilities (a) SEEE - EEREE
Operation
of club and
entertainment Securities
business investment Total
mEEHRK
[EE 4 E5RkE gt
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET FET
For the year ended 31 May 2023 HE2023F5A31HILEE
Revenue from external customers SMERE P iR 77,981 - 77,981
Reportable segment profit/(loss) 2R EER/ (FE) 11,256 (232) 11,024
Other income and gains He A R Wiz 1,496 - 1,496
Advertising and marketing expenses BEMEHEEY (9,820) - (9,820)
Employee benefits expense BERH S (12,069) - (12,069)
Depreciation of property, plant and ME -BERREITE
equipment (3,561) - (3,561)
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FRREERE (8,086) - (8,086)
Other expenses 2% (12,874) ) (12,878)
Write-off of trade and other receivables ~ #i#4 E 5 R E I FIE (884) - (884)
Provision for expected credit losses on B REMENFIBESEE
trade and other receivables, net BIREERE (479) - (479)
Finance costs MERAR (108) (228) (336)
Additions of non-current assets REFRBEE (19,324) - (19,324)
As at 31 May 2023 1R2023E5831H
Reportable segment assets AERNYEE 51,347 1 51,348
Reportable segment liabilities E2RNBEE (31,491) (7,037) (38,528)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
tr e MR M EE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MAY 2023 & £2023F5831H Lt FE

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 6. HWEN B
(a) Segment profit or loss, assets and liabilities (a) SHBER-BEREE G

(continued)

Operation
of club and
entertainment Securities
business investment Total
gEamk
fREEE BHRE fast
HK$'000 HK$ 000 HK$'000
FET FET FET
For the year ended 31 May 2022 HE2022F5A31HILEE
Revenue from external customers HNBREW R 50,257 - 50,257
Reportable segment loss A 2RDEHEE (2,035) (291) (2,326)
Other income and gains HfA KWz 3,292 2 3,294
Advertising and marketing expenses BEMEHERY (8,208) = (8,208)
Employee benefits expense BERHEZ (9,548) = (9,548)
Depreciation of property, plant and ME BERRENE
equipment (3,480) - (3,480)
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FRREERE (7,089) - (7,089)
Other expenses =8 )53 (12,872) (18) (12,890)
Write-off of trade and other receivables  #iS5 B 7 R ELth FE W IB (593) - (593)
Provision for expected credit losses on B REMENFEREEE
trade and other receivables, net FREE T (367) = (367)
Finance costs REMA (786) (275) (1,061)
Additions of non-current assets REERBEE (1,859) - (1,859)
As at 31 May 2022 12022455315
Reportable segment assets ERNBEE 30,929 2 30,931
Reportable segment liabilities BES:5n=L (33,657) (6,809) (40,466)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ir e TR AR MY EE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MAY 2023 #; 202355831 L FE

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 6. EER (B
(b) Reconciliation of reportable segment profit (b) FEHRSPEZ -BEREEHRER

or loss, assets and liabilities

2023 2022
20234 20224
HK$’000 HK$°000
FET FAET
Profit/(loss) before income tax  BRFF1EMBER (B518)
Reportable segment profit/(loss) B 25 2EF] (E518) 11,024 (2,326)
Other income and gains H AU A K I8 &= 3,942 10
Advertising and marketing BEEREHBZ
expenses (284) (386)
Employee benefits expense BERMEX (4,500) (3,619)
Depreciation of property, plant ¥ -BE KX HITE
and equipment (488) -
Depreciation of right-of-use FREEERE
assets (215) =
Unallocated corporate expenses k% Bt & 2B % (2,893) (3,167)
Write-off of trade and other i B 5 K H A FE U I8
receivables (30) =
Provision for expected credit B REMEWRHRIEFRRAGEE
losses on trade and other R bt g ek
receivables, net (100) -
Finance costs A E A (217) (250)
6,239 (9,734)
2023 2022
20234 20224
HK$’000 HK$'000
FAET FAET
Assets BE
Reportable segment assets AERNIEE 51,348 30,931
Unallocated corporate assets FAPEELESEE 4,015 617
Consolidated total assets REREE 55,363 31,548
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R MR R MR

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MAY 2023 & £2023F5831H Lt FE

SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 6. SEEN @
(b)  Reconciliation of reportable segment profit (b) FERIVBEZ -BERBEHIK
or loss, assets and liabilities (continued) =)
2023 2022
20235 20224
HK$’000 HK$°000
FAET FAET
Liabilities af&
Reportable segment liabilities AERDIEE (38,528) (40,466)
Unallocated corporate liabilities RO PR 2 & & (6,365) (4,419)
Consolidated total liabilities REEEE (44,893) (44,885)

Management determines the Group is
domiciled in Hong Kong, which is the location
where the Group principally operates. All
revenue of the Group for the current and
previous reporting periods was derived in Hong
Kong. All its non-current assets are located in
Hong Kong.

No revenue from transactions with a single
customer amounts to 10% or more of the
Group’s revenue (2022: none).

EEERESAEBRNMEMS
BETAIAEENEEEE M
BoAEENEMRBERSH
BHFFAER@EEREEE  MA
FRBERBEELUNES-

MEEE TR ETXZHW
FEEAEBFEBRZEMNI10%I U E
(20224 : ##)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MAY 2023 #; 202355831 L FE

REVENUE 7. &=
Revenue from the Group’s principal activities during REFBRHREHANEITEEZRKZUN
the reporting period is as follows: T
2023 2022
2023%F 20224
HK$’000 HK$°000
FET FET
Revenue from: LTFEBEENEE :
Clubs and entertainment G P R fR B 2 5
business
Sales of tobacco, BEE B RKMBRRIEE
food and beverage 75,904 44,379
Entrance fees AZE 386 229
Entertainment income YR BEUT A - 3,839
Sponsorship income EBhU A 329 784
Others Hih 1,362 1,026
77,981 50,257
The following table provides information about trade TRIEHEHEZERTERELERR
receivables and contract liabilities from contracts with EHANENEENER
customers:
2023 2022
2023% 20224
HK$’000 HK$’000
FAET FET
Trade receivables (Note 18) B 5 WA (fYsE18) 6,221 828
Contract liabilities (Note 22) a88E (WsE22) - 794
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R MR R MR

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MAY 2023 & £2023F5831H Lt FE

OTHER INCOME AND GAINS 8. HWARWKE
2023 2022
20234 20224
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAET
Bank interest income IR1TH) B WA 10 2

Imputed interest income on financial ATt EN

assets measured at amortised cost TRMEEHEENE WA 146 153
Government grants (Note (a)) B8 (k) 1,052 1,404
Covid-19-related rent concession 2019 R mEmEMEEESR

(Note (b)) (Pt 5E (b)) 137 1,421
Gain on early termination of lease RERIEHEN KSR 3,069 -
Reversal of provision of reinstatement  1&18 Al 7 # 45 5 o]

costs 380 -
Reversal of write-off of B 5 18 Wk IE M 31 #2 [0

trade receivables 7 -
Others Hh 637 324

5,438 3,304
Notes: FEEE :
(a) The government grants represents anti-epidemic fund, (a) B AT #EBh 16 & B BUN 12201978 i il F R &

catering business (social distancing) subsidy scheme and
employment support scheme granted by the Hong Kong
Government under Covid-19 pandemic.

(b) The Group has early adopted amendment to HKFRS 16 and (b)
applied the practical expedient of not to assess whether a
rent concession occurring as a direct consequence of the
Covid-19 pandemic is a lease modification.

BTIRTFONEES BHREF (LXER)
Bt 8 R RLE B o

REBERAMRABSEMHREERE165%

(BET4) WA AITHRE T % Tl ERE
2019 BRFERBBEMEZEERNZFMR
TEBREEMBENREEES -
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MAY 2023 #; 202355831 L FE

PROFIT/(LOSS) BEFORE INCOME TAX 9. [REFEBMAEF (F58)
Profit/(loss) before income tax is arrived at after MRETE M AN, (BB1R) &R LLT
charging: EEBEE
2023 2022
2023%F 20224
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
Changes in inventories recognised as RRARSIMNEEZ &)
expense
— Clubs and entertainment business —E AT R iR s X 20,340 12,641
Auditors’ remuneration ZE A =
— provision for the year —KREFEEEE 759 578
Write-off of property, WEEE - WE MR
plant and equipment 28 -
Professional fees EXHEHR 2,089 2,048
Employee benefits expense (including EEEFFEX (BfEES
directors’ remuneration (Note 10)) M (fFsE10))
— Wages, salaries and other benefits —TE #HehHMEF 16,017 12,726
— Contribution to defined contribution — — R E UGB R st & H =
retirement plans 552 437
16,569 13,163
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
tr e MR M EE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MAY 2023 & £2023F5831H Lt FE

10. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION AND FIVE 10. EE¥MRERAEZESHM AT
HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS
(a) Directors’ remuneration (a) EEFHH

The remunerations of the directors of the KRATESBHENET WO T .
Company are set out below:

Contribution

to defined

Salaries and  contribution
other retirement

Fees benefits plans Total
RE MR
ek BRI

g Hitiia# R wE

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TET FET TET

Year ended 31 May 2023 HE2023F5831HILERE

Executive directors BTES

Mr. Ng Shing Chun Ray (note iv) REELE (HHv) 200 425 5 630
Mr. Wong Chi Yung (note ) EEBLE (fizH) - 1,296 18 1,314
Ms. Lui Lok Yan (note ii) e el () - 480 18 498
Ms. Liu Huijing (note il 2B FE 7T (ki) - 135 3 138

Independent non-executive directors BiIFHTES

Mr. Pong Chun Yu ERFRE 180 - - 180
Mr. Hui Wai Hung STAEIESRE 180 - - 180
Mr. Jiang Qiaowei EBRLE 180 - - 180

740 2,336 44 3,120
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AR e MR R MY EE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MAY 2023 #; 202355831 L FE

10. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION AND FIVE
HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS (continued)

(a) Directors’ remuneration (continued)

The remunerations of the directors of the
Company are set out below: (continued)

10. %ﬂ%#ﬁﬁm&i%%%%ﬁwﬂ)\i
I\‘g
(a) EEHH (&)
AATEEHFHMBIMT : (@)

Contribution
to defined
Salaries and contribution
other retirement
Fees benefits plans Total
REMT
HEk B4R
ik Hthz7 T i

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TE7T TET TET TET

Year ended 31 May 2022 HE2022F5A31B LEE

Executive directors BTES

Mr. Wong Kui Shing Danny (note v)  ESEAiSE4E (i stv) - 82 3 85

Mr. Ng Shing Chun Ray (note iv) REELE (HHv) 240 290 12 542

Mr. Wong Chi Yung (note i) EEBLE (fizH) - 1,296 18 1,314

Ms. Lui Lok Yan (note ii) e 4 el () - 37 2 39

Independent non-executive directors HiJEHTES

Mr. Pong Chun Yu ERFRE 180 - - 180

Mr. Hui Wai Hung SRS 180 - - 180

Mr. Jiang Qiaowei BBRLE 180 - - 180
780 1,705 35 2,520
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10. DIRECTORS’

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R MR R MR

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MAY 2023 & £2023F5831H Lt FE

REMUNERATION AND FIVE

HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS (continued)

(a)

Directors’ remuneration (continued)

The remunerations of the directors of the
Company are set out below: (continued)

Notes:

(i) Mr. Wong Chi Yung appointed as an executive
director on 12 July 2021.

(if) Ms. Lui Lok Yan was appointed as executive
director on 3 May 2022.

(ifi) Ms. Liu Huijing was appointed as executive director
on 3 April 2023.

(iv) Mr. Ng Shing Chun Ray resigned as executive
director on 3 April 2023.

(V) Mr. Wong Kui Shing Danny resigned as executive

director on 13 July 2021.

During the current and prior years, none of
the Directors waived or agreed to waive any
remuneration and there were no emoluments
paid by the Group to any of the Directors as an
inducement to join, or upon joining the Group,
or as compensation for loss of office. The
executive directors’ emoluments shown above
were mainly for their services in connection
with the management of the affairs of the
Company and the Group. The independent
non-executive directors’ emoluments shown
above were mainly for their services as the
Directors.

10. EEFMRAIBEREHFMAL

(&)

(a)

EEHM (&
AATEFFHFMEIIWT @ (&)

GEE

(i) FEBELRENR2021FE7TB12BE S
ERPITES

(ii) TN L T HR2022FE5H3H#ZE
ERPITES-

(iii) D EE L T N2023F483HES
EABRITES

(iv) RAEE R ER2023F4H3B FHE
BITES-

(v) FEERAEER2021FE7B13H B E
HITES-

REFERINEFEFE BEES
BEIARNEBREEDHM =&
ErEnEREEOME (F
A5 N A A S B 3 A RSy 8%
By SUEABERIRNME £X
FImAITEEHFMEE0 K
EMNEELRTAREEBREZEM
RMHRIARFS o £ X PR RIBILIF#
TEENFWNZZ I RREES
EEMREHERS
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AR e MR R MY EE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MAY 2023 #; 202355831 L FE

10. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION AND FIVE 10.

HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS (continued)

(b) Five highest paid individuals
Of the five highest-paid with the highest
emoluments in the Group, 2 executive
directors of the Company for the year ended
31 May 2023 (2022: 2 executive directors),
whose emoluments are included in Note 10(a).

EEFMNRALEaHFMAL

(%&)

(b) TEEEFMAL
B E2023F5H31HIEEE » K&
EEEILARSHFMNALTEEARAA
Bl HITESE (20224 : 2%
MITER)  BENHFBNE M
10(a) ° 8% F38% (20224 : 3%) A

The remuneration of the remaining 3 (2022: 3) THIEHEND T -
individuals were as follows:
2023 2022
20234 20224
HK$’000 HK$°000
FAETT FET
Salaries, allowances and e R REYRER
benefits in kind 2,006 1,437
Contribution to defined RTEETRIKET B R
contribution retirements plans 55 46
2,061 1,483

The remuneration fell within the following
pbands:

Nil to HK$1,000,000 Z%1,000,0007% 7T

BRAALHHFMNAFUTEHE :

2023 2022
2023% 20224
Number of Number of
individuals individuals
AE A

3 S

(c) The emoluments paid or payable to
members of senior management were
within the following band:

Nil to HK$1,000,000 Z£%1,000,000% 7T

(c) EfIENSHREEERENM

ENFUTEHER :
2023 2022
20234 20224
Number of Number of
individuals individuals
A& AE
1 1
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12.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R MR R MR

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MAY 2023 & £2023F5831H Lt FE

FINANCE COSTS 11. FERE
2023 2022
2023%F 20224
HK$’000 HK$°000
FET FET
Interest on bank borrowings, secured A IKIFIRITERF B - 46
Interest on loan from an ex-shareholder KB —%RIiRER 2 EXF] & - 377
Interest on other borrowings H &= F B 67 -
Interest on lease liabilities (Note 16(b)) FHESEH E (MzE16(b)) 486 638
Loan arrangement fee ERZHER - 250
553 1,311

INCOME TAX EXPENSE/(CREDIT)

The Group is subject to income tax on profits arising
in or derived from Hong Kong, being its principal
place of business. The income tax expense/(credit) in
the consolidated statement of comprehensive income
represents:

12. FRiEIRBEX (E%R)
REB BN ETESEMETEESLE
REEEBWRAEANFER -HE2
W ERANFAERES (%) & :

2023 2022
20234 20224
HK$’000 HK$°000
FET FET
Current income tax — Hong Kong Profits BIEAFF 1510 — & B H] 151
Tax
— provision for the year —FEREE 351 =
Deferred tax (Note 19) RIEFRIE (MF5E19)
— current year —KFEE 8 (1,792)
Income tax expense/(credit) Frigips (HR) 359 (1,792)

Pursuant to the rules and regulations of the Cayman
Islands, the Group is not subject to any taxation
under the jurisdictions of the Cayman Islands.

RIERERERERKRA  AEEH
ARREREREEERMERIRE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AR e MR R MY EE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MAY 2023 #; 202355831 L FE

12. INCOME TAX EXPENSE/(CREDIT) (continued) 12. FRi8#Bx% ~ (IK%R) (&)
Under the two-tiered profits tax rates regime, the first RIEMESFERERFE S BERER
HK$2 million of assessable profits of the qualifying ERECECEBE T ZESRRNEN K
group entity will be taxed at 8.25%, and assessable 8.25%MMEHIR > MBBE2EE BT
profits above HK$2 million will be taxed at 16.5%. FEER R E F B 3216.5% B E R o 7
Assessable profits of group entities not qualifying for HEMBREFERREE EEEERE
the two-tiered profits tax rates regime will continue to RIRE NS ABIT16.5% A — IR R
be taxed at a flat rate of 16.5%. o
A reconciliation of profit/(loss) before income tax at BEEMRIXAENRBRFERAERN
the statutory tax rate to the income tax expense/ (F518) EFrEME X (k%) W ER
(credit) is as follows: e e
2023 2022
2023 20224
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FET FET
Profit/(loss) before income tax BRFFEMRATEF (B18) 6,239 (9,734)
Tax at the applicable statutory rate BEREERE (20224F
(2022: 16.5%) 16.5%) st EHWIRIE 935 (1,606)
Tax effect of non-deductible expenses A AR E X NIRFES & 1,530 1,469
Tax effect of non-taxable income BERERWNGENRETE (239) (235)
Tax effect of temporary differences not KRR ERMEEZEMNMIF T E
recognised 114 207
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised FRIERIRIBEEBNRNIE T E 4 827
Tax effect of temporary differences EEJS%E# MEZER
being recognised MEEE 563 (610)
Tax effect of tax losses being B RIE)ES B
recognised MEEE (555) (1,182)
Utilisation of tax losses previously not U {ERFESRIR B 18 2 & P
recognised (1,993) (662)
Income tax expense/(credit) Frigims (K %R) 359 (1,792)
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13.

14.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R MR R MR

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MAY 2023 & £2023F5831H Lt FE

DIVIDEND 13. KE
No dividend was paid or proposed for ordinary shares KA R E E2023F K2022F5831H
of the Company during the year ended 31 May 2023 IFFEMER AN S ZEBIKN N ES
and 2022, nor has any dividend been proposed since IR BE B 0 1 B R & HA ok LABR 8 2R R
the end of the reporting period. IR ERPE B o
EARNINGS/(LOSS) PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE 14, A AGEEAELSREHN
TO OWNERS OF THE COMPANY (F18)
2023 2022
20235 20224
Profit/(loss) attributable to owners of NABHEB NESREF
the Company (HK$’000) (B518) (F#87T) 3,649 (8,871)
(restated)
Ccs==7l)
Weighted average number of ordinary Bt EESREFEIE
shares for the purpose of calculating B9 58 AR N A 9 2
basic loss per share (in thousands) (F K 70,150 53,061
Basic and diluted earnings/(loss) per EREANRBERF S (EB18)
share (HK$) (FB7T) 5.20 (16.72)

The number of ordinary shares for the purpose of
calculating basic earnings/(loss) per share has been
determined on the assumption that profit attributable
to owners of the Company of approximately
HK$3,649,000 (2022: a loss of HK$8,871,000) and
on the basis of the weighted average number of
70,150,000 (2022: 53,061,000, as adjusted to reflect
the Share Consolidation and rights issue as described
in note 26) ordinary shares.

There is no diluted earnings per share because there
were no dilutive potential shares in exercise during
the year ended 31 May 2023. The share options
outstanding during the year ended 31 May 2023 had
an anti-dilutive effect on the basic loss per share,
the exercise of outstanding share options were not
assumed in the computation of diluted loss per share.
Accordingly, diluted earnings/(loss) per share is the
same as the basic earnings/(loss) per share for the
year ended 31 May 2023 and 2022.

BUSEERELARA, (FE) W
ZERBETTBRIRAATHES AEML
wm M £3,649,0008 7t (20224 : 5
88,871,000/ 7t) MER MEFHH
70,150,00088 (20224 : 53,061,000
B% o AR GAEE DL BRBRAD & B Ko MY 5E26Ff
MALRR) ZEKRTMEE ©

HE2023F5831HIEFEHRB > AL
BOBEBEESERMD WESRESR
Ao & FE2023FE5831 B IEFEEHAR > &
ROEEREHSREAGEREE K #
EEE MR ESREEEIRRITE
BREITEERTHEERE DI #E
2023F [2022F5H31HIEFE 8K
BERA S (FR) DEEREARR
(E518) 2E °
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FAFsERaR MYEE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MAY 2023 #; 202355831 L FE

15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

15. YE - -BEKRRE

Furniture,
Leasehold fixtures and
improvements equipment Motor vehicles Total
HEMERE KRR RERRE HE fit
HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HKS'000 HK$ 000
T FET FET FAET
Cost: A
At 1 June 2021 1202165 1H 18,368 4,577 2,431 25,376
Additions mE 812 1,047 - 1,859
At 31 May 2022 and 1202258310

1 June 2022 2022%681R 19,180 5,624 2,431 27,235
Additions hE 4,455 967 - 5,422
Written off s (6,612) 672) - (7,284)
At 31 May 2023 1202345831H 17,023 5,919 2,431 25,373
Accumulated depreciation: ~ EiiTE:

At 1 June 2021 1202165 1H 11,799 3,279 419 15,497
Depreciation e 2,577 417 486 3,480
At 31 May 2022 and 1202258310 &

1 June 2022 2022%681R 14,376 3,696 905 18,977
Depreciation & 2,922 641 486 4,049
Written off s (6,612) (644) - (7,256)
At 31 May 2023 1}202345831H 10,686 3,693 1,391 15,770
Carrying amount: REfE:

At 31 May 2023 1£202345531H 6,337 2,226 1,040 9,603
At 31 May 2022 R202255831H 4,804 1,928 1,526 8,258
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R MR R MR

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MAY 2023 & £2023F5831H Lt FE

16. LEASES

(a)

Right-of-use assets

As at 31 May 2023, the Group leases 7 (2022:
3) buildings in the districts from which it
operates. The leases have an non-cancellable
lease period of 3 years as at 31 May 2023
(2022: 2 years).

The carrying amounts of the Group’s right-of-
use assets and the movements during the year
are as follows:

16. HE

(a)

EREEE

R2023FE5831H  "EBEH
KEFTEM @B ETRR (20224F !
31%) EEY) - 122023F5H31H »
ZERENTIREEEEEA3E
(20224 : 24F) ©

ENFEBEAREE S REE
REBHNT :

Leased

buildings

HEREY

HK$'000

FET

At 1 June 2021 K2021F6H1H 15,360
Depreciation e (7,089)
At 31 May 2022 and 1 June 2022 72202285831 H K20224F681H 8,271
Additions B 12,533
Depreciation e (8,301)
At 31 May 2023 1£2023F5H31H 12,503

The Group has lease arrangements for leased
buildings. The lease terms are generally 1 to 3
years (2022: 1 to 2 years). One of the leases
contains extension option whose terms are
subject to negotiation between the Group and
the lessor.

rEBHEEEREEYEHRESR
BE-ME—MRABH1EIF (2022
F152%F) cHP—IEHERE
EREER HBEEAFAEEHA
HAE AR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AR e MR R MY EE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MAY 2023 #; 202355831 L FE

16. LEASES (continued)

(b)

Lease liabilities

16. HE

(b)

The carrying amount of lease liabilities and the

(&)

HEaR

FREEERZREEREFU

movements during the year are as follows: T
2023 2022
20234 20224
HK$’000 HK$°000
FAET FET
Carrying amount at 1 June ReB1HZREE 16,226 25,921
Additions NE 12,359 -
Covid-19-related rent 201978 AR 7 5 % 8 8
concession (note (a)) HEEE (@) (137) (1,421)
Interest expense MERX 486 638
Payments NEN (10,785) (8,158)
Early termination of lease IRETAIERAE (3,069) =
Reclassify to trade and other EMOEEES &
payables (note (b)) HAunpE (I8 (s (b)) (375) (754)
Carrying amount at 31 May MR5B31H Z REE 14,705 16,226
Notes: B 5E
() During the years ended 31 May 2023 and 2022, (a) H E2023F K2022%F5H831H Lk
certain lessors of the leased buildings provided rent FECETHEREYMWEEAY
concessions to the Group through rent reductions. FRE e AERREHES
These rent concessions were occurred as a direct BE -F2019BRFSHEBME
consequence of Covid-19 pandemic and met all BENNZSEHESEEREE S
of the conditions introduced by the amendments 5 RE ZE R E165E (85I 4) 5l
to HKFRS 16, and the Group applied the practical AMFFEEHE  AEBERBTT
expedient of not to assess whether the changes BEAEATEEBEETHESE
constitute lease modifications. The effects on REEER BN EE ARIAARE
changes in lease payments due to forgiveness HERERREMEENEE
or waiver by the lessors for the relevant lease of =B B R D BI4137,0005 7T
approximately HK$137,000 and HK$1,421,000, F21,421,0008 chERABHRE[
respectively were recognised as negative lease o
payments.
(b) The amounts represented lease payments due for (b) ZE REIEE E 20234 K 20224E5H

settlement during the year ended 31 May 2023 and
2022 which is under negotiation with the landlord
for rent concession and a conclusion has not been
reached as at 31 May 2023 and 2022.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
tr e MR M EE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MAY 2023 & £2023F5831H Lt FE

16. LEASES (continued) 16. HE (&)
(b) Lease liabilities (continued) by MHME&EE B
Future lease payments are due as follows: AERBEMREBERAOT

Future lease

payments Interest  Present value
RIRBE LR FIE RiE
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FET FET
At 31 May 2023 12023%F5831H

Not later than one year FEE—F 7,607 (643) 6,964

Later than one year and —F U EERBBRmE
not later than two years 5,277 (327) 4,950

Later than two years and ~ WEMUL LERBBERE
not later than five years 2,842 (51) 2,791
15,726 (1,021) 14,705

Future lease
payments Interest Present value
RRBEE L 2 RE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FE1 FET FET
At 31 May 2022 "202255831H

Not later than one year FHEE—F 12,286 (299) 11,987

Later than one year and —FYU EERBBRE
not later than two years 4,269 (80) 4,239
16,555 (329) 16,226
The Group discounts the lease liabilities at B E2023F5H31HLEFE >
the incremental borrowing rates ranging from KEBUNN2.86%FE6.93%
2.86% to 6.93% for the year ended 31 May MitsEHiXEHEaEE
2023 (2022: from 2.86% to 3.22%). 1T (20224 : NR2.86%F

8.22%)
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AR e MR R MY EE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MAY 2023 #; 202355831 L FE

16. LEASES (continued)

17. INVENTORIES

16. fHE (&)
(b) Lease liabilities (continued) by MHMEEE B
The present value of future lease payments are FREEMNTANBRED TS -
analysed as:
2023 2022
20234 20224
HK$’000 HK$°000
FAET FET
Current liabilities mEER 6,964 11,987
Non-current liabilities FEREIEE 7,741 4,239
14,705 16,226
17. =Z&
2023 2022
2023% 20224
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAET
7 oh 8,287 3,726

Merchandise

For the year ended 31 May 2023, no write-down of
inventories (2022: Nil) was recognised in changes in

inventories.
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18.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
tr e MR M EE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MAY 2023 & £2023F5831H Lt FE

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 18. B RHEHMEWRE
2023 2022
2023%F 20224
Notes HK$’000 HK$’ 000
k=3 FET FET
Trade receivables B 5 W18 (a) 6,221 828
Other receivables H & W=k 18 140 38
Prepayments SN RO 1,274 1,126
Deposits & (b) 4,962 5,931
12,597 7,923
Less: Non-current portion under  Ji& : IEREBIEEE (b)
non-current assets JEBNHREB (1,720) (4,467)
Current portion under current MENEEB T EIEAES
assets 10,877 3,456
Notes: B 5E <
(a) Trade receivables (a) B 5 EskiE

Majority of the Group’s revenue is attributable to sales of
food and beverages settled via cash and credit card. There
was no credit term granted to customers.

An ageing analysis of the Group’s trade receivables at the
end of the reporting period, net of impairment, based on
invoice date is as follows:

REBABAIW=DHKREUARERERF
AN BRRARGRBE AERLERAZR
RUEEEH-

REEN RS AR E Z EUGRIE (GOBRIR
B BENEZ ARG IAMOT :

2023 2022

2023%F 20224

HK$’000 HK$'000

FAET FET

0-30 days 0ZE30H 5,692 527
31-90 days 31ZE90H 125 189
91-180 days 91ZE180H 404 112
181-365 days 181E365H - -
6,221 828

As at 31 May 2023, included in the Group’s trade
receivables balance are debtors with an aggregate carrying
amount of HK$9,189,000 (2022: HK$2,345,000), which are
past due at the end of the reporting period. Out of past due
balance, HK$2,032,000 (2022: HK$1,118,000) has been
past due for 180 days or more has been written off as the
Group considered such balances could not be recovered
based on repayment history. The Group does not hold any
collateral over these balances.

Details of impairment assessment of trade receivables are
set out in note 37(b).

R2023FE5831H » A E BB E 5 UK
HEROIEREES2% 49,189,000/ T
(20224 : 2,345,000% 7T) HIFEURBR RN >
HERREREH - HR A EBIRIFER
SRR AR S A REAIRE AL RSP
2,032,000 7T (20224 : 1,118,000 7T) B
FIHA180K 3 LA LRI B i sH - AL @A K
HzSHBFETMERR-

B 5 78 WRR TH B9 R B ST £ 5 1B S B &
37(b) °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ir e TR AR MY EE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MAY 2023 #; 202355831 L FE

18. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 18. B 5 R H Mt E W ZHIE (&)
(continued)

Notes: (continued) MIsE © (48

(b) Deposits (b) e
As at 31 May 2023 and 2022, the balance mainly represents 20234 K 2022531 H » #58R F E4570
rental deposit. At each reporting date, an impairment 2L - RNIREBE  HA—MRAEER
analysis is performed by applying the general approach to BEDTUASEMHRESERFEIHERTE
provide for expected credit losses as prescribed by HKFRS HNIEREEEEEHEE - HESNEREE
9. The expected credit losses rate for deposits is minimal. FIiE B E R o

19. DEFERRED TAX ASSETS 19. EERMEEFE

Depreciation

in excess of

depreciation
allowance Tax losses Total

TEREN
HBERITE MIEEE st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAET FAET FET
At 1 June 2021 R2021F681H - - -
Credited to profit or loss (Note 12) 5t A% (FfizE12) 610 1,182 1,792

At 31 May 2022 and 1 June 2022  71R2022%5831H &
2022F6H1H 610 1,182 1,792
Credited/(charged) to profit or loss st A/ (1F4) 1B

(Note 12) (PfEE12) 619 (627) 8)
At 31 May 2023 R2023%F5831H 1,229 555 1,784
The Group has accumulated tax losses arising in R2023FE5831H  AEEHEBE RAETH
Hong Kong of approximately HK$68,415,000 as TR IEE5184968,415,00078 7T ( 20224 :
at 31 May 2023 (2022: HK$78,554,000), in which 78,554,000 75) » H 13,366,000 7T
HK$3,366,000 (2022: HK$7,162,000) is expected to (2022%F : 7,162,000 7T) FE@t# AR
be utilised in offsetting against future taxable profits HIHAEBE R RERR BAN c IRIBEE B
of the Group. The tax loss can be carried forward in AR EARERGEE AR EERA I
Hong Kong indefinitely. In the opinion of the directors EHMBIERMIBEEERAERELEET K

of the Company, there are no other deferred tax o

assets which have a significant impact to the Group.
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20.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R MR R MR

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MAY 2023 & £2023F5831H Lt FE

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash and cash balances

RekBEEEEY

RERREEEY
2023 2022
20234 20224
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
10,589 1,578

Cash and cash equivalents represented cash at banks
and in hand. Cash at banks earns interest at floating
rates based on daily bank deposit rates. The bank
balances are deposited with credit worthy banks with
no recent history of default.

Bank balances, included in cash and cash equivalents

of the Group, denominated in foreign currencies are
as follows:

- USD —X7T

RERBEFEYHERTRFEERES-
RTHREREARTERMERFAENF
A EBRIAMNE - RITEBRERNESE
Rif BT BBACCERAIIRTT o

RITER (Bt ATERRERFETE
BY) LT INESHE ¢

2023 2022
20234 20224
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FET FET

1 2
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

kR MR

77 o = |

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MAY 2023 #; 202355831 L FE

21.

TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES AND 21.

B REMENRIERER

PROVISIONS
2023 2022
20234 20224
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
k=3 FET FET
Trade payables B Z I8 (a) 3,306 1,487
Accruals and other payables FEStE A R EMRE I8 12,217 11,149
Rental payables FE (S FE & 1,136 754
Provision B (b) 850 1,230
17,509 14,620
Less: Non-current portion under  Ji& : IEREHEEBIE R (b)
non-current liabilities FEBNERER 3 - (1,230)
Current portion under mENEEE TS
current liabilities 17,509 13,390
(a) The average credit period of trade payables in (a) BIRHHEERK BERANE

relation to the provision of sales of food and
beverage ranged from 30 to 60 days (2022: 30
to 60 days). An ageing analysis of the Group’s
trade payable at the end of the reporting
period, based on invoice date is as follows:

SEMRENFEHYEEEA30E
608 (20224 : 30E60H) o A&
ERBSHANEZENHRER
REZHEMNREDFAOT !

2023 2022
20234 20224

HK$’000 HK$’000

FAET FAET

0-30 days 0Z30H 2,993 448
31-60 days 31Z60H 289 1
Over 60 days BE60H 24 1,038
3,306 1,487
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21.

22.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R MR R MR

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MAY 2023 & £2023F5831H Lt FE

TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES AND
PROVISIONS (continued)

(b) Provision

Balance at 1 June 2022
Reversal

# o]

2022681 HBY4

21.

(b)

+ AN

o BR

BEZREMBARERER (&)

B

Reinstatement costs
BB R AR

(note)

(Htz)

HK$'000

FET

1,230
(380)

Balance at 31 May 2023

120235831 H B 45 &&

850

Note:

The Group provides reinstatement costs for its nightclub.
The estimation basis is reviewed on an ongoing basis and
revised where appropriate. The amount is expected to be
utilised in one year (2022: two years).

CONTRACT LIABILITIES

FMEE ©

AEEDHB EEPTsHREE R A EE &
SHEEFEFHRI L EEERBELE
5] e ZEERTAHAN —F (2022F : MF) AE
o

22, AHAEME

2023 2022
2023%F 20224
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
Contract liabilities arising from: MTFEEEENGNERE !
Billing in advance of performance AR H (&)
(note (i) - 794
Note: MysE -
(i) Contract liabilities represent the receipts in advance from (i) AHNBEBIEMAEBMELSN St

customers in respect of the club membership schemes
operated by the Group. The Group operates the
membership scheme where customers accumulate points
for purchase made which entitle them to discounts on future
purchase and the credits is valid within one year after the
date of initial sale of membership scheme.

BFESEE A WERBRIE A EEEE R
stE BRRABEEYERED  AIEAR
BT A BN SRS EI RFE
HEIR—FEREN-
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AR e MR R MY EE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MAY 2023 #; 202355831 L FE

22. CONTRACT LIABILITIES (continued) 22.

Movements in contract liabilities:

GEHEE (@
EHEEED

2023 2022
20234 20224
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FAET FET
Balance as at 1 June 6 HE 1 H B4 &% 794 586
Decrease in contract liabilities as = ,\’Jﬁﬁlfﬁlﬁﬁﬁ RIS E 5T
a result of revenue recognised AGHNEENNE HIR AR
during the year that was included
in the contract liabilities at
the beginning of the year - (586)
Increase in contract liabilities as a result & 47 & & F 4+ N FE 5k H
of billing in advance during the year IR T e - 794
Refunded during the year F IR (794) -
Balance as at 31 May ©56H31 HRASER - 794
23. OTHER BORROWINGS 23. Hfthfam
2023 2022
20235 20224
HK$’000 HK$'000
FAET FAET
Loan from a third party KE—HBE=ZAZERX 2,948 -

A loan was granted by an independent third party for
an amount of HK$2,948,000. The loan is unsecured
and bears interest at 4.80 % per annum.

The loan from a third party was scheduled to be
repaid as follows:

Within one year —FRN

—2BIUFE =B EEEA2,948,000
BTHER ZERABERTF > LEFR
4.8%5t B o

RKE—REF=ZAZERGFEZRUTA
EE

2023 2022
20234 20224
HK$’000 HK$'000
FAET FET
2,948 =
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24.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R MR R MR

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MAY 2023 & £2023F5831H Lt FE

LOAN FROM AN EX-SHAREHOLDER

Loan from an ex-shareholder

RE—RAIRRZ

24. RE—RARIKRRZEM

2023 2022
20234 20224

HK$’000 HK$’000

FHET FET

B 6,477 8,454

A loan facility was granted by an ex-shareholder, Mr.
Kester Ng, for an amount of: HK$25,000,000 in prior
years and was terminated in August 2022. The loan
is unsecured and and bears interest at 4.48% per
annum during the year ended 31 May 2022. The ex-
shareholder entered into a supplementary agreement
and the loan becomes interest-free from 1 June 2022.
The ex-shareholder undertook that he will not request
the Group to repay the outstanding amounts until 30
November 2024.

The loan from ex-shareholder was scheduled to be
repaid as follows:

BERX—FR

On demand or within one year

ERMEASIRERZBAELERBESE
EFr#E ¥ £%82425,000,000%8 7Tt R
2022FE8F#&RIE - A& FE20225F5H 31
BIEFE ZERARER BEFZE
4.48%ct B AIREBEEFI LR tHE
ZENH2022FE681HERE c HIRER
AETE2024FE11B30HZ A AT E K
REBERRERERNIE

RERRRZEMDtEIZMN T HE
=

2023 2022
20234 20224
HK$’000 HK$'000
FAET FET
6,477 8,454
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

kR MR

77 o = |

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MAY 2023 #; 202355831 L FE

25.

26.

AMOUNTS DUE TO DIRECTORS AND NON- 25,
CONTROLLING INTERESTS

The amounts due were non-trade in nature,
unsecured, interest-free and have no fixed terms of

BNEERIFEREDR ZMIE

BAREBFEZLEE ERR -ER
R R [E BT o

repayment.
SHARE CAPITAL 26. &7
Number of ordinary shares Amount
Kin#E +8
HK$0.2 each  HK$0.01 each HK$ 000
BREE BREE
025871 0.01871 FAET
Authorised: 3T
At 1 June 2021, 31 May 2022 and 12021E681H 202258318 &

1 June 2022 2022%£681H - 10,000,000,000 100,000
Share Consolidation (Note (b)) Kipas (Fizk (o) 500,000,000  (10,000,000,000) -
At 31 May 2023 12023E5831H 500,000,000 - 100,000
Issued and fully paid: BETRARE
At 1 June 2021, 31 May 2022 and 1 June 2022 720216510 202258310 &

202256818 - 998,800,000 9,988
Issue of ordinary shares by placing (Note (a)) ~ BRAEEZTZER (F:@) = 199,760,000 1,998
Share Consolidation (Note (b)) Kip & (135 0)) 59,928,000  (1,198,560,000) =
Issue of shares by rights issue (Note (c)) BBERETRN () 29,964,000 = 5,092
At 31 May 2023 R2023%58318 89,892,000 - 17,978
notes: MI5E -
(a) On 16 May 2022, the Company entered into a Placing (a) R2022658 168 » KABI A E B E D

Agreement with the placing agent in connection with the
placing for an aggregate of 199,760,000 new ordinary
shares of the Company of HK$0.01 each at a placing price
of HK$0.03 per share. The placement was completed on
8 June 2022 and the premium on the issue of shares,
amounting to approximately HK$3,875,000, net of the
placing commission and other related transaction costs of
approximately HK$120,000 was credited to the Company’s

share premium account.
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EREBITIURE W& REEE&8MK0.03
B ITEE 5 3£199,760,0008 & A B E A& &
fE0.01 BT L ER - BL & EFN202246
F8HER » TR 7 & E#Y3,875,00078 7T
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26.

27.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R MR R MR

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MAY 2023 & £2023F5831H Lt FE

SHARE CAPITAL (continued)

notes: (continued)

(b) On 16 November 2022, the Company completed the
consolidation of shares in the issued shares of the Company
whereby every twenty issued and unissued ordinary shares
of HK$0.01 each were consolidated into one consolidated
ordinary share of HK$0.20 each (the “Share Consolidation”).

(c) On 27 February 2023, the Company issued 29,964,000
ordinary shares upon completion of the rights issue on
the basis of one rights share for two existing shares held
by shareholders of the Company at a subscription price
of HK$0.42 per rights share. The gross proceeds from
the rights issue were approximately HK$12,585,000. The
net proceeds after deducting estimated professional fees
and related expenses of approximately HK$531,000 was
HK$12,054,000.

EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE BASED PAYMENTS

The Share Option Scheme was adopted pursuant
to a resolution in writing passed by all shareholders
on 14 March 2017. The purpose of the Share
Option Scheme is to provide incentives or rewards
to the eligible participants for their contribution
to the Group’s operation. Eligible participants of
the Scheme include the Company’s directors,
including independent non-executive directors, other
employees of the Group and consultants. The Share
Option Scheme became effective on 8 March 2021
and, unless otherwise cancelled or amended, will
remain in force for five years from that date.

The maximum number of unexercised share options
currently permitted to be granted under the Share
Option Scheme shall not in aggregate exceed 10%
of the total number of shares in issue. The maximum
number of shares issuable under share options to
each eligible participant in the Share Option Scheme
within any 12-month period is limited to 1% of the
shares of the Company in issue up to the date of
grant. Any further grant of shares options in excess
of this limit is subject to shareholders’ approval in a
general meeting.

The share options do not confer rights on the holders
to dividend and to vote at shareholders meetings.

26.

27.

&z (&)
Bt © (48
(b) 2022118168 A AT TR E B %17

BOBRBEH BIL- E-+REET
BRARBITEREECOBITNEERKES
HA—RESREEC.20EBTNAHEER
(TRtR & Hl) ©

(© REREALAERESHFEMRRE KRG
A — R 2 B2 LERMERR
0428 THRBBEETEHRE  AQF R
202352527 H#1729,964,0008% i@ % ©
R FT S RRIB 4R EB 49 412,585,000/ 7T © B
BRIEFEE (NGt EEE R EREMAX
#3531,0007% 7t) %12,054,0007% 7t ©

URH#EEBEURMNAERZ IR
REZ2ERBEN2017E3/14HEEN
EEREER KA RN — BB RES
BoBREAIEANESERIHEERM
HEHAEBESEFREESMG T HE
FRE-BEREFE ZAERIHEER
EARNBDES (BEBIUIENTES)
NREBHMES REERM - BRESER
2021 F3HB8HE M > BRIEF 17 T LLGE
HE BT SRR ZBERFEHTE
2 o

RIFERES S REEERTZRT
EREREZERZHETRBREBE X
BRID 4B Z210% ° IR+ 18 8 8
N ERESEARBEETFERLEER
2HEEBZBREMIFTZRZROEA
BAERARABEERHARBETR
PBZ1% R FEMBIB I FRER =~ I i1
RERSKRRINIKRRARSG L&

BRETERETHAEARRRE RIKK
RAGRERER -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AR e MR R MY EE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MAY 2023 #; 202355831 L FE

27. EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE BASED PAYMENTS 27. UREGEURGAEER Z A
(continued) (%8)
Set out below are details of movements of the TREYIEH E2023F K2022F5H31H
outstanding options granted under the Share Option IFFEERBEBEREASEFELENERITE
Scheme during the year ended 31 May 2023 and BN Esh s .
2022:
Outstanding Adjustment Outstanding
as at Granted Exercised due to Adjustment Lapsed as at
Exercise 1 June during the during Share due to during 31 May
price 2022 year the year  Consolidation  rights issue the year 2023
1420228 1420235
6A10 B R 58318
1R WATE EREL ERffE AfEE  RitkAZ ER%Y WATE
HKS 000 000 ‘000 ‘000 000 000 000
A7 & & & 4 4 & &
Share Option Scheme B /7852l
Directors EZ 1.567* 800 - - (760) 1 - 4
Employees &8 7.567* 10,000 - - (9,500) 9 (488) 21
Consultants B 7.567* 19,200 - - (18,240) 16 (488) 488
Total ) 30,000 - - (28,500) 26 (976) 550
Weighted average ~ METH
exercise price e 0.385 - - - - - 1,567
Qutstanding Granted Exercised Adjustment Lapsed Qutstanding
Exercise asat during the during the ~ due to Share  Adjustment due during the asat
price 1 June 2021 year year  Consolidation  to rights issue year 31 May 2022
120214 120205
6818 Rik{3 58318
e HATE ERE ERfife affEE  RitkER ERki HATE
HKS oo oo 000 oo oo oo oo
BT 7K 7K & & 7&K K 7K
Share Option Scheme B &kiE5t2]
Directors £ 0.385 800 = = - - - 800
Employees B8 0.385 10,000 - - - - - 10,000
Consultants B 0.385 19,200 - - - - - 19,200
Total a5 30,000 - - - - - 30,000
Weighted average INETH
exercise price HFEE 0.385 - - - - - 0.385
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27.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R MR R MR

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MAY 2023 & £2023F5831H Lt FE

EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE BASED PAYMENTS
(continued)

All of the Company’s share options are exercisable at
grant date. The options outstanding at the end of the
year have a weighted average remaining contractual
life of 3 years (2022: 4 years) and the exercise price
of HK$7.567 (2022: HK$0.385) per share.

During the years ended 31 May 2023 and 2022, no
expense in relation to share options grants by the
Company to employees and others providing similar
services was recognised.

* Adjustments were made to the exercise price
and the number of shares entitled to be issued
upon full exercise of the share options as a
result of the Share Consolidation became
effective on 16 November 2022. The exercise
price of the Options was adjusted from
HK$0.385 per share to HK$7.567 per Share.

27.

Léﬂ%ﬁé.%%wiﬁ{ﬁ%gﬁﬁzw%’x
I\‘E

NATFTEBRETNREE BEfTE-
FERBEARTEERENINE TS TGS
HEAMRE &34 (20224 : 4%F) » 1714
FHE7.567H 7T (20224 : 0.385%E L) ©

RE E2023F K2022F5831H IEF
E ERIEBRESATRES RIZMH
BFLURBFNEMA LR FTERENER
E‘Zo

* HRIRMDE HIR2022E11816
HEM  AATERABTEER
REREERSITEME BT
MO EBEE BRETHEERS
f20.385B TR EEEKT7.5678
oo
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ke MR AR MY EE
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MAY 2023 #; 202355831 L FE

28.

166 New Amante Group Limited #HEEEEABRAT

RESERVES

Details of the movements on the Group’s reserves are
set out in the consolidated statement of changes in

equity.

Movements on the Company’s reserves are as

&

AEBNRFEEFFBHINER

#xo

ARTMEERBMT :

e
zamEe

follows:
Share Capital Accumulated Share option
premium reserve losses reserve
(note(a)) (note(b)) (note(c)) (note(d)) Total
RiniEE R 2iEE  BRERE @t
(Kt (a)) GED) (tz¥(c) (GEC)
HK$ 000 HK$'000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FET FET
At 1 June 2021 202146818 98,650 34 (116,923) 6,835 (11,404)
Profit and total comprehensive  ER&EFRZEE R 2
income for the year = = 372 = 372
At 31 May 2022 and 1 June 2022 1202258318 &%
202246818 98,650 34 (116,551) 6,835 (11,032)
Loss and total comprehensive ~ FABEREZEREHE
income for the year - - (7,959) - (7,959)
Transaction costs attributable RERERZME
to the placing (120) - - - (120)
Issue of ordinary shares by placing B E&TLER 3,995 - - - 3,995
Transaction costs attributable EREGERZ M
to the rights issue (531) - - = (531)
Issue of ordinary shares BRUERETLER
by rights issue 6,593 - - - 6,593
At 31 May 2023 1#2023%5A318 108,567 34 (124510) 6,83 (9,054




28.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R MR R MR

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MAY 2023 & £2023F5831H Lt FE

RESERVES (continued)

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

Share premium

Share premium represented the amount
subscribed for share capital in excess of
nominal value.

Capital reserve

Capital reserve represents the difference
between the fair value of consideration paid
and the carrying value of the subsidiaries
acquired.

Accumulated losses

Accumulated losses represented the
cumulative net losses recognised in profit or
loss.

Share option reserve

The share option reserve represents the fair
value of the actual or estimated number
of unexercised share options granted to
employees and consultants of the Company
recognised in accordance with the accounting
policy adopted for equity-settled share-based
payments in note 4(k) to the consolidated
financial statements.

Other reserve

Other reserve represents the difference
between the consideration and the carrying
amount of the net liabilities attributable to
the reduction of interest in a subsidiary being
disposed to non-controlling interests.

fEth (&)
(@) PRADMMH

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

R sEBEIBREATRBLE
ENEEE-

BRA (&
REZEHEEETRKELFEHRERR
WENBABKREEZENE
B

REtEER
RetERENBEa T RBH RS
BR8P R -

Rl
BRERBRERTEAQAEER
BEZHERTEBREERIM
STEMBZATE REREMH
R M A4 (k) AR B AS BB AR 1D
RERZIRRMN G5t ERRE
THREEE o

Hh#
HithfEmisEm I rERE oD B EN
BRamABRERZNE AT
A MBSz 8 EFEKRE
BzE%E-
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ir e TR AR MY EE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MAY 2023 #; 202355831 L FE

29. NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS 29.

Set out below is the summarised financial information
of City Silver Limited. The amounts disclosed are

JEEERG =
T & FCity Silver Limited 81 75 E Kl
BME-FINENSEAERBKENS

before intra-group eliminations. ZH o
2023 2022
20234 20224
HK$’000 HK$°000
FET FET
For the year ended 31 May HES5A31HLLEE
Revenue W 7 - =
Loss and total comprehensive income FAREEREEI 4248
for the year - (51)
Loss allocated to non-controlling PDEEEIFERER ZEIB
interests - (21)
Dividends paid to non-controlling EXNFIFERERZKE
interests - -
For the year ended 31 May HES5A31HLLEE
Cash flows used in operating activities #&&EZEFFAFARESRE (29) (13)
Cash flows from investing activities KEEHMERERE - =
Cash flows generated from financing BB FZEFIRRERE
activities 31 13
Net cash inflows BEMA SR 2 =
2023 2022
20235 20224
HK$’000 HK$’000
FAETT FET
As at 31 May 58318
Current assets MENE E 177 16
Non-current assets ERBEE - =
Current liabilities mENEE (6,522) (6,361)
Non-current liabilities ERBERE - =
Net liabilities B1EF5 (6,345) (6,345)
Accumulated non-controlling interests R st IFIERE S (2,537) (2,537)
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29.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R MR R MR

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MAY 2023 & £2023F5831H Lt FE

NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS (continued)

Set out below is summarised financial information
of Castle Team Limited. The amounts disclosed are

before inter-company eliminations.

JEERRED (B)

T # 5|Castle Team LimitedBy B F5E
B E-FRINEMNEEEA AT BIKHEA
£ B

2023 2022
20234 20224
HK$’000 HK$°000
FET FAET
For the year ended 31 May BESH31A L EE
Revenue W i 5,414 4,761
Profit and total comprehensive income £ % Al & & E U 7 42
for the year 1,978 1,258
Profit allocated to non-controlling PDEEEIFERE R 2 im
interests 969 617
Dividends paid to non-controlling EXNFIFEREREZKRE
interests - -
For the year ended 31 May BE5H31A L EE
Cash flows generated from operating &KE EZEFFFERENE
activities 547 678
Cash flows used in investing activities & & EEIFTRAIR S (40) (450)
Cash flows used in financing activities BEEESNFTAIRE (520) (369)
Net cash outflows &Mt 348 (13) (141)
2023 2022
20235 20224
HK$’000 HK$°000
FAET FET
As at 31 May 58318
Current assets MENE E 487 324
Non-current assets ERENEE 1,998 781
Current liabilities mENEE (9,587) (8,869)
Non-current liabilities EREBEE - (1,315)
Net liabilities BEF5 (7,102) (9,079)
Accumulated non-controlling interests 2 5t JE RS =5 (3,480) (4,449)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ir e TR AR MY EE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MAY 2023 #; 202355831 L FE

29. NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS (continued)  29. JEIZERR#EZS (&)

On 19 August 2021, the Group disposed of an R2021FE8B19H  REFEB@BFILE =
aggregate of 29% of issued shares of Crown Grand 7 aHE HCrown Grand Limited B 2
Limited to independent third parties. The Group TR BN20% o 7 & F E 58 JE 12 B8 #E
recognised a decrease in non-controlling interests of TR0 682,000B TR ANATIER AE
HK$682,000 and an increase in equity attributable to {hHE 2R 12 106,282,000 0 N X & 7
owners of the Company of HK$6,282,000. Set out Crown Grand Limitedf ff 75 & il 2 o
below is summarised financial information of Crown Frig BN EA A B EIKIHA & %8 o

Grand Limited. The amounts disclosed are before
inter-company eliminations.

2023 2022
20234 20224
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAET
For the year ended 31 May HE5831HLEEE
Revenue & 57,975 32,986
Profit and total comprehensive income & R & A & & & U 7= 42 48
for the year 4,353 2,652
Profit allocated to non-controlling PDEEEIFERE R 2 im
interests 1,262 &38
Dividends paid to non-controlling EXNFIFEREREZKE
interests - -
For the year ended 31 May HE5831HLEEE
Cash flows generated from operating K& EZEFFFRERENE
activities 13,486 4,724
Cash flows used in investing activities R EEZEFHFFARESHRE (2,091) (1,754)
Cash flows used in financing activites BIEEZEFFFARESRE (10,549) (2,792)
Net cash inflows BEMA SR 846 178
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30.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
tr e MR M EE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MAY 2023 & £2023F5831H Lt FE

NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS (continued) 29.

IR R (8

2023 2022
2023%F 20224
HK$’000 HK$°000
FET FET

As at 31 May #5831H
Current assets BN E E 13,642 3,267
Non-current assets ERIEE 8,277 18,979
Current liabilities mENEE (18,746) (21,282)
Non-current liabilities ErRFHadE (24) (2,168)
Net assets/(liabilities) BE/ (B8R F48 3,149 (1,204)
Accumulated non-controlling interests R st IEIERR 913 (349)

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS 30.

At the 31 May 2023 and 2022, the Group had no
significant capital commitments.

B KR

fR20234F K2022F5H31H » RERE I

BEREARAE-
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ir e TR AR MY EE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MAY 2023 #; 202355831 L FE

31. HOLDING COMPANY STATEMENT OF 31. ERATIEMEIRRE
FINANCIAL POSITION

2023 2022
20234 20224
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
Non-current assets ERBEE
Investment in subsidiaries REATNKE -* =
Amounts due from subsidiaries & W i B A 5 1B 12,884 =
12,884 -
Current assets MEEE
Other receivables H e Wzkia 71 391
Deposits g _ 211
Cash and cash equivalents HWEKRIREEEY 1,392 22
1,463 624
Current liabilities mEBaE
Amounts due to directors ENEE A 203 =
Other payables HAhFE 7R IE 2,272 1,668
Other borrowings H & 2,948 =
5,423 1,668
Net current liabilities e EEEE (3,960) (1,044)
Net assets/(liabilities) BE/(AfE) 3248 8,924 (1,044)
Equity B
Share capital [N 26 17,978 9,988
Reserves B 28 (9,054) (11,082)
Total equity/(deficiency in mrEs  (BEBA)
assets) 8,924 (1,044)
* Represents the amount less than HK$1,000. * fe & RE(EH1,00058 7T ©
On behalf of the board of directors KEREEFT
Mr. Wong Chi Yung Ms. Liu Huijing
FEEBXE AEBEL L
Director Director
BZ EBF
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32.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R MR R MR

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MAY 2023 & £2023F5831H Lt FE

PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES

The following are the details of the Group’s
subsidiaries at 31 May 2023:

Name

4

BCI Group Holdings (BVI)
Limited

BCI Group Holdings (BVI)
Limited

BCI Group Enterprises Limited

BCI Group Enterprises Limited

Group Best Investment
Holdings Limited

Group Best Investment
Holdings Limited

Legend Vision Limited

IR A RAT

Bannock Holdings Limited

Bannock Holdings Limited

Buzz Concepts Management
(HK.) Limited

Buzz Concepts Management
(H.K.) Limited

Country and date of Issued

incorporation/establishment and and paid up

form of business structure share capital

ML/ RIERR BEfTk

REEZBERTL HRRA

The British Virgin Islands USs10
(the “BVI'), 6 February 2013,
limited liability company

EBRYHE (RBRRHE)) 1057
20135260 BRAF

Hong Kong, 28 November 2012, HKS1
limited liability company

&% 20126117288 ER A A7

The BVI, 26 April 2013, US$10,000
limited liability company

HERAHE 2013547268 10,000%7
BRAH

Hong Kong, 8 April 2015, HK$1
limited liability company

&% 201564780 ERAA A7

The BVI, 4 February 2014, USS1
limited liability company

RBRLHE 201452848 ERAT %7

Hong Kong, 17 February 2014, HK$1
limited liability company

&8 2014528170 BRAT 187

32. MEBATFRE
REEKN B ASNR2023FE5H31HH %

BT
Attributable equity Principal activities
interest and place of operations
Fefhhe e IRRBRERME
Direct Indirect
E# 3
100% - Investment holding, Hong Kong
100% - REEROER
= 100%  Investment holding, Hong Kong
- 100% REZR EE
- 100%  Investment holding, Hong Kong

- 100% REZR BB

= 100%  Investment holding, Hong Kong

= 100% REZER BB

- 100%  Security investment, Hong Kong

- 100% #HRE EE

= 100%  Provision of public relations
services, Hong Kong

- 100% REAERR &5
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ir e TR AR MY EE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MAY 2023 #; 202355831 L FE

32. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

The following are the details of the Group’s
subsidiaries at 31 May 2023: (continued)

Name

4

Lively World Limited

Lively World Limited

Group Best Investment Limited

Grand Diamond Limited

HEERAT

Litton Global Limited

Litton Global Limited

Joint Ace Limited

Joint Ace Limited

Crown Grand Limited

Crown Grand Limited

Country and date of
incorporation/establishment and
form of business structure
AR/ RIERR
REEZBERTL

The BVI, 2 January 2015, limited liability
company
ERRYHE 201551528 ERAT

Hong Kong, 9 July 2004, limited liability
company

A 0047890 BRAF

Hong Kong, 13 February 2008, limited
liability company
&5 2008E2R 138 ERAT

The BVI, 4 February 2014, limited liability
company
ERRAHE 201452848 ERAT

Hong Kong, 18 March 2015, limited
liability company

B4 2015538180 BIRAE

Hong Kong, 20 November 2014, limited
liability company
&5 014F11B20R ER AR
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Issued

and paid up
share capital
BETR
BRRE

USS1

E

HK$100,000

100,000 7

HK$2,030,750

2,030,750

USS1

E

HK$1

187

HK$100

100%7

32. MBARFE (@

REEKNBASNR2023FE5831 HH %

BWE (@

Attributable equity
interest

EiiRE

Direct Indirect

B Rk

= 100%

= 100%

= 100%

= 100%

= 100%

= 100%

= 100%

= 100%

= 100%

= 100%

Principal activities
and place of operations

TEERRERUY

Investment holding, Hong Kong

RESR &

Inactive

B -ES

Inactive

Trademark holding, Hong Kong
BRER &4

Inactive

QOperation of entertainment and

club business, Hong Kong
WERERaMER B4



32.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

The following are the details of the Group’s
subsidiaries at 31 May 2023: (continued)

Name

4

City Silver Limited

Gity Silver Limited

Ace Gain Limited

Ace Gain Limited

Maximus (HK) Limited

Maximus (HK) Limited

Castle Team Limited

Castle Team Limited

KLSK Holdings Limited

KLSK Holdings Limited

Sage wonder Limited

Sage wonder Limited

Party Alc Limited

BRERRAR

Country and date of
incorporation/establishment and
form of business structure
ML/ RIERR
REEZBERTL

Hong Kong, 12 October 2013, limited
liability company
&8 013108128 ERAT

Hong Kong, 5 May 2016, limited liability
company

&8 201655850  BER AT

Hong Kong, 7 July 2017, limited liability
company
&5 01TETRTR BRAR

Hong Kong, 25 January 2018, limited
liability company
&% 0018F1R258  BIRAHE

Hong Kong, 21 September 2016, limited
liability company

0 2016598210 BIRAF

The BVI, 26 February 2021, limited liability
company
ERELEE 2021528268 BRAT

Hong Kong, 9 February 2021, limited
liability company
&8 202152898 B RAF

Issued

and paid up
share capital
BEiTR
BRRE

HK$625,003

625,003 7

HK$1

A7

HK$100

100%7

HK$100

100E7

HK$1

A7

US§$50,000

50,000%7

HK$10,000

10,0007

R MR R MR

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MAY 2023 & £2023F5831H Lt FE

32. MEBARFE (@

REEKN B ASNR2023FE5H31HH %
BT ¢ (48)

Attributable equity Principal activities

interest and place of operations

FEfkieE
Direct Indirect

B [

TEERRERUY

= 60%  Inactive
- 60% EEEZ
- 100%  Inactive
- 100% EEEZ
= 100%  Inactive
- 100% EEEZ
= 51%  Operation of entertainment and
club business, Hong Kong
- 51% HEREREMER B4
- 100%  Inactive
- 100% EEEZ
100% - Inactive
100% - EBEgx
= 100%  Operation of entertainment and

club business, Hong Kong
- 100% BEREREMZH &E
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AR e MR R MY EE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MAY 2023 #; 202355831 L FE

33. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 33.
(a) Related party transactions

Save as disclosed elsewhere in the
consolidated financial statements, the Group
had the following material transactions with
related parties during the year:

Related party identity Type of transactions
A Bk 5 & 19 RHER

Model Genesis International Marketing and
Management Limited promotion fee

RERMAMBEREESR EHAEFRER
AT

Notes:

(i) The transactions were conducted at terms and
conditions mutually agreed between the relevant
parties. The directors of the Company are of
the opinion that those related party transactions
were conducted in the normal ordinary course of
business of the Group.

(if) Mr. Ng Shing Chun Ray, being an executive director

of the Company before he resigned on 3 April 2023,
held beneficial interests in the related company.

176 New Amante Group Limited #HEEEEABRAT

AR5
(a) PBIBAERS

SRireMBREAMEMNIKE
B AEERFRNERE D E

N =]

TUTEARS :
Notes 2023 2022
Kzt 20234 20224F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
(i) & (i)
910 998
(i) & (i)
BisE

(ii)

R 5 AR S E % E R
AR ET A ABDEER D&
EMBARZHNAEBEREE
BiRERET

EABRTEERRERER
2023F4H3H B ERIN R A B

FEBE@ e



33.

34.

35.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R MR R MR

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MAY 2023 & £2023F5831H Lt FE

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)  383.

RS 25 (18)

(b) Compensation of key management b) FTEESEASHFHM
personnel
Remuneration for key management personnel REBWETESEAEFHIN CF
of the Group, excluding amounts paid to the BIEMREE10@)FF BN A EAA
directors of the Company as disclosed in Note BIEEMIE) WT
10(a), is as follows:
2023 2022
20234 20224
HK$’000 HK$’ 000
FET FET
Salaries, allowances and e R REYRER
benefits in kind 673 568
MATERIAL INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS 34. EENXRE -THFESHINEK
IN TRANSACTIONS, ARRANGEMENTS OR RS

CONTRACTS

Except as disclosed in Note 33 to the consolidated
financial statements, no contracts of significance
to which the Company’s subsidiaries was a party
and in which a director of the Company or an entity
connected with a director had a material interest,
whether directly or indirectly, subsisted during or at
the end of the financial year.

NOTE SUPPORTING CONSOLIDATED 35.
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

(a) Major non-cash transaction

During the year ended 31 May 2022, the
Group entered into the sales and purchase
agreement with independent parties for
acquiring the shares of Crown Grand Limited,
deposits of approximately HK$4,000,000
received during the year ended 31 May 2021
was reallocated to other reserve.

PriFE M B AWM EE b > #
%K’ATWF@TFEDT_LEK’AT%%
NEFHNHEERNETERSBEE
BEEAEEMNEAGONYREERE
WERFF AR

EE=E

(a)

RERERNE

FEERERS
REE2022F5831H IEFE >
AEBEBUE = UEER
=Z LU EECrown Grand LimitedBy
5 REE2021E5831H Lk
FEWERNEZE44,000,0008
TTEENDEEHEMEE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AR e MR R MY EE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MAY 2023 #; 202355831 L FE

35. NOTE SUPPORTING CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (continued)

(b) Reconciliation of liabilities arising from

financing activities

The table below detail changes in the Group’s
liabilities arising from financing activities,
including both cash and non-cash changes.
Liabilities arising from financing activities are
liabilities for which cash flows were, or future
cash flows will be, classified in the Group’s
consolidated statement of cash flows from
financing activities.

35.

meERERERME (@

(b)

MEZBFIEENERYHER

TREFRAEEEREETIRESE
WaEges (BRFESTRIIFREE
2F) METHFELENERES
RERBELHARKREERER
EREAEENGERERERD
BARETIMSHEERENSG

& o

Amounts due to  Total liabilities

178 New Amante Group Limited #HEEEEABRAT

Lease  Loan from an Other Amounts due to non-controlling  from financing
liabilities ~ ex-shareholder borrowings directors interests activities
HEED
RE—%A0 EfES FEf R 2R FELM
fHEafE RRZER Hitifa w3 ZHE #EZHE maf
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FET FE#T FET
(Note 16/b)) (Note 24) (Note 23) (Note 25) (Note 25)
(Htzt1616)) (H#24) (H#23) (H#225) (Hs225)
As at 1 June 2022 #2022%681H 16,226 8,454 - 2,091 2,700 29,471
Changes from cash flows: REmEsy.
Proceeds from new loans NERMERE - 220 3,624 - - 3,844
Repayments of loans BEET - (2,197) (676) - - (2,873)
Repayments of principal portion EBEREERASED
of lease liabilities (10,299) - - - - (10,299)
Repayments to directors AEEER - - - (1,888) - (1,888)
Interest paid EAFE (486) - (67) - - (553)
Total changes from cash flows Remenes (10,785) (1,977) 2,881 (1,888) - (11,769)
Other changes: Hings) :
Rent concession HEEE (187) - - - - (137)
New leases HiE 12,359 - - - - 12,359
Early termination of lease RERILHEE (3,069) - - - - (3,069)
Reclassify to trade and ENNEEEAR
other payables EEMIE (375) - - - - (375)
Interest expense FERZ 486 - 67 - - 553
Total other changes Hins g e 9,264 - 67 - - 9,331
As at 31 May 2023 1R2023F58318 14,705 6,477 2,948 203 2,700 27,033




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
tr e MR M EE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MAY 2023 & £2023F5831H Lt FE

35. NOTE SUPPORTING CONSOLIDATED 35. &&8BE$£RaXRME (@)
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (continued)

(b) Reconciliation of liabilities arising from (b) RMEIBFMEENGEHIER @
financing activities (continued)

Amount due to Total liabilities

Lease Loan from an Bank  Amount dueto  non-controlling from financing
liabilities  ex-shareholder borrowings directors interests activities
MEEY
RE—%A ENES FEfTIERER FEER
HE&E BEZER RITER 2B BmZiE Y=
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$ 000 HK$'000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000
FET FET FET FET FET FET
(Note 16(b)) (Note 24) (Note 23) (Note 25) (Note 25)
(Hzt161) (Hzzo4) (3223 (Hz225) (Hz225)
As at 1 June 2021 14202146818 25,921 9,261 17,858 456 2,720 56,216
Changes from cash flows: ReHees .
Proceeds from new loans HEDFERE = = 38,850 = = 38,850
Repayments of loans BEER - (807) (56,708) - - (57,515)
Repayments of principal portion of  EEEEEEAEHSH
lease liabilities (7,520) - - - - (7,520)
Proceeds from directors REEEFEHE - = = 1,635 = 1,635
Repayments to non-controlling mIEEREREN
interests - - - - (20) (20)
Interest paid BAFES (638) 877) (46) - - (1,061)
Total changes from cash flows Remenes) (8,158) (1,184) (17,904) 1,635 (20) (25,631)
Other changes: Higs
Rent concession ReEE (1,421) - - - - (1,421)
Reclassify to trade and ENNBEERR
other payables HtEMFE (754) - - - - (754)
Interest expense MERZ 638 377 46 - - 1,061
Total other changes HEtheEan (1,537) 377 46 - - (1,114)
As at 31 May 2022 [#202265831 8 16,226 8,454 - 2,001 2,700 29,471

2023 ANNUAL REPORT 38 1 /9



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AR e MR R MY EE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MAY 2023 #; 202355831 L FE

36. SUMMARY OF FINANCIAL ASSETS AND 36. HERZISoNEHEEREHEA
FINANCIAL LIABILITIES BY CATEGORY BEHE
The carrying amounts presented in the consolidated EEMBERLIR2YNEEEERAN T
statement of financial position relate to the BEENTSRAaEER AR -
following categories of financial assets and financial
liabilities.
2023 2022
2023%F 20224
HK$’000 HK$°000
FET FET
Financial assets EREE
Measured at amortised cost: B HR AT E
Trade receivables, deposits and other B ZEWRHIE K
receivables Hfh fE U =R 18 11,323 6,797
Cash and cash equivalents RERIEEEY 10,589 1,578
21,912 8,375
Financial liabilities ERAE
Measured at amortised cost: B HR A E
Trade and other payables B 5 K E M TRIE 16,659 13,390
Amounts due to directors FEEE I8 203 2,091
Amounts due to non-controlling FETIEFER e 2w 2 7R 18
interests 2,700 2,700
Other borrowings HEm 2,948 =
Loan from an ex-shareholder KE—BAIKREZER 6,477 8,454
28,987 26,635
Lease liabilities HEaE 14,705 16,226
43,692 42,861
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37.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R MR R MR

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MAY 2023 & £2023F5831H Lt FE

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group’s financial assets that derive directly
from its operations are trade receivables,
deposits and other receivables and cash and
cash equivalents. Principal financial liabilities
of the Group include trade and other payables,
other borrowing, lease liabilities, loan from an ex-
shareholder, amounts due to directors and amounts
due to non-controlling interests. The main purpose
of these financial liabilities is to finance the Group’s
operations.

The main risks arising from the Group’s financial
instruments are credit risk, liquidity risk and interest
rate risk. The Group does not enter into or trade
financial instruments for speculative purposes.

(a) Currency risk

The Group mainly operated in Hong Kong
with most of the transactions settled in Hong
Kong dollars and did not have significant
exposure to risk resulting from changes in
foreign currency exchange rates.

(b) Credit risk

The Group’s credit risk is primarily attributable
to its trade and other receivables (note 18).
There are no significant concentrations of
credit exposure to the Group. It is spread over
a diversified portfolio of customers.

In respect of trade receivables relating to the
provision of individual credit, evaluations are
performed on the customers requiring credit
over a certain amount. These evaluations
focus on the customer’s history of making
payments when due and current ability to pay
and take into account information specific to
the customer. Typically, the Group does not
obtain collateral from customers, except for
the deposits received from the membership
scheme.

37.

MEREER
FAEBERREEENSREERE
5 FE WO IE ~ 1R & e EL At I8 R IE U R
RERFEESEY AEENTEESH
BEREFEES REMEBARE - HAME
PHEER - KRE—RARRZEM
BNEFEZMEBEREBMIFERER Z M
B hETMERTEAETERREMHE
BEE-

rEEESHIAFMELENTIZARAE
ERB -RBBETREBRFMERRE &
ERTHEITUNEESRMT ANFRE
R -

(@) EB%ER
FAEFBTEREBEEEXRE M
REBARXZHAUBTTER AL
BEEHERRNINESERESHMERH
EXRAR-

(b) FEAR
AEENEERABREIRZRINEE
ZREMEWRIE (5E18) o &
EETESAERNEERR-
EERRYREZNZEFRBR

ERHEEANEERMNESE
WRIEMES  FEDHHE TR
SRETENEPMET &£E
I EE P S Em IR B
E kU BRI fFH (T BYBE
o UERRERPHNBEER -
BEME A&EEITAEEER
RS HER M g8 W
BEFRIN o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4 A

77 o = |

FAFsERaR MYEE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MAY 2023 #; 202355831 L FE

37.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

(b)

Credit risk (continued)

The credit risk of the Group’s other financial
assets, which mainly comprise of bank and
other deposits, arises from potential default
of the counterparties, with a maximum
exposure equal to the carrying amounts of
these instruments. Credit risk in cash and
cash equivalents are mitigated as cash is
deposited in the bank with high credit rating.

Trade receivables

The Group measures loss allowances for
trade receivables at an amount equal to
lifetime ECLs, which is calculated using a
provision matrix. As the Group’s historical
credit loss experience does not indicate
significantly different loss patterns for
different customer segments, the loss
allowance based on past due status is not
further distinguished between the Group’s
different customer bases.
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37.

MEREER (&)

(b)

EERR (&
rEBHEMEMEE (E2EHE
RTTREMER HNEERRR
BRFHINBEENTR RS
RBEERZEIEMNKREE.
HRBEEFENRGEETRRSH
RIT - WEERBEZFEYHNE
E R RS LUBRAE

B EWHE
FEEEZBWRIEN GRS
DHEEREHBEREERERENE
BEtE HNOREBRERESR-
MR AERBVBEEERELR
WREBARELDBLEEEKR
TRBEER  ERAERRE
BEEFTIBRAERTEER
ERBE—TED-



37.
(b)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R MR R MR

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MAY 2023 & £2023F5831H Lt FE

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)  37. EAIEEBEIE (&)
Credit risk (continued) (b) EERR @
Trade receivables (continued) EBZEIIE ()
The following table provides information TRIEHANEEFFTEHEE R
about the Group’s exposure to credit risk and REBSEKSENTERHEERE
ECLs for trade receivables: WER :
Gross
Expected carrying Loss
2023 loss rate amount allowance
2023%F L] B IRME4E{E ES1EEE
% HK$’000 HK$’000
% FET FET
0-30 days past due #HH0ZEB0H 6.4 6,082 390
31-90 days past due #HI31E90H 49.0 245 120
91-180 days past due #HI91E180H 51.3 830 426
181-365 days past due  #Hi181E365H - - -
7,157 936
Gross
Expected carrying Loss
2022 loss rate amount allowance
20224 TRHEER REAE EEEE
% HK$ 000 HK$'000
% FET FET
0-30 days past due #EHI0OZE30H 21.4 671 144
31-90 days past due FHA31ZE90H 29.5 268 79
91-180 days past due FHA91ZE180H 61.1 288 176
181-365 days past due  #HF181%E365H = = =
1,227 399

Expected loss rates are based on actual
loss experience over the past 5 years. These
rates are adjusted to reflect differences
between economic conditions during the
period over which historical data has been
collected, current conditions and the Group’s
view of economic conditions over the
expected lives of the receivables.

FHREREXRTERNBEENE
REECEET ZFHLEXERL
& DA BR P U £E FE 52 BUB PR B
HA RS PO A8 B IR O ~ B R R O R &
EEHBWRIATRRFRNEE
RRNERZENER -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ir e TR AR MY EE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MAY 2023 #; 202355831 L FE

37. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 37.

(b)

Credit risk (continued)
Other receivables

The Group has adopted the general expected

credit loss model in

relation to other

receivables. A summary of the assumptions
underpinning the Group’s expected credit
loss model is as follows:

Category
&5

Performing

Underperforming

Non-performing
73!

Write-off

55

Company definition
of the category

AFNHEEHNESE

Counterparties have a low risk of
default and a strong capacity to
meet contractual cash flows

HFREVEARREEEREESRES
NEERE

Loans for which there is a significant
increase in credit risk; and
significant increase in credit risk is
presumed if interest and/or principal
repayments are 30 days past due

ERMNEERBBELN; REFNER/
FAEERAHBBIOBAEEAREE
2 B BB E

Interest and/or principal repayments
are 60 days past due
FIR R/ HAEEFAIABEC0H

Interest and/or principal repayments
are 180 days past due and there
is no reasonable expectation of
recovery

FER/HAEEFAIBE180EHBL
mEIEIREITERA
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MEREER (&)
(b)

EERR (&

Bl A

A& E B i H M S R IR B A —
RERACEEEEEN -Z/FEE
ERACEEERANBRREE
LI

The basis for recognition of
expected credit loss provision

HREREEGRERENEE

12 month expected credit losses.
Where the expected lifetime of an
assets is less than 12 months,
expected credit losses are
measured at its expected lifetime

12BN B EEEE - BN BREER
TR ZANEE  BHREEERE
EN G ERE

Lifetime expected credit losses

2HBREERE

Lifetime expected credit losses

2HBREERE

Asset is written off

MIsEE



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R MR R MR

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MAY 2023 & £2023F5831H Lt FE

37. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

(b)

37. HERAKER (B

Credit risk (continued) (b) EERR @
Other receivables (continued) BEi=E (%)
The Group accounts for the above items’ KREBZEBRFEATEREERE
credit risk by appropriately providing for BEstIREEE LMIEBENESE
expected credit losses on a timely basis. In BAfE AR - stEFEHEEHREX
calculating the expected credit loss rates, B xEBHZEBRHEFANE
the Group considers historical loss rates FPEEXRETEE LTHAEMS
for each category of counterparties, and B R E TR o gt H fh FE UK
adjusted for forward-looking macroeconomic NIENTEHEEERETREREN
information. Expected credit losses against T
other receivables are provided as follows:
2023 2023%
Carrying amount
Basis for recognition Estimated gross (net of
Expected credit of expected credit carrying amount impairment Basis for calculation of
Company internal credit rating loss rate loss provision at default provision) interest revenue
RIENEE fhsiEs KEE #EHE
PELEEE R BMEEERE BRAGHEE REAE  (MREESE KEhEE
HK$'000 HKS$'000
Fér Fén
Performing 0.8% 12 month expected credit 5,144 5,102 Gross carrying amount
losses
E% 1R WRBEEER REAMH
Underperforming 100% Lifetime expected credit 3 - Gross carrying amount
losses
[} 2HEREERR REAfE
Total deposits and other receivables 5,147 5,102

BERAMERRELE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AR e MR R MY EE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MAY 2023 #; 202355831 L FE

37. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 37.

(b) Credit risk (continued)

MBEERER (8
(b) EEER (&)

Other receivables (continued) B zIE (2
2022 20224
Garrying amount
Basis for recognition Estimated gross (net of
Expected credit of expected credit carrying amount impairment  Basis for calculation of
Company internal credit rating loss rate l0ss provision at default provision) interest revenue
RARHARE RN FEE HEFE
RARBESTR FHEERE: BERENAE REAE  MRAERE) UeHEE
HK$000 HK$000
T &
Performing 0.1% 12 month expected credit 5,966 5,966 Gross carrying amount
osses
3] 12ERHNBHEEER REAE
Underperforming 98.5% Lifetime expected credit 1,491 3 Gross carrying amount
osses
Bt 2HRRREER EREEE
Total deposits and other receivables 7,457 5,969

B RAMERTEAE

No significant changes to estimation
techniques or assumptions were made during
the reporting period.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
tr e MR M EE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MAY 2023 & £2023F5831H Lt FE

37. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 37. MERKEIER (&)

(b)  Credit risk (continued) (b) EERR @
Other receivables (continued) B zIE (2
The opening loss allowance for deposits B4 & H i fE U R I8 2 4 & 18 8
and other receivables reconciles to the BERS R E M E KRR IEE R E
closing loss allowance for deposits and other EEREHER BEREABEWNT -

receivables, and the gross carrying amounts
are as follows:

Under-
Performing performing Total
EE e “mst
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET FET
Gross carrying amount for 1202358310 K
deposits and other receivables e R EAMEWRRIE
as at 31 May 2023 IRE4EE 5,144 3 5,147
Opening loss allowance as at 122022865 1H
1 June 2022 SRR - 1,488 1,488
Expected credit loss FEHREERE 42 - 42
Written off s - (1,485) (1,485)
Closing loss allowance as at 1202358310 K
31 May 2023 HIREBEER 42 3 45
Net carrying amount for 12023F5831HK
deposits and other receivables B& K H g RIE
as at 31 May 2023 SREFER 5,102 - 5,102
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ir e TR AR MY EE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MAY 2023 #; 202355831 L FE

37. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 37.

(b)

(c)

MEREER (&)

Credit risk (continued) (b) EERE @
Other receivables (continued) BgEilzE (%)
Under-
Performing performing Total
= BE Mmst
HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$'000
FET FET FET
Gross carrying amount for 12022658310 K
deposits and other receivables &%k H BRI
as at 31 May 2022 IREAEE 5,966 1,491 7,457
Opening loss allowance as 20216 81HBY
at 1 June 2021 R E R R A 23 1,496 1,519
Reversal of expected credit loss TEHA{E B &85 (0] (23) (8) (31)
Closing loss allowance as 12022658310 K
at 31 May 2022 HREERE - 1,488 1,488
Net carrying amount for 1202258318/
deposits and other receivables &% K H & W =118
as at 31 May 2022 AREFEE 5,966 3 5,969
Liquidity risk () WEESRME

Liquidity risk relates to the risk that the
Group will not be able to meet its obligations
associated with its financial liabilities. The
Group is exposed to liquidity risk in respect
of settlement of trade payables, accruals and
other payables, other borrowings, loan from
an ex-shareholder, lease liabilities, amounts
due to directors and amounts due to non-
controlling interests, and also in respect
of its cash flow management. The Group’s
objective is to maintain an appropriate
level of liquid assets to meet its liquidity
requirements in the short and longer term.

188 New Amante Group Limited #HEEEEABRAT

MBEZRBS RAEEBEBRLER
THERERHAFASENAR-
FEEEHARGEEEZRAM
B -ESERAKREMECRIE
HthfEm KRB —ZBIRRZE
HoHEER BNEFZME
REMIFERED 2 WBUR
REREEENRBESTAR-
FEESEMFTEERBEEK
FolmBERARRANARBHE



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R MR R MR

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MAY 2023 & £2023F5831H Lt FE

37. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

(c)

Liquidity risk (continued)

The Group’s policy is to regularly monitor
current and expected liquidity requirements
to ensure that it maintains sufficient reserves
of cash and adequate committed lines of
funding from major banks and financial
institutions to meet its liquidity requirements
in the short and longer terms.

The liquidity policies have been followed by
the Group during the year ended 31 May
2023 and 2022 and are considered to have
been effective in managing liquidity risks.

At the end of the reporting period,
the Group’s net current liabilities was
HK$7,399,000 (2022: HK$30,656,000).
Although the Government has lifted up
restrictions relating to the containment
of COVID-19 pandemic, including those
relevant to nightclubs and entertainment
business, the aftermath of it has still posed
uncertainties to the future prospect of the
Hong Kong economy in general as well
as the travel habits of local residents and
tourists has changed after the pandemic. The
Group has taken and shall continue to take
actions to mitigate the impact as set out in
note 3(c) to ensure, as far as possible, that
the Group will have sufficient liquidity to meet
its liabilities when they fall due.

The following table details the Group’s
remaining contractual maturity for its financial
liabilities. The table has been drawn up
based on the undiscounted cash flows of
financial liabilities based on the earliest date
on which the Group can be required to pay.
The maturity dates for other non-derivative
financial liabilities are based on the agreed
repayment dates. The table includes both
interest and principal cash flows. To the
extent that interest flows are floating rate, the
undiscounted amount is derived from interest
rates at the end of the reporting period.

37. HERAKER (B

(c)

RBETEE (B
FEENBRASEHEREN R
BHABESTR R BEERFT
RETHBREETZRTRERM
WBRERERTENAKERBERE
Wimeaiik RN ABEESE
K o

REBRE E2023F 202245
B1HLEFEFE—BEBRHES
BE URABRBRN RESHE
SRBEEFEITZAN

RBBERR AEBNRB AR
SEEE 47,399,000 70 (20224
30,656,000 7T) - BEBFTBE
BB R2019 8k k5 K& B R
R (BEHTME T RIREET
BAERERS) r EEBRMETE
R ENREIRERAREE
Mo BEMERREZENEIBE
HHTHETEEEE(C o AE
B B $% B I 78 A 48 R ER AT Eh 2R R
T 5ES ()Tt f2 2 » LUER BJ A
REAEBRHEE CHRBESNE
HREEEaG-

TREREEE TR S ERER
GHRHR - TRREBETMEEN
AERRETRE (BRNEAEER
M ERF B R HMIFT
TEMEENINAANLERHE
BEMEH TERHEENERETE
RERE-HWREREBF A
Ko QIRBEREB|BHRS AR
FMREHH
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AR e MR R MY EE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MAY 2023 #; 202355831 L FE

37. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 37. HERAKER (B
(¢) Liquidity risk (continued) (c) mEIBEAR @
Total More than More than
contractual ~ Within one one year but two years
Carrying undiscounted  year or on less than but less than
amount cash flow demand two years five years
BHRER

RERE —ERH BE—F BBmE
RERE Ek ] B2k EORHE EBIREE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$ 000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FET FET

At 31 May 2023 202358310
Trade and other payables B R EMETTIE 16,659 16,659 16,659 - -
Amounts due to directors ENESEZHE 203 203 203 - -
Amounts due to non-controlling interests  FE{FIE ik iE % 2 7B 2,700 2,700 2,700 - -
Other borrowings Hinfa 2,948 3,089 3,089 - -
Loan from an ex-shareholder RE—2EIREZER 6,477 6,477 6,477 - -
Lease liabilities HEER 14,705 15,726 7,607 5,277 2,842
43,692 44,854 36,735 5,277 2,842

At 31 May 2022 12022558318
Trade and other payables B REMENIE 13,390 13,390 13,390 - -
Amounts due to directors ENESZHE 2,091 2,091 2,091 - -
Amounts due to non-controlling interests T IF ik % 2 FE 2,700 2,700 2,700 - -
Loan from an ex-shareholder RE—LAIREZER 8,454 8,661 8,661 = =
Lease liabilities HE&E 16,226 16,555 12,286 4,269 =
42,861 43,397 39,128 4,269 -

(d) Interest rate risk (d) FAIESEN

Interest rate risk relates to the risk that
the fair value or cash flows of a financial
instrument will fluctuate because of changes
in market interest rates. The Group’s bank
deposits bear floating interest rates. The
Group’s other borrowings and loan from an
ex-shareholder bear interests at fixed interest
rates and therefore are subject to fair value
interest rate risks.
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38.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R MR R MR

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MAY 2023 & £2023F5831H Lt FE

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group’s primary objective when managing
capital is to safeguard the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern and maximising the
return to stakeholders.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure,
the Group may adjust the amount of dividend paid
to shareholders, return capital to shareholders,
issue new shares or sell assets to reduce debts.

The Group actively and regularly reviews the
capital structure and makes adjustments to the
capital structure in light of changes in economic
conditions. The Group monitors its capital structure
on the basis of debt to equity ratio.

The debt to equity ratio at reporting date was as
follows:

38.

BXEREE
FEREREFNEIEANRRELE
EOFECEENLBEREFNEN

[B] %R o

RERHRABRELARBE FEEANTH
BEaRRKNHKREZE RARREE
EX ETHRIHDEEEURLDE
7o

FEERBENERERRE  LEL

BRANWEHRABEEARE-AEER
BREGREDIELREREEARE-

RIREAANEF DTN T :

2023 2022

2023%F 20224

HK$’000 HK$°000

FET FET

Other borrowings H A& 2,948 =
Loan from an ex-shareholder KE—ZAIKREZER 6,477 8,454
Lease liabilities HEas 14,705 16,226
24,130 24,680

Total equity/(deficiency in assets) WiEm (BEERAL 10,470 (13,337)
Debt-to-equity ratio B m L= 1:0.4 1:(0.5)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ke MR AR MY EE

77 o = |

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MAY 2023 #; 202355831 L FE

39.

40.

41.

192

RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEME

The Group operates a Mandatory Provident Fund
Scheme (the “MPF Scheme”) under the Hong Kong
Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance.
Under the MPF Scheme, the employees are
required to contribute 5% of their monthly salaries
or up to a maximum of HK$1,500 and they can
choose to make additional contributions. The
employer’s monthly contributions are calculated
at 5% of the employee’s monthly salaries or up
to a maximum of HK$1,500 (the “mandatory
contributions”). The employees are entitled to 100%
of the employer’s mandatory contributions upon
their retirement at the age of 65, death or total
incapacity. No forfeited contributions are available
to reduce the contribution payable by the Group in
the future years.

EVENT AFTER REPORTING PERIOD

On 23 June 2023, an aggregate of 11,985,600
Placing Shares, representing approximately 11.76%
of the Group’s issued share capital immediately
after completion of the Placing, have been
successfully placed to not less than six Placees at
the Placing Price of HK$0.5 per Placing Share.

APPROVAL OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The consolidated financial statements were
approved and authorised for issue by the board of
directors on 31 August 2023.

New Amante Group Limited ¥ EEEEERAE

39.

40.

41.

BABRMER

AEFBREESB(RFELABEEK
FlYRBARBEATESE (IREs
g o RBERESHE  EEBRER
#5%0 FR&®=1,5008 ot 70 > (b A
BREEHBINMIZ -BENES A HFZ
BEB 5% LIR&EE=1,5008 Tt E
(TR B EHERRL) - EBER65KEB K
SRR TIEENRERES S
=04 == 58 B 14 =k o EE AT A B IR Ui
TRA] AR D 7 2 B A o 2R A RS R AT YR

=+
E

REEEE

MR2023FE6H23H kI # & &
11,985,600 A& K% (NGRS
SEREAEBBEEITRAMNI1.76%) %
REEBEREERMN0GBTEE T

DRANBEEA
HIERM B RER

EEZNR2023FE8 831 HZ AT R ET
BB HRE



“AGM”
MRERBFERG]

“Amante House”
I Amante House |

“associate(s)”

N YN

“Articles of Association”

MEM =2 4R

“Audit Committee”

BIZEEE)

“Auditor” or “BDO”
e Gl ARVE ===l

“Board”
=0

“CEO”
M7 B

“CG Code”

M2 &R TR

“Chairman of the Board”

EEETF)

“Code Provisions”
I'<F Bl 5 >

“Companies Act”
MABE

“Companies Ordinance”
T B &R

DEFINITION
BE

the annual general meeting of the Company

RABHRRBFRG

a lounge located at Wan Chai, Hong Kong

—BUREBEFNEERE

having the meaning ascribed thereto under the GEM Listing Rules

BAAGEMLEHRAIM TR E

the amended and restated articles of association of the Company
adopted by a special resolution passed on the AGM held on 14

November 2022

2022 F 11 B4R R THRRBFARG LEFHIRZRFMBEAQF

RIEST R BFTHAMER24AY

the audit committee of the Company

rABTNEZEZESG

BDO Limited, an independent external auditor of the Company
BRI GEERETMEHRMERAE > AR BBIE L INSIZEED

the board of Directors
EEg

the chief executive officer of the Company

RATBIITERH

Corporate Governance Code as set out in Appendix 15 of the GEM

Listing Rules

GEM_E /R R &1 5P $ AV 2 2 B 75 T R

the chairman of the Board

EEGIERE

code provisions as set out in the CG Code

128508 ST RIFT S AT T RUFR ST

the Companies Act (2023 Revision) of the Cayman lIslands as

consolidated and revised

RizEREFTZHEE8 B RAEE (2023FEF] )

the Companies Ordinance (Chapter 622 of the Laws of Hong Kong)

NENFA (BBEPIE622F)
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DEFINITION
(£

“Company”
A AF
“Company Secretary”

MRBEIME]

“Corresponding Period”
rEEREH)

“COVID-19”
F201958 A JE F

“Directors”
===y

“ESG Report”
NMEE-HERERRS]
“ESG Reporting Guide”
NMEE-HERERREIESN

“Executive Director(s)
MHITES)

“GEM Listing Rules”
FGEM L £ A1

“GHG”
F'GHG J

“Group” or “we” or “our”

M7 & B o M3 9

“HKASSs”
rEBgstER

New Amante Group Limited (formerly known as BCI Group Holdings
Limited), a company incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited
liability, shares of which are listed on the Stock Exchange
WEEEEBRLE FIBSMERARAR) r —ERHESESER
I ABRAE > HRRD IR L

the company secretary of the Company
KRABNABEWE

the period for the year ended 31 May 2022
B E2022F5831 HFEE A

the coronavirus disease 2019
20198 AR fmE =

the directors of the Company
KANBNES

environmental, social and governance report of the Group for the year
ended 31 May 2023
AREBEBE2023F5831HIEEFENRE - HEREARS

Environmental, Social and Governance Reporting Guide as set out in
Appendix 20 of GEM Listing Rules
GEM E MR AN ER20FT EMIRIE - H E R E AR SIE5]

the executive Director(s)

HITES

The Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on GEM made by the
Stock Exchange from time to time
554 32 By A B 1) € BYGEMEE 25 £ #R Rl

Greenhouse gas

@ TS A= B
= R A

the Company and its subsidiaries
KRB REH B AT

Hong Kong Accounting Standards
BB G5 &R
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“HKFRSs”
&8 M RE 2

“HKICPA”
rEEGsHMAE]

KKH K$U
Bl

“Hong Kong”
r&%)

“INED(s)”
MBI IFAITES]

“Internal Control Consultant”

AR O

“LKF Lounge”
I'LKF Lounge |

“MEA”

MEM =R RA AR

“MPF Scheme”
MR E T2

“Nomination Committee”
F}E% KE =N

“Option(s)”

TRERG #E)

“Remuneration Committee”
FHMEE g

“PRC
==Yl

“Reporting Period”
MR & HAR

DEFINITION
BE

Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards comprise HKFRS, HKAS
and Interpretations
EEMBREENCEESBEMHZREEDN -EEGFEAKEE

Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
EBGEEAE

Hong Kong dollar(s), the lawful currency of Hong Kong
B BBEEEGT

the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region of the People’s Republic
of China
REARENEERRHITHE

the independent non-executive Director(s)

BIUIFRITES

an internal control consultant engaged by the Company on 16 January
2023
A A B 122023F1 816 H R EE A A &6 B 2 RE 7S

the cigar lounge operated by the Group at Lan Kwai Fong, Hong Kong
FEEREBRETRNLNENEERE

the amended and restated memorandum and articles of association of
the Company adopted by a special resolution passed on the AGM held
on 14 November 2022

R2022F 11 B14HBITHREBEFASG FKFHRBZXZHRMAN KR E]
AEE] R B 5T B AR 4 = 72 A 4 B A Al

Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme

@t A 5 E

the nomination committee of the Company
KABIRREESR

Share option(s) granted to eligible grantee(s) by the Company
RATAEERERAKRTHERE

the remuneration committee of the Company
KRBFNEES

People’s Republic of China
FREE A R

the period for the year ended 31 May 2023
HZE2023F5831H IEFEEHAHE
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DEFINITION
(£

“Rights Issue”
R

“SFO”

M85 R ERG 1R B
“Share(s)”

TR 171

“Share Consolidation”

i 17 &

“Share Option Scheme”
MRS R st 2]

“Shareholder(s)”
A% B8

“Stock Exchange”
MBS 32 PR

wgy”
% J

the rights issue on the basis of the then one (1) rights share for every
two (2) shares held on 12 January 2023, a total of 29,964,000 Shares
was allotted and issued thereunder on 27 February 2023

#2023 F1 B12BHSRE M) M Ao —(1)RME R R D EZEH
B I 712202352827 H » & 3£29,964,0008% I 15 B HEBr 8% K 8517

the Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of Laws of Hong
Kong)
&5 RERE R (BB LB HE671E)

ordinary share(s) of HK$0.20 each in the issued share capital of the
Company
KRABBEITRAPEREEC.20E T S8 K

the share consolidation on the basis that the then every twenty (20)
issued and unissued shares of HK$0.01 each in the share capital
of the Company be consolidated into one (1) consolidated share of
HK$0.20 each which resolved in the annual general meeting of the
Company held on 14 November 2022

R2022F 1MB14ERITHRREBFARE LIKERREBRERARATR
ARG TRORBETARETZEBREE.OIE T ZRH S HA—
(EREREE#R0.208 Tz & Hik®n

the share option scheme adopted at the extraordinary general meeting
of the Company held on 14 March 2017
RABR2017ESR 4B RITHIRRT I XE LRMV BT E

holder(s) of the Share(s)
e AVEST=IN

The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
EBBMEXZFAERAS

per cent
Bt

196 New Amante Group Limited #HEEEEABRAT



MEEEERBIRASE

NEW AMANTE GROUP LI



	封面
	聯交所GEM的特色
	目錄
	公司資料
	主席報告書
	門店
	財務摘要
	管理層討論及分析
	董事履歷詳情
	企業管治報告
	環境、社會及管治報告
	董事會報告
	五年財務概要
	獨立核數師報告
	綜合全面收益表
	綜合財務狀況表
	綜合權益變動表
	綜合現金流量表
	綜合財務報表附註
	釋義
	封底

